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About this report
This annual report is a summary of Vicinity Centres’ operations, 
aYtivities and finanYial fosition as at )& @une (&17$ ?n this 
report references to ‘Vicinity’, ‘Group’, ‘we’, ‘us’ and ‘our’ refer 
to LiYinity 9entres unless otherwise stated$

HeferenYes in this refort to a ½year¾ and ½FY17¾ refer to the 
finanYial year ended )& @une (&17 unless otherwise stated$ 
All dollar figures are exfressed in Australian dollars (AK:) 
unless otherwise stated$

This annual refort disYloses LiYinity¾s finanYial and non#finanYial 
ferformanYe for FY17 and has been frefared using elements 
of the ?ntegrated Heforting 2?H4 framewora$ Core information" 
particularly latest company announcements and detailed 
sustainability reforting Yan be found on LiYinity¾s website$

LiYinity is Yommitted to reduYing the environmental footfrint 
associated with the production of the annual report and 
printed copies are only posted to securityholders who have 
eleYted to reYeive a frinted Yofy$ This refort is frinted on 
environmentally resfonsible fafer manufaYtured under 
?SE1*&&1 environmental standards$

The following symbols are used in this refort to Yross#refer  
to more information on a topic: 

References additional materials within  
this report

References additional materials on  
Vicinity’s website

Disclaimer
This refort Yontains forward#looaing statements" inYluding 
statements" indiYations and guidanYe regarding future 
earnings" distributions and ferformanYe$ The forward#looaing 
statements are based on information available to LiYinity 
9entres as at the date of this refort (16 August (&17)$ These 
forward#looaing statements are not guarantees or frediYtions 
of future results or ferformanYe exfressed or imflied by the 
forward#looaing statements and involve anown and unanown 
risas" unYertainties" assumftions and other faYtors" many of 
whiYh are beyond the Yontrol of LiYinity 9entres$ The aYtual 
results of Vicinity Centres may differ materially from those 
exfressed or imflied by these forward#looaing statements"  
and you should not flaYe undue relianYe on suYh forward#
looaing statements$ ;xYeft as reguired by law or regulation 
(inYluding the ASN Bisting Hules)" we undertaae no obligation  
to ufdate these forward#looaing statements$
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From local shopping 
centres to premium 
retail destinations 
that compete on an 
international stage, 
we aim to enrich 
our communities 
by providing unique 
centres with the shops, 
services and amenities 
that they need.

Employee engagement score

71%
FY16: 66%

Green Star Performance portfolio rating

3 Stars
FY16: 2 Stars

Occupancy rate

99.5%
June 2016: 99.4%

$1,583.6m
Statutory net profit after tax

FY16: $960.9m

FY16: 17.7¢

17.3¢
Distribution per security

15.5%
Total return1

FY16: 12.8%

Performance Highlights

1.  Calculated as: (Change in net tangible assets per security (NTA) 
during the period + distributions declared)/opening NTA.
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Our Operating Model

Enriching community experiences

Our value add
Our strategy is to create unique and relevant 
consumer experiences, deliver compelling 
value for our retail partners and strive for 
excellence in everything we do.

Deliver the best retail 
mix and engaging 
experiences to attract 
consumers and support 
our retail partners.

Enhance our portfolio 
quality through 
select developments, 
divestments and 
acquisitions.

Our resources
We evolve and optimise our 
resources to complement and 
enhanYe our oferating model$

Capital 
9afital from our eguity and debt 
investors and strategiY fartners$

People 
A highly engaged and Yafable 
woraforYe$

Real estate 
A resilient and sustainable  
froferty fortfolio$

Data and systems
Networa Yafability" data"  
froYesses and our insights  
and intelleYtual froferty$

Brand
Brand and refutation underfinned  
by strong staaeholder relationshifs$

External 
inÇkences
Me embraYe offortunities and 
manage material risas fresented  
by our external inÇuenYes$

Financial and property 
markets
FaYtors that imfaYt the aYYessibility" 
friYing and liguidity of our Yafital 
and real estate assets$

Consumer and retail trends
9hanging lifestyles" needs and 
behaviours of Yonsumers" and maraet 
forYes that affeYt our retailers$

Local community
:emografhiY" Yultural" soYial and 
economic characteristics where 
we oferate$

Environment
AYYessibility and Yost of resourYes 
and the imfaYts of Ylimate variability$
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Intensively 
managing our 
centres to drive 
income growth 
and operational 
efficiencies.

Find out more about our 
strategy and how we 
create shared value for 
our stakeholders in the 
following pages.

Our outcomes
Me Yreate shared value by enriYhing 
Yommunity exferienYes$

Solid investor returns

4.6%
Yomfarable underlying ;PS growth

15.5%
total return 
(FY160 1($.�)

Successful retailers and 
satisfieZ ckstomers

$9,429 per sqm
sfeYialty store CAT
(uf 6$*� on FY16)

Highly engaged people 

71%
engagement sYore 
(FY160 66�)

Better communities

$1.8 million
community investment 
(FY160 �1$) million)

8% 
reduYtion of Yarbon intensity on FY16
(down to 71ag 9E2#e%sgm)
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:uring the (&17 finanYial year" we have 
foYused on reinforYing LiYinity¾s strong 
flatform for future growth$ Portfolio guality 
has been imfroved" our Yafital fosition 
has been strengthened" we have invested 
in networas" systems and Yafability to 
oferate more effeYtively and gain deefer 
insights into our Yonsumers¾ behaviours" 
and all outstanding aey merger and 
integration aYtivities have now been 
Yomfleted$ Me have also Yontinued to 
sharpen our emphasis on our consumers 
and our retailers, as we position Vicinity 
for further suYYess in the evolving retail 
landsYafe$

Statutory net frofit after tax for the  
1( months to )& @une (&17 was 
�1"+.)$6 million" underfinned by strong 
net froferty valuation gains$ Net tangible 
assets fer seYurity (NTA) was uf .$/� to 
�($.(" sufforting a total return1 of 1+$+� 
for the feriod$ Knderlying earnings of 
�7*1$. million or 1.$7 Yents fer seYurity 
were delivered$ This result was in line with 
guidanYe and down ($1� Yomfared to the 
frior year" largely as a result of non#Yore 
assets divested to imfrove the guality 
and growth of the fortfolio$ Ad`usting for 
aYguisitions and divestments" Yomfarable 
underlying earnings were uf *$6� on the 
frior year" a strong aYhievement in  
a soft retail environment$ This solid result 
reÇeYts the benefit of ongoing fortfolio 
enhancement, the realisation of further 
merger synergies and effiYienYies" and 
the sound underlying ferformanYe of 
our assets$ The full#year distribution fer 
seYurity was 17$) Yents" Yomfared to 
17$7 Yents in the frior year" mainly due  
to the divestment of non#Yore assets$

To deliver on our strategy ¹ to Yreate 
unigue and relevant Yonsumer 
exferienYes" deliver Yomfelling value for 
our retail fartners and strive for exYellenYe 
in everything we do ¹ we foYused on 
imfroving our offer" both in terms of the 
assets within our portfolio and the retail 
exferienYe for our Yonsumers$ Me have 
done this through seleYtive aYguisitions" 
divestments and redevelopment, and  
by Yontinuing to refine our tenanYy mix$ 

The imfrovement of many of our aey 
fortfolio metriYs during the year reÇeYts 
this foYus$

Me have also integrated broader 
sustainability ob`eYtives into our strategy 
to Yreate a low#Yarbon highly#effiYient 
portfolio, enhance our climate resilience 
and shafe better Yommunities where we 
oferate$ As one of the largest owners and 
managers of shoffing Yentres in Australia" 
we touYh a great number of lives ¹ our 
people, our retailers and service providers, 
together with our Yonsumers and loYal 
Yommunities$ As an emfloyer" we have 
foYused on a number of internal initiatives 
this year" inYluding a foYus on Yulture 
and engagement$ This year" ? am fleased 
to report that our people initiatives have 
helfed to inYrease our overall engagement 
sYore to 71�" uf + ferYentage foints on 
the frior year¾s grouf#wide engagement 
survey outYome$

Me have also been strategiYally investing in 
our Yommunities" Yontributing �1$. million( 
this year through both Yorforate and Yentre#
level Yommunity initiatives$ Me entered 
a three#year fartnershif with BeaYon 
Foundation to deliver our community 
investment frogram" foYusing on assisting 
unemfloyed and disengaged youth in our 
Yommunities$ Me have also fartnered with 
a number of soYial enterfrises sufforting 
the emfloyment of affroximately )& 
disadvantaged individuals from our loYal 
Yommunities$ Me believe these initiatives 
Yreate shared value" by strengthening our 
communities and the connection they 
have with our Yentres$ 

A number of unfortunate events oYYurred 
during the year$ ?n February (&17" a light 
airYraft Yrashed into the >omemaaer 
9entre at :FE ;ssendon$ Sadly those 
on board the flane did not survive$ En 
behalf of the entire LiYinity team" ? extend 
my condolences to the families of the 
deYeased$ The Yentre was Ylosed at the 
time and fortunately there were no other 
Yasualties$ 9yYlone :ebbie in CarYh (&17" 
and the assoYiated Çash Çooding" resulted 
in Yentre Ylosures and emergenYy flans  

being initiated at some of our Yentres 
aYross the Gueensland Yoast$ ? am fleased 
to refort that there were no serious in`uries 
to our feofle and no ma`or damage to 
our assets$ ? would liae to aYanowledge 
the dedication and professionalism of 
our team in how they dealt with these 
unforeseen events$ 

At the (&16 Annual General Ceeting 
(AGC)" ? announYed our intention to 
reduYe the total number of Board 
members and also to introduYe new  
saills to our Board" fartiYularly in the 
areas of digital and teYhnology$ ? am 
delighted to be welYoming Cs @anette 
Aendall to the Board as an ?ndefendent 
Non#exeYutive :ireYtor" effeYtive from  
1 :eYember (&17$ :uring the year"  
Cr HiYhard >addoYa AC retired from  
the Board" and at LiYinity¾s (&17 AGC 
later this year" Cr 9harles CaYea and  
Cs :ebra Stirling will also be retiring  
from the Board$ En behalf of the Board"  
? thana HiYhard" 9harles and :ebra 
for their commitment to Vicinity’s 
seYurityholders and their signifiYant 
Yontribution to the Board$

Eur 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor" Cr Angus  
CYNaughton" announYed his retirement 
as of )1 :eYember (&17" having 
been involved with the business for 
nearly 1& years" inYluding his time with 
Novion Proferty Grouf (Novion) and its 
fredeYessor 9FS Hetail Proferty Trust 
Grouf$ Angus steffed in to lead LiYinity 
through the integration of the merger 
between Novion and Federation 9entres 
in August (&1+" having freviously been 
the 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor of Novion$ 
En behalf of the Board" ? thana Angus 
for his fivotal Yontribution in Yomfleting 
the suYYessful integration of these 

Dear Securityholders

I am pleased to present to you Vicinity Centres’ (Vicinity’s) 
2017 Annual Report.

Chairman’s Review

Peter Hay – Chairman

1$   9alYulated as0 (9hange in NTA during the feriod ! distributions deYlared)%ofening NTA$

($  ?nYludes a Yombination of Yash and in#aind Yontributions" aYYounting for assoYiated management time and fart of  
the oferational sfend on soYial enterfrises in aYYordanYe with the Bondon BenYhmaraing Grouf (BBG) framewora$
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two groufs" delivering the antiYifated 
synergies from the merger and Yreating  
a strong flatform for the future$ 

After a global searYh" ? am fleased to 
have announced the appointment of  
Cr Grant Aelley as the inYoming 9;E and 
Canaging :ireYtor$ Mith global exferienYe 
in real estate investment, corporate 
strategy" funds management and frivate 
eguity" Grant will bring a strong strategiY 
and analytiYal fersfeYtive to bear on 
the evolving Australian retail landsYafe$ 
The Board" together with Angus" will 
wora to ensure a smooth transition 
from Angus through to Grant¾s flanned 
YommenYement on 1 @anuary (&1.$ 

?n the year ahead" our foYus will Yontinue 
to be on building guality and strength 
aYross the business$ This inYludes the 
implementation of recently announced 
initiatives to further strengthen LiYinity¾s 
Yafital fosition$ ;ffeYtive from FY1." 
LiYinity¾s frimary earnings measure 
will Yhange to funds from oferations 
(FFE) and our distribution fayout ratio 
will be /+� to 1&&� of ad`usted funds 
from oferations (AFFE)$ This Yhange in 
distribution foliYy will result in a lower 
distribution for FY1. than under the 
frevious foliYy but is more sustainable 
over the long term and will suffort the 
future growth of LiYinity$ Additionally" we 
intend to divest a further �)&& million  
of non#Yore assets over the Yoming year 
to imfrove fortfolio guality$ Me have  

Our strategy is to create unique and relevant 
consumer experiences, deliver compelling value 
for our retail partners and strive for excellence  
in everything we do.

Emporium Melbourne, VIC

also announYed an on#maraet buy#baYa  
of uf to +� of LiYinity¾s seYurities" whiYh 
is to be undertaaen offortunistiYally  
at a friYe that is aYYretive to both FFE 
fer seYurity and NTA$ 

To meet evolving Yonsumer freferenYes" 
we will Yontinue to frogress our extensive 
development pipeline and reposition 
our tenanYy mix$ Eur aYtive affroaYh 
to asset enhancement which continues 
to strengthen our fortfolio resilienYe 
year#on#year" Youfled with these reYently 
announced capital initiatives, positions 
us well to Yreate long#term value and 
sustainable growth" desfite exfeYtations 
that the retail sales environment will 
remain Yhallenging over the Yoming year$

En behalf of the Board" ? would liae to 
thana the LiYinity team who Yontinue 
to wora with fassion" looaing for ways 
to imfrove our business while delivering 
solid underlying ferformanYe$ ? would 
also liae to thana our seYurityholders for 
your Yontinued suffort throughout this 
transformational year and ? looa forward  
to having the YhanYe to meet with many 
of you at our (&17 AGC that will be held 
in Celbourne on 16 November (&17$ 

Peter Hay
Chairman
Peter Hay
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The outcomes of this activity are 
reÇeYted in the solid results reforted 
for the (&17 finanYial year" whiYh were 
driven by benefits from ongoing fortfolio 
enhanYement through aYguisitions" 
divestments, developments and tenant 
remixing" the Yomfletion of all aey merger 
integration aYtivities" realising additional 
effiYienYies within our business" along 
with the sound underlying ferformanYe of 
our assets$ Another highlight in the feriod 
was rolling out our Yommunity investment 
frogram to strengthen the Yommunities  
in whiYh we oferate$ 

LiYinity delivered statutory net frofit after 
tax for FY17 of �1"+.)$6 million whiYh 
was underfinned by strong net froferty 
valuation gains of �.+($+ million$1 
Knderlying earnings for the feriod were 
�7*1$. million or 1.$7 Yents on a fer 
seYurity basis$( Ad`usting for aYguisitions 
and divestments" Yomfarable underlying 
earnings were uf *$6� on the frior 
year" sufforted by Yomfarable net 
froferty inYome growth of ($+� and 
lower net Yorforate overheads1 a strong 
aYhievement in a soft retail environment$

Prudent Yafital alloYation deYisions and 
the divestment of interests in �1$7 billion 
of assets over the fast (* months  
have fut us in a strong Yafital fosition$  
At )& @une (&17" our gearing was (*$7�" 
our weighted average debt duration was 
+$) years and all debt exfiring in FY1. 
had been refaid$ Eur suYYess on fortfolio 
enhanYement initiatives and strengthening 
our balanYe sheet was aYanowledged in 
@anuary (&17" with Standard � Poor¾s 
raising LiYinity¾s Yredit rating to ½A¾ with  
a stable outlooa$

Eur reYently announYed initiatives of 
affroximately �)&& million of non#Yore 
assets intended to be divested in FY1. 

to further imfrove our fortfolio guality" 
together with our adoftion of FFE and 
AFFE as frinYifal foliYy measures effeYtive 
from FY1." will further strengthen our 
Yafital fosition and suffort future growth$ 
These initiatives build on last month¾s 
announYement of an on#maraet buy#baYa 
of uf to +� of LiYinity¾s seYurities to be 
undertaaen at a friYe that is aYYretive 
to both FFE fer seYurity and NTA" while 
also freserving amfle YafaYity to fund 
LiYinity¾s other Yafital reguirements$

FY17 earnings  
and FY18 guidance 
Pages &.

Eur aYtive fortfolio refositioning during 
the year is also being reÇeYted in our solid 
fortfolio metriYs$ The fortfolio oYYufanYy 
rate has imfroved to //$+�" Yomfared  
to //$*� a year earlier and leasing 
sfreads are also stronger$ 9omfarable 
sfeYialty sales fer sgm were uf strongly 
by 6$*� to �/"*(/ and Yomfarable 
specialty occupancy costs remained 
unYhanged at 1*$6�$ 

AYhieving these fortfolio metriYs has 
been a great outYome" fartiYularly given 
the softer retail trading environment" 
whiYh featured a number of retailer 
administrations in the feriod$ Coving 
annual turnover (CAT)) growth at )& @une 
(&17 was &$*�" Yomfared to ($1� for 
the frior feriod$ SfeYialty store CAT 
growth was &$+�" down from )$&� a 
year earlier$ ;xYluding the imfaYt of 
the :iYa Smith fortfolio that went into 
administration in FY16" sfeYialty store 
CAT was uf 1$&�$

We have continued to reposition our 
tenanYy mix and imfrove our retail 
offer in resfonse to Yhanging Yonsumer 
freferenYes$ This inYludes re#weighting 

our retail mix from mid#level women¾s 
affarel into Yategories exferienYing 
higher demand suYh as food Yatering 
and retail serviYes$ Me are also foYused 
on a wide range of initiatives to enhanYe 
the retail exferienYe" in a Yontinuously 
evolving retail landsYafe$

Amapon has made a well#fubliYised  
Yommitment to enter the Australian maraet  
over the next year or two$ Mhile we feel 
Amapon will have a greater imfaYt on the 
existing online retail maraet in Yomfarison 
to in#store sales" its entry will raise the 
serviYe delivery exfeYtations of Australian  
Yonsumers$ There is also heightened 
imfortanYe on delivering a Yomfelling 
omni#Yhannel exferienYe" integrating the 
fhysiYal and digital shoffing `ourneys" for 
both retailers and Yonsumers" and this is 
a aey area of foYus for our business$

This year, we completed the connection  
of our retail assets and Yorforate offiYes 
to a single high#sfeed digital networa 
with MiFi YonneYtivity throughout$ Eur 
Yonsumers now have aYYess to free high#
speed WiFi at our centres and the rich 
data we are gathering from this networa is 
enabling us to gain insight into Yonsumer 
behaviour" inYluding dwell times" foot 
traffiY and the way Yonsumers move 
around our Yentres$ Eur foYus for FY1. 
is to leverage this data to enhanYe the 
Yonsumer exferienYe" frovide insights  
to retailers, and improve the way we 
manage our assets$

Dear Securityholders

I am pleased to present to you an update on Vicinity 
Centres, for what has been an extremely active  
12 month period.

CEO and Managing Director’s Review

Angus McNaughton –  
CEO and Managing Director

1$  9alYulated as the aggregate net valuation gain for the two six#month feriods$ The net valuation gain exYludes 
statutory aYYounting ad`ustments and assets divested during eaYh feriod$

($  For a reYonYiliation of underlying earnings to statutory net frofit" refer to Note 1(b) of the FinanYial Hefort$

)$  Sales are reforted on a Yomfarable basis whiYh exYludes divestments and develofment#imfaYted Yentres  
in aYYordanYe with Shoffing 9entre 9ounYil of Australia (S99A) guidelines$
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These initiatives" along with our resfonsible 
management fraYtiYes" Yontinue to 
be favourably reYognised by three aey 
sustainability surveys$ ?n late (&16" we 
were included in three leaders indices in 
the :ow @ones Sustainability ?ndex (:@S?)" 
ranaed above our retail feers by Global 
Heal ;state Sustainability BenYhmara 
(GH;SB) and rated ½A#¾ for Ylimate Yhange 
ferformanYe by 9:P$

Booaing ahead" we do exfeYt the retail 
environment to remain Yhallenging 
over the next 1( months$ Eur foYus 
remains on building a stronger and more 
resilient business$ Me intend to divest 
affroximately �)&& million of non#
Yore assets over FY1. and to Yontinue 
to frogress our develofment fifeline$ 
Furthermore" in resfonse to strong 
leasing demand" we will YommenYe ma`or 
remixes at 9hadstone and GueensPlapa$ 
These fro`eYts will signifiYantly imfrove 
the tenanYy mix and growth fotential of 
both assets" notwithstanding a short#term 
imfaYt on FFE while woras are Yomfleted$

Me will be frogressing our develofment 
fifeline inYluding Yomfleting Candurah 
Forum" ofening the first stage of retail 
at The Glen and advanYing the :FE 
Perth fro`eYt$ AYross our fortfolio we 
will Yontinue to foYus on Yreating the 
best tenant mix to enhanYe the retail 
exferienYe" generating additional inYome 
streams and driving further oferational 
effiYienYies$ En Yafital management"  
we will seea to buy baYa LiYinity seYurities 
at a friYe that is aYYretive to both FFE  
fer seYurity and NTA" while also freserving 
ample capacity to fund other capital 
reguirements$ Me will also looa to extend 
our FY1/ debt exfiries$

Eur FY1. FFE guidanYe is 1.$& to 
1.$( Yents fer seYurity and our FY1. 
distribution fayout ratio is exfeYted to be 
1&&� of AFFE" with maintenanYe Yafital 
exfenditure and inYentives in total to be 
affroximately �7& million to �.& million$+ 

FY17 earnings  
and FY18 guidance 
Pages &.

Engoing fortfolio enhanYement through 
divesting non#Yore assets" maaing  
seleYt aYguisitions" and refositioning 
our Yentres through tenant remixes and 
redevelofment" remains a aey foYus for 
our business to Yreate long#term value 
and to drive sustainable earnings growth$

Taaing advantage of the ongoing demand 
for retail property, we divested interests 
in 1& retail assets for �+.6 million during 
FY17" a ($)� fremium to frevailing booa 
values$* Sale froYeeds were used in fart 
to aYguire the remaining interests in two 
assets that we fartly owned" inYluding 
the strongly ferforming :FE South Mharf" 
and also to frogress our signifiYant 
develofment fifeline$ 

A ma`or highlight of our develofment 
activities this year, was the completion 
of the �666 million (LiYinity share0 
�))) million) ma`or redevelofment of 
9hadstone in @une (&17" whiYh inYluded 
welYoming the first B;GEBAN:® :isYovery 
Centre in the southern hemisphere into 
the Yentre$ 9hadstone has Yontinued 
to strengthen sinYe the ofening of 
the aey retail stage in EYtober (&16" 
attraYting large Yrowds" fartiYularly on the 
weeaends" with annual traffiY uf (1� to 
over (1 million visitors and CAT uf (&� 
to �1$7) billion at )& @une (&17$ This 
develofment has reaffirmed 9hadstone¾s 
status as one of the leading retail assets 
globally" and has underfinned a strong 
valuation gain over the year of 1)$+� to 
�+$)+ billion (LiYinity share0 �($6. billion)$

This year" we looaed more deefly into  
the longer term sustainability of our 
assets$ Me Yomfleted a fortfolio#wide 
risa assessment to better understand 
the imfaYts of Ylimate Yhange on our 
business and integrated Ylimate resilienYe 
Yonsiderations into aey business froYesses$ 
We continued to reduce the resource 
usage of our Yentres and YommenYed 
further wora to identify energy effiYienYy 
and onsite solar generation offortunities 
aYross our fortfolio$ Eur third solar 
installation went live at ;llenbrooa 
9entral" froviding a strong business 
Yase for our low#Yarbon strategy being 
develofed in the year ahead$ 

?t has been a frivilege to be fart of 
LiYinity¾s transformation and" together 
with the Board and exeYutive team"  
to establish LiYinity¾s strategiY direYtion$ 
LiYinity is in a strong fosition and ? am 
very Yonfident in the highly Yomfetent 
exeYutive team that we have built and 
their ability to drive the future growth of 
our business$ ? looa forward to Yontinuing 
to wora with the team through to the end 
of (&17 and am Yommitted to overseeing 
a smooth transition to inYoming 9;E  
and Canaging :ireYtor" Grant Aelley$

Thana you for your ongoing suffort$ 

Angus McNaughton
9;E and Canaging :ireYtor

*$  ;xYludes transaYtions Yosts and inYludes YontraYts exYhanged for the sale of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh  
is exfeYted to settle in November (&17$

+$  Assuming no material deterioration to existing eYonomiY Yonditions$

A major highlight  
of our development 
activities this year, was 
the completion of the 
$666 million (Vicinity 
share: $333 million) 
major redevelopment  
of Chadstone in  
June 2017, which 
included welcoming 
the first LEGOLAND® 
Discovery Centre in the 
southern hemisphere 
into the centre.
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Our strategy and business 
prospects
Eur vision is to reimagine destinations  
of the future" Yreating flaYes where 
feofle love to YonneYt$ To aYhieve this" 
our strategy is to Yreate unigue and 
relevant Yonsumer exferienYes" deliver 
Yomfelling value for our retail fartners 
and strive for exYellenYe in everything  
we do$ This means being Yonsumer 
YentriY and understanding and resfonding 
to Yhanging Yonsumer trends$ Me foYus 
on Yreating destinations that engage and 
exYite" while maaing the retail `ourney 
easier so that our consumers visit more 
often and stay longer$ Eur strategy also 
involves fartnering with our retailers 
to understand how we can service and 
suffort them for suYYess$ AYross our 
business we embraYe a Yulture of agility 
and innovation" Yonstantly striving to 
imfrove the way we oferate$ Me use  
data and teYhnology to helf us serviYe 
our consumers and retailers, and to 
oferate more effiYiently$

With a portfolio across Australia of our 
sYale" we have a signifiYant offortunity 
to deliver on our purpose, to enrich 
Yommunity exferienYes now and into 
the future$ The integration of broader 
sustainability ob`eYtives into our strategy 
guides how we invest in our Yommunities 
and build a low#Yarbon and Ylimate#
resilient fortfolio$ This affroaYh helfs 
us Yreate sustainable destinations and 

shafe better Yommunities$ Me measure 
our suYYess by the shared value we 
Yreate for all of our staaeholders$ 

Me believe this strategy enables LiYinity 
to Yreate long#term value and sustainable 
growth from our fortfolio of guality 
Australian retail assets$

Our operating model 
Pages &(¹&)

FY17 outcomes  
and FY18 focus
Vicinity’s performance and achievements  
in FY17 and foYus for FY1. Yan be found  
on the fages following$

Key performance metrics 
Page 1(

Achievements and focus 
Pages 1&¹11

FY17 earnings  
and FY18 guidance
Ever the 1( months to )& @une (&17" 
LiYinity generated a net frofit of 
�1"+.)$6 million underfinned by solid 
underlying ferformanYe and strong 
froferty valuation gains$ LiYinity¾s 
underlying earnings1 fer seYurity (;PS)  
was 1.$7 Yents for the year" whiYh 
reÇeYts Yomfarable underlying ;PS 
growth of *$6�" ad`usting for aYguisitions 

and divestments$ The distribution fer 
seYurity deYlared totalled 17$) Yents  
(1>0 .$7 Yents" (>0 .$6 Yents)" whiYh 
eguates to a fayout ratio of /($)� of 
underlying earnings$

LiYinity has revised its earnings and 
distribution fayout foliYies to harmonise 
them with broadly aYYefted maraet 
fraYtiYe$ ;ffeYtive from FY1." LiYinity¾s 
frimary earnings measure will Yhange 
from underlying earnings" whiYh inYludes 
rent lost from undertaaing develofments" 
to funds from oferations (FFE)$ 
9onYurrently" our distribution foliYy  
has been revised to fay out /+� to  
1&&� of ad`usted funds from oferations 
(AFFE)" whiYh will drive more sustainable 
earnings growth going forward$ AFFE 
refresents FFE ad`usted for annual 
maintenanYe Yafital exfenditure and 
statiY lease inYentives$ 

LiYinity¾s FFE guidanYe for FY1. is 1.$& 
to 1.$( Yents fer seYurity and assumes 
affroximately �)&& million of non#Yore 
asset divestments in the period and rent 
lost from ma`or remixes at 9hadstone 
and GueensPlapa$( After ad`usting for 
the imfaYt of fortfolio Yhanges), this 
guidanYe reÇeYts Yomfarable FFE 
fer seYurity growth of ($.� to *$&�$ 
LiYinity¾s distribution fayout ratio for 
FY1. is exfeYted to be 1&&� of AFFE$ 
CaintenanYe Yafital exfenditure and 
inYentives in total for FY1. are foreYast to 
be �7& million to �.& million$

We are pleased to present Vicinity Centres’ operating and financial review for the 2017 
financial year. This operating and financial review sets out Vicinity’s strategy, operating 
model, achievements, objectives and outlook. It also provides a review of financial and 
operational performance over the 2017 financial year, along with key risks and opportunities.

Our vision
Reimagining destinations  
of the future, creating 
places where people love  
to connect.

Our purpose
To enrich community experiences. We do this by creating a  
better, easier and more enjoyable experience for our stakeholders  
– our consumers, retailers, securityholders, strategic partners and 
our people.

Our Operating and Financial Review

1$   Knderlying earnings is net frofit ad`usted for fair value movements" Yertain unrealised and non#Yash items" 
and other items that are not in the ordinary Yourse of the business or are Yafital in nature$

($  Assuming no material deterioration to existing eYonomiY Yonditions$

)$ AYguisitions" divestments and ma`or remixes at 9hadstone and GueensPlapa$

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 201708



Living  
our values

“We bring our values to  
life through the actions  
we take and the 
experiences we create – 
we embrace difference,  
we always collaborate, 
and we imagine a better 
way – and we believe in 
the power of the collective 
to achieve our purpose 
of enriching community 
experiences.”

Damian Zahra
General Manager People and Culture
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Achievements and focus

 FY17 achievements FY18 focus

Intensive asset 
management

• ?mfroved oYYufanYy to //$+�

• AYtive fortfolio remixing" Yomfleting 1"(76 leasing deals  
with an average leasing sfread(a) of 1$/�

• ;stablished Yross#funYtional woraing groufs foYused  
on imfroving Yonsumer and retailer exferienYes

• Strong growth in anYillary inYome of 6$*� driven by Yasual  
mall leasing" retail media and Yar faraing 

• Continue to improve the retail offer across  
the portfolio

• ?nYrease anYillary inYome revenue

• ?mflement initiatives to drive further Yentre 
effiYienYies

Development • 9omfleted ma`or redevelofment of 9hadstone inYluding first 
B;GEBAN:® :isYovery 9entre in the southern hemisfhere

• 9ommenYed ma`or develofment of The Glen 

In July 2017

• 9omfleted the first retail stage of Candurah Forum 
development fully leased 

• 9ommenYed YonstruYtion of :FE Perth 

• 9omflete Candurah Forum develofment  
on time and on budget

• Caterially advanYe The Glen and :FE Perth 
fro`eYts

• 9ommenYe 9hadstone >otel fro`eYt

• Finalise sYofe and YommenYe ma`or 
redevelofment of Galleria and refurbishment  
and remixing fro`eYt at Hoselands

• 9ommenYe ma`or remixes at 9hadstone  
and GueensPlapa

• AdvanYe seleYt fro`eYts in the shadow fifeline

Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Chadstone, VIC
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 FY17 achievements FY18 focus

Acquisition/
divestment

• :ivested interests in 1& retail assets for �+.6 million  
reÇeYting a ($)� fremium to booa values(b)

• AYguired remaining (+� interest in strongly ferforming  
:FE South Mharf 

• 9ontinue to review aYguisition offortunities

• :ivest t�)&& million of non#Yore assets

Capital • ?ssued �*&& million of Australian medium term notes  
and refaid FY1. debt exfiries 

• Standard � Poor¾s raised LiYinity¾s Yredit rating to ½A%stable¾ 
from ½A#%fositive¾

• :elivered on wholesale fund ob`eYtives" inYluding  
Yomfleting Gateway Plapa redevelofment and YommenYing 
Cidland Gate redevelofment 

• Strong ferformanYe aYross investor sustainability surveys(Y)

• Eftimise the Yost of debt" while affrofriately 
managing debt diversity" exfiry frofile and  
maraet risa

• :eliver wholesale fund ob`eYtives

• Ktilise sustainability survey outYomes to 
strengthen business and sustainability fraYtiYes

People • ?mfroved our emfloyee engagement sYore in aey foYus areas 

• BaunYhed �sheimagines Yamfaign as fart of our Yommitment  
to gender diversity

• Transitioned Celbourne team into new offiYe with aYtivity#based 
and agile woraing

• ;stablished woraflaYe giving and volunteering frograms

• Caintain high engagement sYore of over 7&�

• ?mflement diversity frograms relating to mental 
health and age

Real estate • AYhieved Green Star PerformanYe fortfolio rating of ) Stars 

• SuYYessfully trialled 1&&aw solar installation at ;llenbrooa 9entral

• HeduYed Yarbon intensity(d) by .� 

• 9omfleted Ylimate risa assessment aYross whole fortfolio  
and aYross aey business froYesses

• :evelof a low#Yarbon target for LiYinity 

• HeduYe defendenYe on eleYtriYity grid through 
energy effiYienYy measures and fursuing  
solar roll#out 

• 9ontinue to embed Ylimate#risa Yonsiderations 
into aey business froYesses

Data and 
Systems

• 9omfleted YonneYtion of Yentres and Yorforate offiYes  
to single high#sfeed digital networa

• 9ommenYed YolleYtion of information on Yonsumer behaviour

• ;stablished a ½data laae¾ to fool a range of data (aYYounting" 
froferty metriYs and real#time Yonsumer and oferational data)

• ;stablished seYurity governanYe framewora and develofed  
an information seYurity management system to strengthen 
Yyber seYurity

• Continue to collect and analyse consumer data

• Standardise reforting of data

• ;stablish digital solutions for Yonsumers and 
retailers

• ?nvestigate other digital initiatives

Brand and 
relationships

• ;stablished LiYinity Yentre brand framewora

• ;stablished three#year fartnershif with BeaYon Foundation 
foYused on unemfloyed and disengaged youth 

• Kndertooa internal Yommunity grants frogram" where 
�1&&"&&& was distributed at a Yentre level to form loYal 
fartnershifs that address youth#related needs in eaYh 
catchment

• Sfent over �)&&"&&& on soYial enterfrises" sufforting  
the emfloyment of )& feofle

• Kse LiYinity data and insights to tailor Yentre 
brands to our Yonsumers

• ?mfrove retailer satisfaYtion sYores

• 9ontinue roll#out of Yommunity investment 
frogram at Yorforate and Yentre level with 
BeaYon Foundation

(a) The varianYe between the rent at the end of a lease and the rent reYeived over the same sfaYe for a new lease$

(b) ;xYludes transaYtion Yosts and inYludes YontraYts exYhanged for the sale of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh is exfeYted to settle in November (&17$

(Y)  :ow @ones Sustainability ?ndiYes" 9:P and Global Heal ;state Sustainability BenYhmara$  

Recent sustainability survey results 
viYinity$Yom$au

(d) FY17 Yomfared to FY16 on a fer sgm basis$

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 2017 11
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Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Our performance 
Key performance metrics 

Performance metric 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16 Change Page 
Financials
Statutory net frofit after tax(a) $1,583.6m �/6&$/m �6(($7m 1*
Knderlying earnings fer seYurity(a) 18.7 cents 1/$1 Yents :own ($1� 1*
:istribution fer seYurity(a) 17.3 cents 17$7 Yents :own ($)� 1*
9omfarable net froferty inYome growth(a)"(b) 2.5% )$+� n$a$ 1+
Total return (a) 15.5% 1($.� n$a$ +)
Total securityholder return (a) (17.7%) (&$*� n$a$ +)
Portfolio
Number of retail assets(Y) 74 .1 :own 7(l)

EYYufanYy rate(Y) 99.5% //$*� Kf 1& bfs 1*
Total moving annual turnover (CAT)(Y) $16.2b �16$7b n$a$ 1*
SfeYialty store CAT(Y)"(d) (fer sgm) $9,429 �.".6+ Kf 6$*� 1*
EYYufanYy Yost(Y) 14.6% 1*$6� # 1*
Meighted average Yafitalisation rate(Y) 5.61% +$/+� Tightened )* bfs
Balance Sheet
Total assets (Y) $16.7b �1+$.b Kf +$1� 1+
Net tangible assets fer seYurity(Y) $2.82 �($+/ Kf .$7� 1+
Net asset value per security (Y) $2.97 �($7* Kf .$)� 1+
Debt
Gearing(Y)"(e) 24.7% (+$/� HeduYed 1(& bfs 1+
Meighted average Yost of debt(a)"(f) 4.2% *$&�  Kf (& bfs 
:ebt duration(Y)"(g) 5.3 years +$) years # 16
Profortion of debt hedged(Y) 90% /1� :own 1�
People
;mfloyee engagement sYore(Y) 71% 66� Kf +� )&
Women in leadership (Y)"(h) 36% )1� Kf +� )1
TH?FH(a)"(i) (fer million hours woraed) 3.84 +$67 ?mfroved by 1$.) )&
Sustainability
Community investment (a)"(`) $1.8m �1$)m Kf �&$+m (.
Green Star PerformanYe fortfolio rating(Y) 3 Stars ( Stars Kf 1 Star (7
NAB;HS ;nergy rating(Y)"(a) 3.7 Stars )$* Stars Kf &$) Stars (7
NAB;HS Mater rating(Y)"(a) 3.2 Stars ($/ Stars Kf &$) Stars (7
;nergy intensity (fer sgm)(a) 303MJ )() C@ ?mfroved 6� (7
9arbon intensity ¹ sYofe 1 and ( (fer sgm)(a) 71kg CO2-e 77ag 9E(#e ?mfroved .� (7
Waste diversion rate (a) 36% )+� ?mfroved 1� (7

(a)  For the 1( months to )& @une$

(b)  ;xYludes aYguisitions" divestments and develofment#imfaYted Yentres and is YalYulated on a liae#for#liae basis versus the frior Yorresfonding feriod$

(Y)  As at )& @une$

(d)  9omfarable$ ;xYludes divestments and develofment#imfaYted Yentres in aYYordanYe with S99A guidelines$ 

(e)  9alYulated as drawn debt at Note 7(a) of the FinanYial Hefort" net of Yash" divided by total tangible assets exYluding Yash" finanYe lease assets and derivative finanYial assets$

(f)  Average for frior 1( months and inYlusive of margins" drawn line fees and establishment fees$

(g)  Based on faYility limits$

(h)  ;xeYutive 9ommittee" senior leaders and senior managers$

(i)  Total reYordable in`ury freguenYy rate0 the number of lost time in`uries and mediYal treatment in`uries for eaYh million hours woraed$

(`)  ?nYludes a Yombination of Yash and in#aind Yontributions" aYYounting for assoYiated management time and fart of the oferational sfend on soYial enterfrises in 
aYYordanYe with the BBG framewora$

(a)  Portfolio average YalYulated in aYYordanYe with NAB;HS guidelines and inYludes Yentres with Yurrent aYYredited ratings at )& @une (&17$ Hefer to the Portfolio NAB;HS 
;nergy and Mater Hating ¹ (&17 at viYinity$Yom$au%sustainability for the list of Yentres inYluded in the average$

(l)  LiYinity retained fartial interests in two of the nine retail assets divested during FY17$ Note0 9ontraYts were exYhanged for the sale of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh  
is exfeYted to settle in November (&17$
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Enriching 
communities

“We are out in the centre 
every day, alongside our 
retail partners, creating 
the best retail experience 
we can for our consumers. 
We engage with our 
communities through 
informal and formal 
interactions, through 
activities that resonate 
and by providing attractive 
destinations where they can 
connect. Most importantly, 
we greet them with a smile.”

Gabe North-Haney
Centre Manager, Bayside Centre
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Operations 
LiYinity has signifiYant sYale and fresenYe 
aYross Australia$ At )& @une (&17" we 
had .* retail assets under management" 
with a Yombined value of �(+$) billion" 
whiYh generated �17$/ billion in annual 
sales from .")&& leases aYross ($. million 
sgm of gross lettable area (GBA)$ LiYinity 
has an ownershif interest in 7* of these 
assets1" bringing the value of its direYt 
fortfolio to �1+$+ billion$ This seYtion 
focuses on the performance of the direct 
fortfolio whiYh generates the ma`ority of 
LiYinity¾s total inYome$

Me Yontinued to frogress our fortfolio 
enhanYement strategy during FY17" 
divesting interests in 1& retail assets(, 
aYguiring the remaining interests in two 
assets we fartly owned" and Yomfleting 
two develofment fro`eYts inYluding the 
exfansion of 9hadstone$

Financial performance 
The following summarised segment inYome statement is extraYted from Note 1 of the FinanYial Hefort$

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Property Investment segment
Net property income 916.7 /+)$6

Strategic Partnership segment
Partnershifs and other inYome 66.0 66$1
Total income 982.7 1"&1/$7
9orforate overheads (net of internal froferty management fees) (74.9) (.&$.)
Net interest exfense (166.0) (1.1$*)
Underlying earnings 741.8 7+7$+
Hent lost from undertaaing develofments (28.9) (1.$&)
Funds from operations 712.9 7)/$+
Proferty revaluation inYrements 906.7 7))$&
?mfairment and amortisation of intangible assets (3.0) ((/.$))
Ether items (33.0) ((1)$))
Net profit after tax 1,583.6 /6&$/
;PS (Yents) 40.0 (*$)
Knderlying ;PS (Yents) 18.7 1/$1
:istribution fer seYurity (:PS) (Yents) 17.3 17$7
Payout ratio (:PS as a � of underlying ;PS) (�) 92.3 /($+
Adjusted funds from operations (AFFO) 641.5 667$*
:istribution as a ferYentage of AFFE (�) 106.8 1&+$&

1$ ?nYludes :FE Brisbane business and exYludes :FE Perth (under YonstruYtion)$

($ ?nYludes YontraYts exYhanged for the sale of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh is exfeYted to settle in November (&17$

)$ The varianYe between the rent at the end of a lease and the rent reYeived over the same sfaYe for a new lease$

*$ 9omfarable$ ;xYludes divestments and develofment#imfaYted Yentres in aYYordanYe with S99A guidelines$

Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Key highlights and commentary on our operations include:
• Portfolio occupancy remains high at 99.5% – 9omfared to //$*� reforted at @une (&16$

• Average leasing spread3 of 1.9% – Kf from &$+� in FY16$ A strong result given the 
weaaer sales growth environment$ Ef the 1"(76 leasing deals Yomfleted" +)� were 
renewals with an average leasing sfread of )$7�$ 

• Total MAT of $16.2 billion – Kf &$*� over the fast 1( months* but down from ($1� 
reforted over FY16" with only the sufermaraet store Yategory showing an imfrovement in 
the growth rate over the year$

• Specialty store MAT productivity4 of $9,429/sqm – Kf 6$*� from �.".6+ at @une (&16" 
reÇeYting both imfrovements in the froduYtivity of sfeYialty stores and fortfolio Yomfosition$

• Specialty store MAT growth4 of 0.5% – :own from )$&� reforted over FY16" reÇeYting 
the weaaer Australian retail sales environment$

• Specialty store occupancy costs4 of 14.6% – KnYhanged over the year$

Our portfolio 
Page ((
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Aey commentary on financial performance0
• Net property income (NPI) down $36.9 million or 3.9% ¹ A solid result Yonsidering 

the imfaYt of selling �1$7 billion of assets sinYe 1 @uly (&1+$ 9omfarable1 portfolio 
NP? was uf ($+� reÇeYting fixed rental inYreases" growth in anYillary inYome and a 
foYus on exfense Yontrol offset by inYreased vaYanYies during the year as a result  
of administrations$ 

• Corporate overheads down $5.9 million or 7.3% ¹ Strong foYus on merger synergies 
and driving oferational effiYienYies$ 

• Net interest expense down $15.4 million or 8.5% ¹ Primarily driven by the timing  
of asset sales and average debt levels over FY17 being lower than the frior year$ 

• Asset valuation gains of $906.7 million ¹ HeÇeYts the strength of investor demand 
for guality retail assets" as well as inYome growth$ Ever the feriod" LiYinity¾s weighted 
average Yafitalisation rate tightened to +$61� ()& @une (&160 +$/*�)$ Net valuation 
gain for the feriod was �.+($+ million$(

Note 1 – Segment information 
Page 7)

Financial position
The following summarised balanYe sheet is based on the full finanYial statements$

As at
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
9ash and Yash eguivalents 42.2 +($.
?nvestment froferties held for sale 33.5 ()($1
?nvestment froferties 15,633.5 1*"*(6$6
?ntangible assets 599.4 6&($*
Ether assets 350.2 +)+$6
Total assets 16,658.8 1+".*/$+
Borrowings 3,893.7 )"/*($(
Ether liabilities 1,017.4 1"&+.$)
Total liabilities 4,911.1 +"&&&$+
Net assets 11,747.7 1&".*/$&
Net tangible assets fer seYurity (NTA) (�) 2.82 ($+/
Net asset value fer seYurity (NAL) (�) 2.97 ($7*
Gearing (a) (�) 24.7 (+$/

(a)  9alYulated as drawn debt at Note 7(a) of the FinanYial Hefort" net of Yash" divided by total tangible assets exYluding Yash" finanYe lease assets and derivative finanYial assets$

Aey commentary on financial position0
• Investment properties up $1,008.3 million ¹ Bargely driven by valuation gains" 

develofment exfenditure and the aYguisition of interests in two assets" fartly offset  
by the disfosal of interests in nine) assets$ Hefer to Note *(b) of the FinanYial Hefort  
for further information$

• Borrowings down $48.5 million ¹ Asset sale froYeeds of �+*($6 million) offset  
by aYguisitions and develofment exfenditure over the feriod$

• Gearing down to 24.7% ¹ :eYrease reÇeYts the strengthened balanYe sheet$

Balance Sheet 
Page 6.

Asset valuation gains  
of $906.7 million reflects 
the strength of investor 
demand for quality  
retail assets, as well as 
income growth.

1$  9omfarable fortfolio exYludes aYguisitions" divestments and develofment#imfaYted Yentres and is YalYulated 
on a liae#for#liae basis versus the frior Yorresfonding feriod$

($  9alYulated as the aggregate net valuation gain for the two six#month feriods$ The net valuation gain exYludes 
statutory aYYounting ad`ustments and assets divested during eaYh feriod$

)$ ;xYludes the divestment of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh is exfeYted to settle in November (&17$
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Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Capital management
LiYinity¾s balanYe sheet Yontinued to 
strengthen over the feriod$ The Grouf 
diversified its debt Yafital sourYes" 
reduYed gearing and further smoothed the 
exfiry frofile$ Together with oferational 
milestones achieved, this supported a 
deYision by Standard � Poor¾s to ufgrade 
its Yredit rating of LiYinity to ½A¾ with a 
½stable¾ outlooa$ Coody¾s also reaffirmed 
its ½A(¾ Yredit rating with a ½stable¾ outlooa 
in the feriod$

Ever the year" we issued �(&& million 
of 1&#year and �(&& million of 7#year 
Australian dollar medium term notes, 
refaid our FY1. debt exfiries and 
extended the tenor of �1$+ billion of 
future bana debt exfiries$ Mith gearing 
of (*$7� and a weighted average debt 
duration of +$) years" LiYinity is well 
positioned to capitalise on opportunities 
to support future portfolio enhancement 
and other initiatives to Yreate long#term 
value and sustainable earnings growth  
for seYurityholders$

Tax
LiYinity is aYtive in managing the imfaYt 
that Yhanges to tax law Yan have on our 
capital structure and future returns to 
our seYurityholders$ LiYinity Yontinues to 
engage with Federal Treasury in its review 
of the taxation regime afflying to stafled 
struYtures and their seYurityholders$

Tax transparency 
Page *&

With gearing of 24.7% and a weighted average debt 
duration of 5.3 years, Vicinity is well positioned 
to capitalise on opportunities to support future 
portfolio enhancement.

Beyond
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Shaping  
better 
communities

“Our goal is to help shape 
better communities, 
whether it is providing a 
safe and attractive place 
for locals to connect, 
creating low-carbon and 
resilient destinations, or 
generating economic and 
social benefits by investing 
in our communities.”

Melissa Schulz
General Manager, Sustainability
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Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Our management of risk
Eur Board and management reYognise 
that effeYtive risa management and 
internal Yontrols are an integral fart of 
sound management fraYtiYe and good 
Yorforate governanYe" and are essential 
to exeYuting on our strategiY foYus of 
delivering long#term value and sustainable 
growth to our seYurityholders$ 

LiYinity has dediYated risa" YomflianYe 
and sustainability teams that are 
resfonsible for the ongoing review and 
monitoring of the effeYtiveness of grouf#
wide YomflianYe and risa management 
systems" and ensuring that affrofriate 
YomflianYe and risa mitigation measures 
are in flaYe to manage risa within agreed 
risa affetite$

Throughout the reforting feriod" 
LiYinity had in flaYe an enterfrise risa 
management framewora and system  
of internal controls to ensure that  
assets are protected and that material 
risas are froaYtively identified" managed 
and reforted$ 

LiYinity has also undertaaen a formal 
materiality assessment to identify our 
long#term eYonomiY" environmental and 
soYial sustainability risas$ This froYess 
engaged both internal and external 
staaeholders to ensure that we resfond 
to issues that matter most to Vicinity 
and our staaeholders$ Hesults of this 
assessment have been integrated into 
LiYinity¾s enterfrise risa frofile$

Material risks that could affect 
achievement of Vicinity’s  
financial prospects

Development delivery 
Vicinity’s development pipeline contains 
a number of Yurrent and frosfeYtive 
develofment fro`eYts$ There is a risa that 
develofment fro`eYts are not delivered in 
aYYordanYe with Board#affroved targets 
due to delays, increased costs and failure 
to realise targeted rents or valuation$ 

LiYinity¾s mitigation strategy for this risa 
involves rigorous fro`eYt flanning and 
management inYluding an extensive 

iterative researYh and flanning froYess" 
review and risa assessment by a third 
farty" with oversight and affrovals 
reguired frogressively by an internal 
?nvestment 9ommittee and the Board" 
sub`eYt to fro`eYt Yost$ :evelofment 
fro`eYts are also regularly monitored 
against sYhedule" budget and sYofe  
by a fro`eYt Yontrol grouf$

Development 
Page ()

Retail market conditions 
The ma`ority of LiYinity¾s earnings are 
derived from rental inYome$ ?f retail 
maraet Yonditions are subdued for an 
extended feriod" this has the fotential 
to imfaYt tenant viability" vaYanYy rates" 
rental growth and our frofitability$ 

LiYinity¾s affroaYh to mitigating this 
risa involves imfroving the guality 
of our portfolio to ensure that our 
assets remain relevant to consumers 
and retailers$ This may involve tenant 
remixes" develofments" divestments and 
aYguisitions$ At an asset level" LiYinity¾s 
intensive asset management affroaYh 
foYuses on Yreating Yomfelling Yonsumer 
exferienYes" imfroving amenities and 
tailoring a Yentre¾s retail offer to the 
wants and needs of the loYal Yommunity$ 
These initiatives are designed to drive 
greater Yonsumer visitation" whiYh should 
translate into higher sales and rental 
growth$ 

Our portfolio 
Page ((

Structural changes in the retail sector 
The retail seYtor is Yonstantly evolving$ 
9onsumer behaviour and shoffing 
freferenYes are Yhanging" inYluding 
when, where, why and how consumers 
shof$ 9hanges suYh as the inÇux of 
international retailers into Australia, the 
role of digital teYhnology and the growth 
in online retailing Yontinue to inÇuenYe 
how LiYinity oferates its business$ 
Amazon’s announcement that it will 
move into the Australian maraet is also 
frediYted to have an inÇuenYe on the 

domestiY retail landsYafe but the extent 
of its inÇuenYe will defend on the froduYt 
and distribution model Yhosen" and how 
Yonsumers and existing retailers resfond$

LiYinity¾s mitigation strategy is to Yontinue 
to research, monitor, anticipate and adapt 
to these trends$ Eur Yentre management" 
leasing and develofment teams wora 
together to Yreate a develofment master 
flan" a five#year strategiY leasing flan 
and a strategiY asset flan for eaYh 
asset$ These flans faYtor in Yonsumer 
preferences, development and product 
opportunities, tenant renewal and 
reflaYement strategies" and rent or 
Yafital reguirements$ The �($& billion 
fifeline (LiYinity share0 �&$/ billion) 
of develofment fro`eYts is foYused on 
ensuring our Yentres adaft to struYtural 
Yhanges and remain relevant to our 
Yonsumers" retailers and Yommunities$ 
LiYinity has also been aYtively remixing 
the tenant composition of its centres to 
inYrease the weighting towards food and 
serviYes and away from mid#tier affarel 
retailers in line with Yhanging Yonsumer 
freferenYes$ This overall strategy is 
sufflemented by ongoing and more 
agile efforts to develof better Yonsumer 
exferienYes whiYh leverage our fhysiYal 
assets and staaeholder relationshifs$

LiYinity¾s digital strategy is foYused on 
building a seamlessly integrated fhysiYal 
and digital retail froferty flatform to 
assist in Yreating unigue and relevant 
Yonsumer exferienYes and in delivering 
Yomfelling value for our retailers$ This 
year, Vicinity completed its connectivity 
fro`eYt to YonneYt all of its Yentres and 
offiYes to the one high#sfeed digital 
networa with MiFi Yafabilities$ This will 
frovide benefits for LiYinity and our 
Yonsumers" retailers and Yommunities$

Development 
Page ()

Intensive asset management 
Page (7

Digital 
Page )(
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Capital allocation and the 
achievement of an optimal property 
portfolio composition 
?n order to meet LiYinity¾s return 
exfeYtations" it is YritiYal that our froferty 
portfolio composition is optimised and 
that Yafital is alloYated frudently$ 
LiYinity¾s fortfolio Yomfosition along 
with any developments, divestments and 
aYguisitions undertaaen Yan signifiYantly 
imfaYt LiYinity¾s total return$ 

Vicinity has clear investment criteria for 
evaluating assets" with gualitative and 
guantitative faYtors used to assess asset 
guality and frosfeYtive ferformanYe$ 
LiYinity ensures strong governanYe and 
oversight of Yafital alloYation deYisions 
through its internal ?nvestment 9ommittee$

Our portfolio 
Page ((

Health and safety 
LiYinity¾s oferations exfose our team" 
contractors, retailers and consumers  
to the risa of in`ury or illness$ ?n addition" 
a health and safety incident could affect 
LiYinity¾s refutation" sub`eYt it to Ylaims 
for finanYial Yomfensation or have 
regulatory YonseguenYes$ 

Me are Yommitted to froviding an 
in`ury#free environment for all of our 
staaeholders in line with our belief that 
everyone has the right to go home safe 
and healthy$ LiYinity has a dediYated 
health and safety team that maintains  
our health and safety management 
system to support the provision of a safe 
and healthy environment$ This inYludes 
froviding induYtion and eduYation" the use 
of Yomfetent YontraYtors" regular reviews 
of our froYedures and stringent health  
and safety assessments frior to affointing 
principal contractors for development  
and asset refurbishment woras$ 

LiYinity maintains a Yrisis and emergenYy 
management system whiYh frovides  
the framewora for LiYinity to resfond  
to a ma`or inYident or Yrisis oYYurring  
at one of its centres, development sites 
or offiYes$ This system is sufforted by  
a training and eduYation frogram aYross  

our Yentres" inYluding the use of desatof  
and simulated emergenYy management 
exerYises$ :ebriefs and fost inYident 
reviews are YonduYted after any signifiYant 
incident or event, in order to assess 
the effectiveness of the system and to 
identify and implement any opportunities 
for imfrovement$

Our people 
Page )&

Funding and liquidity 
LiYinity uses debt as an imfortant 
sourYe of funding for ongoing oferations" 
develofments and aYguisitions$ There is 
a risa that aYYess to debt funding is not 
available at the affrofriate friYe or Yannot 
be aYYessed in the reguired timeframes 
to suffort the ongoing management  
and develofment of our business$ 

Funding and liguidity risa is managed 
through a frudent Yafital management 
fhilosofhy$ Aey attributes of this 
philosophy are the maintenance of a 
strong balanYe sheet with moderate 
gearing ()& @une (&170 (*$7�)" 
freservation of an investment grade  
Yredit rating" diversifiYation of debt 
sourYes and forward flanning to address 
ufYoming debt maturities$ LiYinity also 
has foliYies in flaYe to regulate the level 
of exfosure to interest rate risa and fully 
hedges its exfosure to foreign YurrenYy 
denominated debt$

Capital management 
Page 16

Cyber security 
Ever reYent years" there has been 
signifiYant growth globally in the number" 
sofhistiYation and severity of Yyber#attaYas$ 
BreaYh or failure of LiYinity¾s information 
teYhnology systems Yould exfose it to 
finanYial loss" disruftion or damage to 
oferations" and refutational damage$ 

LiYinity has a strong foYus on maintaining 
and imfroving its organisational resilienYe 
and has developed an information 
seYurity management system" whiYh 
inYludes strategies for managing Yyber 

risa$ LiYinity has an information seYurity 
manager leading a frogram of wora to 
imfrove its seYurity maturity" YommenYing 
with development of a security 
governanYe framewora" defloyment  
of seYurity tools" training and awareness 
for users, and assessments of third party 
and networa seYurity$

Climate change
9limate Yhange fresents both direYt 
and indireYt risas for LiYinity now and 
inYreasingly over the longer term$ ;xtreme 
weather events such as heatwaves, 
YyYlones and Çooding inYrease the 
fhysiYal vulnerability of our Yentres and 
their communities, which may impact our 
operational costs, asset values, consumer 
visitation and retail sales$ LiYinity also 
aYanowledges the role we need to flay  
in transitioning to a low#Yarbon fortfolio  
to limit our imfaYt on the Ylimate$ 

Me resfond to Ylimate Yhange by foYusing 
on building a resilient and low#Yarbon 
fortfolio that Yan withstand long#term 
fhysiYal and non#fhysiYal risas" while 
sufforting our Yonsumers and retailers" 
and inYreasing our energy self#suffiYienYy$ 

?n FY17" we Yomfleted a fortfolio#
wide Ylimate risa assessment and 
embedded Yonsideration of Ylimate 
risa into aey business froYesses suYh 
as risa management" develofment" 
asset flanning" Yafital alloYation and 
transaYtion deYisions" maaing our business 
more resilient over the longer term$  
Me are also in the froYess of setting a 
long#term low#Yarbon target for LiYinity 
and develofing a fathway to aYhieve  
this target through a Yombination of 
energy effiYienYy and onsite renewable 
energy generation$ 

Better business 
Page (7

CDP submissions 
viYinity$Yom$au
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Our Operating and Financial Review continued

Engaging with our 
stakeholders 
At LiYinity" we rely on strong relationshifs 
with our staaeholders to oferate our 
business suYYessfully and deliver 
our strategy$ ProaYtive and ongoing 
engagement enables us to understand 
our staaeholders¾ wants and needs" gain 
better insights into material business 
risas" and also identify offortunities  

Stakeholder materiality

Our objectives Material interests of stakeholders Our response

Consumers 9reate unigue and 
relevant exferienYes 
through our destinations" 
and shafe better 
communities

• Affrofriate tenant mix to serviYe Yonsumers 
wants and needs

• Providing Yonvenient and safe  
shoffing exferienYes

• :evelofment ¹ fage ()

• ?ntensive asset management ¹ fage (7

• :igital ¹ fage )(

Retailers :eliver Yomfelling 
destinations and value 
to support the success 
of retail operations 

• ?nYreasing Yonsumer visitation and dwell time 

• Suffortive Yentre management and leasing 
services that help retailers to succeed

• SuYYessful maraeting initiatives

• AYguisitions ¹ fage ((

• :evelofment ¹ fage ()

• ?ntensive asset management ¹ fage (7

• :igital ¹ fage )(

Securityholders 9reate long#term value  
and sustainable growth

• Ceeting and exYeeding finanYial exfeYtations

• Hesfonding to Yhanging Yonsumer trends

• SuYYessfully delivering our develofment 
pipeline

• Caintaining a strong refutation through 
regular and transfarent disYlosure

• FinanYial ferformanYe ¹ fage 1*

• 9afital management ¹ fage 16

• Tax transfarenYy ¹ fage *&

• AYguisitions ¹ fage ((

• :ivestments ¹ fage ((

• :evelofment ¹ fage ()

• ?ntensive asset management ¹ fage (7

• (&17 9orforate GovernanYe Statement ¹  
viYinity$Yom$au

Strategic 
partners

;nsure stable and  
growing returns

• :eliver stable and growing returns 

• Hesfonding to Yhanging Yonsumer trends

• Providing an affrofriate level of timely 
reforting

• :elivering on investment ob`eYtives

• :evelofment ¹ fage ()

• ?ntensive asset management ¹ fage (7

• :igital ¹ fage )(

Our people Suffort a highly 
engaged team that 
embraYes our values" 
and deliver on  
our strategy

• Create a diverse and inclusive culture that 
fromotes egual offortunities and meaningful 
exferienYes

• Flexibility to balanYe frofessional and 
personal needs to ensure health and 
wellbeing

• Bearning and Yareer develofment 
opportunities 

• Eur feofle ¹ fage )&

Suppliers 9reate long#term 
relationships, and  
maae a fositive imfaYt 
on our communities 

• Building Yollaborative and mutually  
benefiYial fartnershifs

• Timely payment for services

• Fair business fraYtiYes

• Shafing better Yommunities ¹ fage (.

• Eur suffliers ¹ viYinity$Yom$au

to Yreate shared value ¹ outYomes that 
are benefiYial to both LiYinity and our 
staaeholders$ 

Me engage with our staaeholders in many 
ways throughout the year to understand 
their exfeYtations of LiYinity$ The following 
table outlines LiYinity¾s aey staaeholders" 
our ob`eYtives for those staaeholders and 
their material interests in their interactions 
with Vicinity; all of which helps to shape 
our business aYtivities$

Proactive and ongoing 
engagement enables 
us to understand our 
stakeholders’ wants 
and needs, gain better 
insights into material 
business risks, and also 
identify opportunities  
to create shared value.
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Partnering  
with  
retailers
“We partner with our 
retailers to better 
understand how we can 
deliver them compelling 
value, while helping them 
to achieve success by 
creating mutually beneficial 
outcomes, ultimately,  
to enhance the consumer 
experience.”

Simone Dirckze
National Retailer Experience 
Manager, Marketing
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Vicinity’s investment 
criteria
Vicinity considers a range of 
criteria to evaluate an asset’s 
investment potential. This 
provides a framework with which 
to benchmark the composition 
of the portfolio every six months 
and also for reference when 
reviewing potential acquisition 
opportunities.

Key criteria include:

• forecast future total returns

• catchment fundamentals

• competition

• longer term resilienYe  
(inYluding Ylimate Yhange  
and e#YommerYe)

• development potential, and

• sales froduYtivity and growth$

Our Portfolio

As one of the largest owners and managers 
of retail assets in Australia, our portfolio 
frovides signifiYant offortunity to Yreate 
shared value for our staaeholders$ To do 
this we have an ongoing foYus on0

• enhanYing our fortfolio guality 
and Yomfosition through targeted 
aYguisitions" divesting assets that no 
longer meet our investment Yriteria"  
and develofing" refurbishing and 
intensively managing our assets 

• strategiYally investing in initiatives  
that enhanYe the sustainability and 
resilienYe of our Yentres and strengthen 
their local communities, and 

• delivering our strategy to Yreate  
unigue and relevant exferienYes for  
our Yonsumers" deliver Yomfelling  
value for our retailers and strive  
for exYellenYe in everything we do$

Acquisitions
?n Afril (&17" we tooa full Yontrol of 
:FE South Mharf in Celbourne by 
aYguiring the remaining (+� interest for 
�1*1$) million1 following Yomfletion of 
YonstruYtion of a multi#deYa Yar fara$ 
The asset has delivered strong returns 
and has the potential to continue to 
strengthen over time with the exfansion 
of conference facilities currently underway 
at the ad`aYent Celbourne 9onvention 
and ;xhibition 9entre$

1$ ;xYluding transaYtion Yosts$

($ ?nYluding YontraYts exYhanged for the sale of TerraYe 9entral" NSM whiYh is due to settle in November (&17$

?n August (&16" we settled the  
aYguisition of the remaining +&� interest 
in Bentons Sguare for �).$) million$1  
The Neighbourhood 9entre is loYated  
on LiYtoria¾s Cornington Peninsula with  
a strongly ferforming sufermaraet$ 

Divestments
Me Yontinued to refine our fortfolio 
Yomfosition during the year with the 
divestment of interests in 1& retail assets 
for a Yombined value of �+.6 million1"(, at 
a ($)� fremium to frevailing booa values$ 

Given the differenYe between froferty 
yields and borrowing Yosts" divesting these 
assets has been dilutive to earnings frior 
to the reinvestment of any sale froYeeds$ 
>owever" we believe the short#term 
earnings dilution from the asset sales  
is outweighed by the long#term benefits 
of an enhanYed fortfolio generating more 
robust and higher#guality earnings growth" 
and a strengthened balanYe sheet whiYh 
frovides signifiYant headroom for investing 
in our development pipeline and other 
investment offortunities$

Eur fortfolio is reviewed every six  
months against our investment Yriteria$ 
Ever the Yourse of FY1." we intend  
to divest affroximately �)&& million  
of non#Yore assets$

DFO South Wharf, VIC
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Australia’s premier 
portfolio of DFO  
Outlet Centres
Vicinity is the proud owner and 
manager of Australia’s premier 
portfolio of DFO Outlet Centres with 
interests in six DFOs at a total value  
of $1.4 billion, representing 9%  
of our direct portfolio.

The DFO concept focuses on  
offering consumers a wide range 
of quality branded products at 
discounted prices.

Our DFOs continue to perform 
strongly, operating at full occupancy 
the majority of the time, driving 
strong leasing spreads and income 
growth. Over the seven years of 
Vicinity’s ownership, the DFO portfolio 
has provided a total return of 
approximately 15.3% per annum.

During the year, we acquired the 
remaining 25% interest of DFO South 
Wharf. In July 2017, we commenced 
construction of Perth’s first DFO, in 
partnership with Perth Airport Pty Ltd, 
which we anticipate will experience 
the same success as our East Coast 
centres.

At DFO Brisbane we have achieved 
significant improvements since 
commencing management of the 
asset in June 2016. We quickly 
introduced Vicinity’s intensive asset 
management approach including 
lifting basic operational compliance 
and standards, improving centre 
marketing and the tenancy mix 
generating positive leasing spreads, 
and driving additional ancillary 
income. This has delivered strong 
results, with annual consumer traffic 
up 21% and MAT up 12%. 

Estimated FY18 
commencements

Estimated FY19 
commencements

Current

Vicinity share Partner share TotalKey ($m):

The Myer Centre Brisbane, QLD

500

300

120

150

250

The Glen, VIC

Mandurah Forum, WA

DFO Perth, WA

Chadstone Hotel, VIC

Roselands, NSW(a)

Midland Gate, WA

Galleria, WA

TBA

460

350

75

60

75

230

175

100

Note0 Timing and Yosts of identified fro`eYts are indiYative only and may Yhange as fro`eYts advanYe$

(a) Caster flanning Yontinues$

Development pipeline

Development 
Eur �($& billion develofment fifeline 
(LiYinity share0 �&$/ billion) remains an 
imfortant driver of fortfolio enhanYement$ 
:evelofments enable LiYinity to build 
sustainable and inYlusive lifestyle 
destinations, introduce the latest retail 
YonYefts and revitalise our offer ¹ 
enhanYing the overall retail exferienYe$ 
This in turn helfs to imfrove the guality 
of our inYome streams through inYreased 
maraet share and sales growth$

Strong frogress has been made aYross a 
number of fro`eYts over the fast year$ The 
Yomfletion of the ma`or redevelofment 
of 9hadstone" together with the Yentre¾s 
Yontinued strong trading ferformanYe" 
showcases Vicinity’s development and 
asset management exfertise$
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Development continued
FY17 completed projects

Chadstone
Hetail in Australia has been taaen to the 
next level with the Yomfletion of the 
�666 million (LiYinity share0 �))) million) 
ma`or redevelofment of 9hadstone in 
FY17" Yreating Australia¾s fremier retail" 
entertainment and dining destination and 
reinforYing the Yentre as one of the tof 
retail assets globally$ 

The northern end of the centre has 
been transformed with the Yreation of 
an entertainment" leisure and dining 
precinct around a central atrium, spanned 
by an iYoniY glass Yolumn#free gridshell 
roof" the first of its aind in Australia$ The 
develofment offers an exfanded luxury 
mall and new large#format international 
Çagshif stores inYluding >�C" Sefhora" 
Kniglo and Para$ 9hadstone now also 
features a new state of the art >EYTS 
digital Yinema Yomflex" a seven 
restaurant :ining TerraYe" a 1")&&#
seat (1 tenanYy Food Gallery" a Tesla 
Cotors dealershif and Australia¾s first 
B;GEBAN:® :isYovery 9entre$ 

The ma`or fro`eYt also involved the 
Yreation of a 1+#bay bus interYhange"  
one of Celbourne¾s busiest" to serviYe  
the Yentre and the surrounding suburbs" 
as well as the introduYtion of a new 1&#level  
16"+&& sgm offiYe tower" whiYh is fully 
leased$ Both were Yomfleted in FY16  
and bring a range of new users to the 
asset$ The Yentre is now also serviYed  
by over 1&"&&& Yar sfaYes$

Both the retail and offiYe develofments 
were Yertified + Star Green Star1, 
refresenting ½Australian ;xYellenYe¾ in 
environmentally sustainable building design 
and froviding a range of fositive outYomes 
for our tenants" Yonsumers and our feofle$

The fro`eYt will deliver a year#one yield  
of 6� and a foreYast internal rate 
of return (?HH) of over 11�" while 
substantially enhanYing the Yonsumer  
and retailer exferienYe$ 

This fro`eYt builds ufon a history of 
suYYessful develofments at this world#
class asset and the evolution of this asset 

Yontinues$ The YonstruYtion of a frofosed 
(+&#room" 1)#level hotel ad`aYent to the 
offiYe tower" is targeted to YommenYe 
in (&1.$ Me also have flans to remix 
and further exfand the luxury freYinYt" 
redevelof the existing seYond food Yourt 

and undertaae external dining  
exfansions and Yross#mall 
reYonfigurations$ Caster flanning  
of larger future stages also Yontinues$

1$  Hetail Yomfonent was Yertified + Star Green Star ¹ Hetail :esign v1 and the offiYe tower was Yertified + Star Green Star EffiYe Hating$ 

Chadstone, VIC – Artist’s impression

Chadstone, VIC

Our Portfolio continued

Proposed 
hotel
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Engaging 
consumers

“We understand that our 
consumers deserve a 
great experience with 
us including excellent 
service and convenience, 
while being offered a 
tailored range of products 
and services. We strive 
to create sustainable 
destinations of the future 
where people love to  
visit and connect.”

Josef Seidler
Regional General Manager, 
Development

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 2017 25



Development continued
Projects under construction

Mandurah Forum 
9onstruYtion and leasing are frogressing 
well on the �)+& million (LiYinity share0 
�17+ million) ma`or redevelofment  
of Candurah Forum$ The .+&#sfaYe multi#
deYa Yar fara was ofened frior  
to 9hristmas (&16" ahead of frogram$ 
The first stage of retail" inYluding the  
new#format Target and around 6& sfeYialty 
stores" Yomfleted on frogram in @uly (&17 
and is fully leased$ 

En Yomfletion" exfeYted in mid#(&1." 
the asset will be signifiYantly exfanded 
and revitalised$ ?t will Yomfrise over ((& 
retailers" inYluding a new#format :avid 
@ones store" along with a dramatiYally 
imfroved dining and fresh food offer" 
reinforYing it as the dominant retail 
destination in one of Australia’s fastest 
growing regions$ The fro`eYt is exfeYted 
to deliver a forecast initial yield on cost  
of over 6� and ?HH of over 1&�$

The Glen 
9onstruYtion YommenYed in CarYh (&17 
for the �*6& million (LiYinity share0  
�()& million) exfansion of The Glen$  
The first stage is fully leased and will 
ofen in late (&17$ ?t will inYorforate 
a fresh food maraet hall anYhored by 
Coles, a new Aldi and the latest format 
Moolworths" and inYludes over 6& sfeYialty 
stores on the lower ground Çoor$ 

The fro`eYt will be Yomfleted over a 
number of stages to minimise retail 
downtime through to (&(&" and is 
exfeYted to deliver an initial yield 
greater than 6� and an ?HH of more 
than 1&�$ En Yomfletion" The Glen will 
inYlude the latest format :avid @ones" 
a new Yontemforary food gallery" an 
outdoor dining freYinYt and a Yomflete 
refurbishment of the existing Yentre$

:uring the year" we divested1 air rights  
to a residential develofer" Golden Age"  
to deliver more than +&& afartments over 
three towers on the southern end of the 
site$ Hesidential YonstruYtion is exfeYted 
to YommenYe in (&1/ and Yomflete 
within (* months$

Our Portfolio continued

DFO Perth
Construction has commenced on the 
�1+& million (LiYinity share0 �7+ million) 
develofment of Perth¾s first :FE$ This 
latest addition to LiYinity¾s :FE fortfolio 
will inYlude affroximately 1(& outlet 
retailers over (*"&&& sgm serviYed by 
more than 1"+&& Yar sfaYes$ Beasing 
discussions are well advanced, with  
strong retailer demand$ 

Pro`eYt Yomfletion is exfeYted in (&1. 
and is forecast to deliver an initial yield  
in exYess of 1&� and an ?HH of greater 
than 1+�$

Asset refurbishment projects 
The Asset Hefurbishment Team (AHT) 
woras on minor fro`eYts to enhanYe 
guality and Yonsumer exferienYe in assets 
that are not Çagged for develofment in 
the short to medium term$ AHT fro`eYts 
involve the investment of small amounts 
of capital in improvements in areas such 
as mall space, entrances and amenities 
to drive consumer visitation, increase 
sales" enhanYe leasing demand and 
Yreate other inYome offortunities$

?n FY17" we Yomfleted eight AHT fro`eYts 
at a total investment of �1+ million 
(LiYinity¾s share)" generating an average 
initial return of around 7�$ Hetailer  
and Yonsumer feedbaYa on these 
Yomfleted fro`eYts has been very 
fositive$ Additional fro`eYts have been 
sYheduled for delivery during FY1. in line 
with our investment strategy and ongoing 
foYus on imfroving the exferienYe and 
offer for our consumers, retailers and 
loYal Yommunities$

1$  ;xfeYted to settle in (&1/$

Mandurah Forum, WA
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Intensive asset management 
Me have .* retail assets under 
management1" 7* of whiYh LiYinity has 
direYt ownershif in" maaing us one of the 
leading retail landlords aYross Australia$ 
>ow we manage our assets touYhes all 
three foYal foints of our strategy ¹ the 
Yonsumer" the retailer and better business$ 

For the Yonsumer it is about delivering an 
engaging and affrofriate retail mix" and 
Yreating a great exferienYe through guality 
serviYes and amenities" with easy aYYess$ 
By getting this right" we attraYt more feofle 
to our destinations ¹ a aey deliverable 
for our retailers$ Me are also foYused on 
froviding a high level of serviYe for our 
retailers and helfing them to suYYeed$ 
Better business involves using data to gain 
a better understanding of Yonsumers and 
our oferations" managing our assets more 
effiYiently through the use of teYhnology  
and identifying oferational effiYienYies  
at our Yentres and our Yorforate offiYes$ 

1$  At )& @une (&17$ Salamander Bay 9entre whiYh was managed for a strategiY fartner was sold in @uly (&17$ 

:uring the year we established a  
number of Yross#funYtional woraing  
groufs Yalled sguads" five of whiYh are 
focused on aspects of the consumers’ 
exferienYe in our Yentres and four of 
whiYh are foYused on the exferienYe  
that our retailers have with us$ These 
sguads have a frimary goal of identifing 
solutions to imfrove the exferienYes  
of our Yonsumers and retailers$ 

Better business
We continue to improve our net income 
fosition by aYhieving oferational 
effiYienYies and minimising inYreases  
in Yontrollable outgoings$ 

Eur fortfolio sYale and breadth allows us 
to trial a number of initiatives aYross a 
range of Yentre tyfes" then as affrofriate" 
these initiatives Yan be rolled out aYross 
the fortfolio and to new assets we aYguire$ 
After successful trials, we have installed 

YomfaYting bins in (* Yentres aYross 
our fortfolio" with more exfeYted to be 
introduYed in FY1.$ By monitoring and 
YomfaYting waste" these bins reguire 
emftying far less freguently" and where 
they are located outdoors, they are  
solar fowered$

?n the feriod" we have Yontinued to  
wora with our Yleaning fartners for them 
to introduYe new robotiY teYhnology to 
assist with overnight Yleans of our Yentres$ 
These maYhines generate effiYienYies by 
froviding a better Ylean with less YhemiYal 
and water usage$ 

Mith a fortfolio of our sipe" energy 
Yonsumftion forms a large frofortion  
of our outgoings" and we are foYused on 
Yreating low#Yarbon" highly effiYient smart 
assets and reduYing our relianYe on the 
grid$ Me have suYYessfully trialled solar 
generation at a number of our assets 
and during FY1. we will be develofing a 
frogram to roll out solar aYross a number 
of Yentres in our fortfolio$ Along with 
Yontinued foYus on energy effiYienYy"  
this year we will be establishing a low#
Yarbon target for LiYinity$

Me benYhmara the sustainable ferformanYe 
of our assets using the Green Star and 
NAB;HS rating tools$ This year" we were 
pleased to have our entire portfolio 
Green Star PerformanYe rated with an 
average fortfolio rating of ) Stars" uf 
from ( Stars in FY16$ Me are the largest 
property portfolio in Australia to achieve 
suYh a rating$ These ratings allow us to 
benYhmara our Yurrent ferformanYe and 
identify areas where we can improve 
the sustainability of our assets$ Eur 
environmental imfrovement frogram 
drives Yontinuous frogress in resourYe 
effiYienYy aYross our fortfolio$ This year 
we Yontinued to reduYe our energy and 
Yarbon emissions intensity fer sguare 
metre, as well as the proportion of waste 
we send to landfill$

Key performance metrics 
Page 1(

Sustainability performance 
viYinity$Yom$au

DFO Perth, WA – Artist’s impression

The Glen, VIC – Artist’s impression
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1$  ?nYludes a Yombination of Yash and in#aind Yontributions" aYYounting for assoYiated management time and fart 
of the oferational sfend on soYial enterfrises in aYYordanYe with the BBG framewora$ 

Intensive asset management 
continued
Shaping better communities
As signifiYant loYal hubs" our Yentres 
have an imfortant role to flay in shafing 
better Yommunities both eYonomiYally and 
soYially$ ?n FY17" we invested �1$. million1

into Yommunities" through fartnershifs 
with our retailers, suppliers and national 
and loYal Yommunity groufs$ 

This year" LiYinity entered into a three#year 
fartnershif with BeaYon Foundation" with 
an annual Yontribution of �1&&"&&&" to 
help deliver our community investment 
frogram" whiYh foYuses on unemfloyed 
and disengaged youth ¹ an area that we 
believe LiYinity is well fositioned to helf 
address through our day#to#day business 
aYtivities and extensive networa of Yentres$ 
?n FY17" LiYinity also undertooa an 
internal Yommunity grants frogram" where 
�1&&"&&& was distributed at a Yentre 
level for the formation of local partnerships 
to aiYa#start this frogram and address 
sfeYifiY needs within their YatYhments$

Our Portfolio continued

Iocial prockrement benefits everyone
Partnering with social enterprises is an important facet of Vicinity’s sustainability 
strategy and presents us with the opportunity to make a positive impact in our 
local communities through our day-to-day activities. We believe that our inclusive 
approach strengthens our communities and increases the success of our 
business. Our sustainability and social procurement programs aim to engage 
our broader communities and enhance the connection they have with our 
centres by creating opportunities for employment focusing on disadvantaged 
youth and other marginalised groups. 

During the year, Vicinity has procured over $300,000 in services from social 
enterprises and supported the employment of approximately 30 disadvantaged 
individuals from our communities. 

We currently have landscaping and maintenance services being undertaken  
at our centres in partnership with:

• YC9A Hebuild in LiYtoria" whiYh emfloys youth out of Yustody and sufforts 
their re#integration into the Yommunity" and 

• AYtiv Foundation in Mestern Australia and >ouse Mith No Stefs in New South 
Males" whiYh emfloy feofle with disabilities$

We also encourage our suppliers to create opportunities for social enterprises  
in their operations and supply chains through our Sustainable Procurement 
Policy. During the year, we partnered one of our cleaning suppliers with Marist 
Youth to employ at-risk youth for cleaning services at one of our centres. 

Activ Foundation Marist Youth
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Celebrating 
difference

“We celebrate difference 
and encourage our people 
to bring their whole 
selves to work. By taking 
this approach it enables 
us to have a greater 
understanding of our 
diverse communities and 
deliver better outcomes.”

Veronica Millen
Diversity and Engagement Manager
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Our People

Eur affroaYh to feofle and Yulture is 
designed to suffort a talented and highly 
engaged team to deliver with energy 
and fassion a better" easier and more 
en`oyable exferienYe aYross LiYinity  
and for our staaeholders$

Mith our desire to Yreate a great 
woraflaYe" we have foYused on 
understanding the needs of our feofle$ 
Together with the Ylear artiYulation of  
our grouf strategiY direYtion in the year" 
this foYus allows us to Ylearly define  
and build our desired LiYinity Yulture$

Peofle and Yulture at LiYinity is foYused 
on four pillars:

• develofing talent and Yafability

• defining and nurturing our Yulture  
and values

• energising and engaging our feofle" and 

• shafing our organisation$
 

Health and Safety
At Vicinity, we believe everyone 
has the right to go home safe and 
healthy. This belief underpins the 
way we do business. Essential 
to our health and safety goals is 
having effective leadership at all 
levels throughout the organisation. 
We expect our people leaders to 
champion good health and safety 
practices in the workplace and 
actively engage with their team 
members. We are pleased with the 
good practices embraced within 
Vicinity, with high scores for health 
and safety in both the current and 
prior years’ engagement surveys.

These strategiY fillars have enabled the 
people and culture team to live out their 
furfose of ½Yreating an awesome flaYe  
to wora¾$ SinYe formation two years ago" 
we have seen a shift in the culture at 
LiYinity" with the team embraYing new 
ways of woraing1 whether it is fart of our 
newly Yreated Çexible woraing foliYy" real#
time woraing Yonditions or agile stand#
ufs$ This has been embraYed at LiYinity¾s 
new national offiYe at 9hadstone" with  
the team beYoming aYYustomed to the 
new ways of real#time woraing$

This fositive shift has been reÇeYted in 
our engagement survey results this year" 
with a high fartiYifation rate of ./�  
and our overall engagement inYreasing 
by + ferYentage foints to a sYore of 
71�$ Me are exYeftionally froud of the 
direYtion we are heading" and we exfeYt 
our engagement to Yontinue to inYrease 
year on year$

Since forming two years ago, we have seen a shift 
in the culture at Vicinity, with the team embracing 
new ways of working; whether it is part of our 
newly created flexible working policy, real-time 
working conditions or agile stand-ups.

Chadstone National Office, VIC
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As fart of our foYus on imfroving 
exferienYes for our feofle and attraYting 
the very best talent to the business" a 
number of aey initiatives were undertaaen 
during the year$

Diversity and inclusion
Ksing both external researYh and feedbaYa 
from our feofle about what matters most 
to them" we established three aey areas 
of focus for our diversity and inclusion 
frogram this year ¹ gender" age and  
mental health$ :isability and ethniYity were 
also identified as imfortant Yonsiderations 
for our frogram$ To helf fromote a 
more diverse and inYlusive woraflaYe" 
we fromote a Yulture of Çexibility and 
inYlusive leadershif$ 

:uring the year" we undertooa unYonsYious 
bias and mental health training for all senior 
leaders" established formal and informal 
Çexible woraing arrangements for our feofle 
to aYhieve a better wora#life balanYe" 
and introduYed Yorforate frograms that 
suffort health and wellbeing$ 

Leadership
Beadershif has been a aey foYus for 
LiYinity$ Me have introduYed monthly 
meetings of senior leaders aYross the 
business in order to frovide regular 
ufdates on aey aYtivities$ TwiYe a year 
we hold senior leader forums ¹ a two#
day conference where senior leaders 
Yollaborate and strategise for the future 
of the business$ ?n addition" fartiYifants 
in our first ;veryday Beader frogram 
graduated earlier in the year$ The frogram 
involved +6 senior leaders mentoring  
(1* managers aYross our business"  
which has developed and improved  
the YoaYhing saills of our leaders"  
while froviding some great insights  
into behaviours and leadershif for  
our managers$

Helping our people 
contribute to communities
Vicinity introduced new employee 
volunteering and woraflaYe giving 
frograms this year to enable our feofle 
to direYtly Yontribute to our Yommunities$ 
Eur sailled volunteering frogram" delivered 
through our Yorforate fartner BeaYon 
Foundation" is linaed to individual  
learning and develofment ob`eYtives$  

This enables our feofle to frovide 
valuable assistanYe to those in need" 
while also using volunteering as a 
flatform to develof saills and exferienYe 
to suYYeed in the woraflaYe$ Me also 
have a woraflaYe giving frogram that 
provides our employees the opportunity 
to suffort a wide range of soYial Yauses 
that are important to them, with access 
to over 1".&& Yharities aYross Australia$

#sheimagines

#sheimagines
A new initiative #sheimagines was launched on International Women’s Day. 
The #sheimagines campaign is aimed to be a conversation starter and call  
to action to stop assuming and start listening to what women think, and is  
part of an ongoing initiative designed to demonstrate our commitment to 
gender diversity.

Chadstone National Office, VIC
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Digital

:igital teYhnology is Yhanging the way 
consumers shop, how retailers sell and 
how we manage our assets$ These 
teYhnologies are froviding LiYinity with 
the opportunity to enhance the consumer 
and retailer exferienYe" in addition to 
driving oferational effiYienYies$ ?n line with 
our digital strategy" in FY17 LiYinity has 
been building greater Yafability in digital 
and data analytiYs" while also frogressing 
wora on our digital fillars of YonneYtivity" 
online and omni$

Connectivity
:uring the year" we Yomfleted the 
connection of our retail assets and 
Yorforate offiYes to the one high#sfeed 
digital networa with MiFi YonneYtivity 
throughout$ Eur Yonsumers now have 
aYYess to free high#sfeed MiFi at our 
Yentres and the riYh data we are gathering 
from this networa is enabling us to gain 
insight into Yonsumer behaviour" inYluding 

dwell times" foot traffiY and traffiY Çows$ 
The foYus for FY1. is to leverage this  
data to enhanYe the Yonsumer exferienYe" 
frovide insights to retailers and imfrove 
the way we manage our assets$ 

Online
The online exferienYe is a YritiYal 
component of our consumers’ overall 
exferienYe with us$ This year we have 
invested signifiYantly in Yreating leading 
websites that Yomflement our fhysiYal 
assets$ ?n FY1." LiYinity will Yontinue  
to develof its online flatform by maaing 
our Yentres more disYoverable online" 
imfroving digital wayfinding and inYreasing 
our Yafability to fersonalise our 
maraeting YommuniYations in order  
to engage with new and existing 
Yonsumers$ LiYinity is also develofing 
a new online retailer portal to deliver 
insights and imfrove engagement  
with our retail fartners$

Omni
Me anow our Yonsumers blend digital 
and fhysiYal exferienYes in their 
everyday lives$ Hetail exferienYes 
should be no different" with the future 
to be YharaYterised by the seamless 
integration of the fhysiYal and digital 
environments$ :igital teYhnology when 
Yombined with the fhysiYal environment 
has the offortunity to frovide a unigue 
and enhanYed retail exferienYe for our 
Yonsumers and will also assist in reduYing 
foints of friYtion$ For FY1." LiYinity has 
established three broad areas of foYus 
within omni0 wayfinding" faraing and  
last#mile delivery$ Mithin these foYus 
areas" LiYinity is using an agile affroaYh 
to develof digitally enabled froduYts and 
solutions that will enhance the physical 
retail exferienYe for our Yonsumers$
 

Emporium Melbourne, VIC
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Knowing our 
consumers

“To create unique and 
relevant experiences we 
take time to understand 
our consumers’ wants, 
needs and behaviours. 
Using a combination of 
qualitative and quantitative 
data insights, we are able 
to evolve and tailor our 
destinations to enhance 
the retailer and consumer 
experience.”

Ranil Illesinghe
Consumer Intelligence Manager 
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Our Board

Eur Board is Yommitted to 
high standards of Yorforate 
governanYe$ Eur Yorforate 
governanYe flatform is integral 
to sufforting our strategiY 
value drivers" froteYting the 
rights of all of our investors 
and Yreating long#term value 
and sustainable growth$

Corporate 
governance
Throughout FY17" LiYinity 
9entres¾ governanYe 
arrangements were 
consistent with the Corporate 
GovernanYe PrinYifles and 
HeYommendations ()rd 
edition) (PrinYifles) fublished 
by the ASN 9orforate 
GovernanYe 9ounYil$

Eur 9orforate GovernanYe 
Statement outlines our 
affroaYh to governanYe 
inYluding the struYture  
and resfonsibilities of our 
Board and our exeYutive$ 

2017 Corporate 
Governance 
Statement 
viYinity$Yom$au

Further information
You Yan find more disYlosure 
on the following tofiYs0

Our strategy 
Page &.

Our management 
of risk 
Page 1.

Sustainability 
viYinity$Yom$au

Tax transparency 
Page *&

Contact us 
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Peter Hay
BBB" FA?9:
Chairman, Independent  
Non-executive Director
Affointed @une (&1+

Angus McNaughton
BCS (>ENS)" FAP?
CEO and Managing Director
Affointed EYtober (&1+1

Charles Macek
B;Y" C$Admin" FA?9:"  
F9A" F9PA" SF Fin
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed :eYember (&11

Background and Experience

Peter >ay has a strong 
baYaground and breadth 
of exferienYe in business" 
Yorforate governanYe" finanYe 
and investment banaing 
advisory wora" with a fartiYular 
exfertise in relation to mergers 
and aYguisitions$ Cr >ay was 
a fartner of the legal firm 
Freehills until (&&+" where 
he served as 9hief ;xeYutive 
EffiYer from (&&&$ Cr >ay has 
also had signifiYant involvement 
in advising governments and 
government#owned enterfrises$ 

Cr >ay is 9hairman of the 
Nominations 9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

Chairman: Newcrest  
Cining Bimited$

:ireYtor0 Australian ?nstitute  
of 9omfany :ireYtors$

Cember0 Australian 
Government Taaeovers 
Panel and A?9: 9orforate 
GovernanYe 9ommittee$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

GK: >oldings Bimited"  
Novion Bimited" Alumina 
Bimited" Australia and New 
Pealand Banaing Grouf 
Bimited" NBN 9o Bimited  
and Cyer >oldings Bimited$

Background and Experience

Angus CYNaughton has more 
than (+ years¾ exferienYe in 
the froferty seYtor$ 

Previously" Cr CYNaughton 
was the Canaging :ireYtor  
and 9;E of Novion Proferty 
Grouf (Novion)$ Before 
Novion" Cr CYNaughton held 
a number of roles within 
9olonial First State Global 
Asset Canagement (9FSGAC) 
inYluding Canaging :ireYtor  
of Proferty" >ead of Mholesale 
Proferty and 9hief ;xeYutive 
of the Canager of Aiwi ?nYome 
Proferty Trust in New Pealand 
(now anown as Aiwi Proferty 
Grouf Bimited)$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

:ireYtor0 Shoffing 9entre 
Council of Australia and 
Proferty 9ounYil of Australia$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Novion Bimited$

1$  Affointed as 9;E in August (&1+ and Canaging :ireYtor following the (&1+ Annual General Ceeting in EYtober (&1+$

Background and Experience

9harles CaYea has extensive 
exeYutive exferienYe in the 
finanYe industry in Australia" 
New Pealand" the Knited 
Aingdom and @afan$ Cr CaYea 
has held numerous senior 
positions and directorships in 
a range of fubliY Yomfanies 
inYluding Telstra" and is a 
former :ireYtor and 9hairman 
of ?EEF" former 9hairman of the  
FinanYial Heforting 9ounYil and  
former Vice Chairman of the  
?nternational FinanYial Heforting 
Standards Advisory 9ommittee$

Cr CaYea is 9hairman of the 
Remuneration and Human 
Resources Committee and a 
member of the Nominations 
9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

9hairman0 ;arthwatYh  
?nstitute Australia and Livid 
TeYhnology Btd$

:ireYtor0 Sinefa Pty Btd and 
Mindlab Bimited$ 

Cember0 AS?9 :ireYtor 
Advisory Panel and ?nvestment 
9ommittee of KniSufer Btd$ 

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Mesfarmers Btd$

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 201734

http://vicinity.com.au
vicinity.com.au
M.Admin


David Thurin (Dr)
CBBS" :?P HA9EG" FHA9GP" 
CS in Canagement
Non-executive Director
Affointed @une (&1+

Debra Stirling
BA" GA?9:
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed :eYember (&11

Background and Experience

:r :avid Thurin has had 
extensive exferienYe in the 
property industry that includes 
senior roles within The 
Gandel Group and associated 
Yomfanies" inYluding being  
the @oint Canaging :ireYtor$  
:r Thurin was a :ireYtor of  
The Gandel Group at the time 
of the merger between Gandel 
Retail Trust and Colonial First 
State Hetail Proferty Trust 
in (&&($ :r Thurin is the 
Canaging :ireYtor and founder 
of TigYorf Pty Btd" whiYh has 
property interests in retirement 
villages and land subdivision$ 
>e has a baYaground in 
mediYine" having been in 
private practice for over a 
decade, and was a prior 
President of the ?nternational 
:iabetes ?nstitute$

:r Thurin is a member of 
the Hisa and 9omflianYe 
9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

Canaging :ireYtor0 TigYorf  
Pty Btd$

:ireYtor0 Celbourne Football 
9lub and Baaer >eart and 
:iabetes ?nstitute$ 

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Novion Bimited$

Background and Experience

:ebra Stirling has more than 
(& years¾ exferienYe as a 
senior exeYutive in retailing" 
building and YonstruYtion 
materials" manufaYturing" 
mining and agriYulture$  
Cs Stirling was ;xeYutive 
General Canager of Peofle 
and Communications for 
NewYrest Cining Bimited 
from @anuary (&&. to @uly 
(&1*$ She has freviously held 
exeYutive roles with Hinaer 
Grouf" 9SH and 9oles Cyer$ 

Cs Stirling is a member of 
the Remuneration and Human 
Resources Committee and 
the Hisa and 9omflianYe 
9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

9hairman0 Conash Kniversity 
Cining � HesourYes  
Advisory Board$

:ireYtor0 Cission Australia$

Cember0 PNG Government¾s 
Bae TeYhniYal Training 9entre 
of ;xYellenYe TasaforYe 
and Victorian Resources 
Houndtable$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

None$

Karen Penrose
B9ECC (KNSM)" 9PA" FA?9:
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed @une (&1+

Background and Experience

Aaren Penrose has a strong 
baYaground and exferienYe 
in business" finanYe and 
investment banaing" in both 
the banaing and Yorforate 
seYtors$ Cs Penrose is 
a full#time non#exeYutive 
direYtor$ >er frior exeYutive 
Yareer inYludes (& years with 
9ommonwealth Bana and 
>SB9 and eight years as a 
9hief FinanYial EffiYer and 
9hief Eferating EffiYer with 
two ASN listed Yomfanies$  
Cs Penrose served 9hief 
;xeYutive Momen (9;M) for six 
years as a member of 9;M¾s 
Council and continues as a 
member of the advisory fanel 
for 9;M¾s Beaders Program$

Cs Penrose is 9hairman  
of the Audit Committee and 
a member of the Hisa and 
9omflianYe 9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

:ireYtor0 AM; Bimited" Sfara 
?nfrastruYture Grouf" Future 
Generation Global ?nvestment 
9omfany Bimited (fro bono 
role)" Bana of Gueensland 
Bimited and Carshall 
?nvestments Pty Bimited$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Novion Bimited" Silver 9hef 
Bimited and KrbanGrowth NSM$

Peter Kahan
B9ECC" BA99" 9A" CA?9:
Non-executive Director
Affointed @une (&1+

Background and Experience

Peter Aahan has a long Yareer 
in froferty funds management" 
with frior roles inYluding 9hief 
;xeYutive EffiYer and FinanYe 
:ireYtor of The Gandel Grouf$ 
Cr Aahan was the FinanYe 
:ireYtor of The Gandel Grouf  
at the time of the merger 
between Gandel Hetail Trust 
and 9olonial First State Hetail 
Proferty Trust in (&&($ Prior  
to `oining The Gandel Grouf  
in 1//*" Cr Aahan woraed as  
a Chartered Accountant and 
held several senior finanYial 
roles across a variety of 
industry seYtors$ 

Cr Aahan is a member of 
the Audit Committee, the 
Remuneration and Human 
Resources Committee and  
the Nominations 9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

;xeYutive :efuty 9hairman0 
The Gandel Grouf Pty Bimited$ 

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Novion Bimited and 9harter 
>all Grouf$
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Our Board continued

Wai Tang
BAffSY" CBA" GA?9:
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed Cay (&1*

Tim Hammon
B9om" BBB
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed :eYember (&11

Trevor Gerber
BA99" 9A" SA
Independent Non-executive 
Director
Affointed @une (&1+

Background and Experience

Tim >ammon has extensive 
wealth management"  
froferty serviYes and legal 
exferienYe$ >e is Yurrently 
9hairman of The PaYifiY  
Group of Companies Advisory 
Board and a Yonsultant to 
Cutual Trust Pty Bimited$ 

Cr >ammon freviously was 
9hief ;xeYutive EffiYer of 
Cutual Trust Pty Bimited and 
woraed for 9oles Cyer Btd in  
a range of roles inYluding 9hief 
EffiYer" 9orforate and Proferty 
ServiYes with resfonsibility 
for property development and 
leasing and Yorforate strategy$ 
>e was also Canaging Partner 
of various offiYes of Callesons 
Stefhen @agues$

Cr >ammon is the 9hairman 
of the Hisa and 9omflianYe 
9ommittee and a member of 
the Remuneration and Human 
Resources Committee and the 
Nominations 9ommittee$ 

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

9hairman0 The PaYifiY Grouf  
of 9omfanies Advisory Board$

9onsultant0 Cutual Trust  
Pty Bimited$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

None$

Background and Experience

Trevor Gerber woraed for  
1* years at Mestfield" initially 
as Group Treasurer and 
subseguently as :ireYtor 
of Funds Canagement 
resfonsible for Mestfield Trust 
and Mestfield AmeriYa Trust$ 
>e has been a frofessional 
direYtor sinYe (&&&" and has 
exferienYe in froferty" funds 
management" hotels and 
tourism, infrastructure and 
aguaYulture$

Cr Gerber is a member of 
the Audit Committee and the 
Remuneration and Human 
HesourYes 9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

9hairman0 Sydney Airfort 
>oldings$

:ireYtor0 9?C?9 Grouf Bimited" 
Tassal Grouf Bimited and 
Hegis >ealthYare Bimited$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

Novion Bimited$

Background and Experience

Mai Tang has extensive retail 
industry exferienYe and 
anowledge gained through 
senior exeYutive and board 
roles$ >er former senior 
exeYutive roles inYluded 
Eferations :ireYtor for @ust 
Grouf and 9hief ;xeYutive 
EffiYer of the @ust Grouf 
sleefwear business" Peter 
Alexander$ Prior to `oining 
the @ust Grouf" she was 
General Canager of Business 
:evelofment for PaYifiY 
Brands$ She was also the  
Yo#founder of the >affy Bab 
retail YonfeYtionery YonYeft$

Cs Tang is a member of the 
Audit 9ommittee and the Hisa 
and 9omflianYe 9ommittee$

Current Directorships, 
Executive Positions  
and Advisory Roles

:ireYtor0 Aiaai A" @B >i#Fi 
Bimited" Lisit LiYtoria and  
the Celbourne Festival$

Past Non-executive 
Directorships  
(fast three years)

SfeYialty Fashion Grouf  
and B¾Er�al Celbourne  
Fashion Festival$
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Our Executive Committee

The 9;E and Canaging 
:ireYtor (9;E)" together 
with the members of the 
;xeYutive 9ommittee and 
senior leaders" is resfonsible 
for imflementing our strategy" 
aYhieving LiYinity¾s business 
ferformanYe and finanYial 
ob`eYtives and Yarrying out 
the day#to#day management  
of LiYinity¾s affairs$

Canagement is also 
resfonsible for sufflying the 
Board with aYYurate" timely 
and clear information to 
enable the Board to ferform 
its resfonsibilities$

Management 
committees
The 9;E has established  
a number of Yommittees to 
faYilitate deYision maaing by 
management$ Canagement 
committees include:

• Executive Committee ¹ 
Yomfrised of nine members 
outlined on the Yurrent fage 
and overleaf

• Investment Committee 
¹ inYludes the 9;E" 9hief 
?nvestment EffiYer (9?E) 
(Yhair)" 9hief FinanYial 
EffiYer (9FE) and the 
;xeYutive General Canagers 
of Shoffing 9entres" 
:evelofment and Beasing

• Capital Management 
Committee ¹ 9;E" 9FE 
(Yhair)" 9?E" General 
Canager (GC) Treasury  
and an external member

• Diversity Forum ¹ inYludes 
9;E (Yhair) and a range  
of senior leaders 

• Sustainability Committee  
¹ inYludes 9;E (Yhair)"  
9?E" ;GC Shoffing  
9entre Canagement"  
;GC :evelofment"  
GC Sustainability and  
other senior leaders$

Carolyn Reynolds
General Counsel

Carolyn Viney
Executive General Manager 
Development

Angus McNaughton
CEO and Managing Director

Angus CYNaughton `oined 
LiYinity 9entres in August 
(&1+ and has more than 
(+ years¾ exferienYe in the 
froferty seYtor$ 

Previously" Angus was the 
Canaging :ireYtor and 9;E 
of Novion Proferty Grouf 
(Novion)$ Before Novion"  
Angus held a number of roles 
within 9olonial First State 
Global Asset Canagement 
(9FSGAC) inYluding Canaging 
:ireYtor of Proferty" >ead of 
Mholesale Proferty and 9hief 
;xeYutive of the Canager of 
Aiwi ?nYome Proferty Trust  
in New Pealand (now anown  
as Aiwi Proferty Grouf Bimited)$

Angus is a Fellow of the 
Australian Proferty ?nstitute" 
:ireYtor of the Shoffing 
Centre Council of Australia 
and the Proferty 9ounYil of 
Australia" and a Proferty Cale 
9hamfion of 9hange$

9arolyn Heynolds `oined 
LiYinity 9entres in Cay (&1* 
and has more than (& years¾ 
exferienYe as a YommerYial 
litigation and Yorforate 
lawyer$ ?n her Yurrent role" 
9arolyn has oversight of the 
safety" risa" YomflianYe" 
company secretarial, lease 
administration and legal 
functions for Vicinity, and 
is a :ireYtor of the LiYinity 
subsidiary Boards$

Prior to her Yurrent 
appointment, Carolyn was 
a fartner at law firm Cinter 
;llison from @uly (&&)$ 9arolyn 
gained extensive exferienYe 
over this time which featured 
wora on Bas Legas Sands 
9orforate¾s bid for the rights 
to develop and operate the 
Carina Bay Sands ?ntegrated 
Hesort in Singafore$ 9arolyn 
has also gained diverse 
exferienYe relating to boards 
from her legal wora and 
involvement with not#for#frofit 
organisations suYh as Evarian 
Cancer Australia, Glenorchy  
Art and SYulfture Para and  
the Coreland 9ommunity  
Begal 9entre$

9arolyn is a member of the 
Australian ?nstitute of 9omfany 
:ireYtors and A99 Australia$

9arolyn Liney `oined LiYinity 
9entres in EYtober (&16 
and has more than (& years¾ 
exferienYe in YonstruYtion" 
property development and  
real estate investment$ 

Prior to her Yurrent 
appointment, Carolyn was 
with Grocon where she held 
a number of senior roles over 
a 1)#year feriod" inYluding 
9;E" :efuty 9;E" >ead of 
:evelofment and ?n#house 
9ounsel$ Before this" 9arolyn 
was a Senior AssoYiate at  
law firm Cinter ;llison$ 

9arolyn is a :ivision 9ounYillor 
of the Proferty 9ounYil of 
Australia¾s LiYtoria :ivision"  
an Advisory Board Cember  
to the Victorian Government’s 
EffiYe of Pro`eYts LiYtoria and 
an Advisory Board Cember of 
Momen¾s Proferty ?nitiatives"  
a not for frofit housing frovider 
to women and Yhildren at risa 
of homelessness and `oined 
the Board of the Malter ! 
;lipa >all ?nstitute of CediYal 
HesearYh in :eYember (&16$
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Our Executive Committee continued

David Marcun
Executive General Manager 
Business Development

Justin Mills
Executive General Manager 
Shopping Centre 
Management

Michael O’Brien
Chief Investment Officer

Richard Jamieson
Chief Financial Officer

:avid CarYun `oined LiYinity 
9entres in @une (&1+ following 
the Cerger with Novion Proferty 
Grouf (Novion)" and has more 
than (& years¾ exferienYe 
in the retail property sector, 
fredominantly in finanYe and 
oferations roles$ 

Prior to his Yurrent 
affointment" :avid was 9hief 
Eferating EffiYer and >ead 
of Asset Canagement at 
Novion (and formerly 9FSGAC 
Proferty) sinYe (&&/$ :uring 
his Yareer" :avid has been 
emfloyed by Novion and 
its frior entities baYa to the 
Çoat of Gandel Hetail Trust in 
1//*$ Ever this time" :avid 
flayed a signifiYant role in 
the Cerger of Novion and 
Federation Centres and the 
internalisation of 9FSGAC 
Proferty from 9ommonwealth 
Bana of Australia in (&1)¹1*$ 
:avid was also involved in the 
aYguisition of Gandel Hetail 
Canagement by 9FSGAC 
Proferty in (&&($

:avid is a member of 
the ?nstitute of 9hartered 
AYYountants in Australia$

@ustin Cills `oined LiYinity 
9entres in @une (&1+ 
following the Cerger with 
Novion Proferty Grouf 
(Novion)" and has more 
than 17 years¾ exferienYe 
in the retail property sector, 
Yentre management" asset 
management" investment 
management and strategy$ 

Prior to his Yurrent 
affointment" @ustin was 
General Canager" Hetail 
Canagement and Strategy  
at Novion (and formerly 
9FSGAC Proferty) sinYe 
(&&/$ @ustin `oined 9FSGAC 
Proferty in (&&( where his 
roles also included Assistant 
Fund Canager of 9FS Hetail 
Proferty Trust" 9entre Canager 
of 9hadstone Shoffing 9entre 
and regional resfonsibilities 
aYross several LiYtorian assets$

CiYhael E¾Brien `oined LiYinity 
9entres in EYtober (&1+ and 
has (. years¾ exferienYe in 
real estate inYluding shoffing 
Yentre management and 
development, real estate funds 
management and finanYe$

Prior to his Yurrent 
affointment" CiYhael held 
a number of senior roles at 
The GPT Grouf inYluding 
Grouf ;xeYutive ¹ 9orforate 
:evelofment" 9hief Eferating 
EffiYer and 9hief FinanYial 
EffiYer" as well as AYting 
9hief ;xeYutive for a feriod 
through (&&.¹&/$ Previous 
to this" CiYhael was at Bend 
Bease 9orforation where 
he held a variety of funds 
management and shoffing 
Yentre management fositions" 
inYluding 9hief ;xeYutive 
EffiYer of Bend Bease Hetail$

CiYhael is a Fellow of the 
Australian Proferty ?nstitute 
and a :ireYtor of the Green 
Building 9ounYil of Australia$

HiYhard @amieson `oined 
LiYinity 9entres in @une (&1+ 
and has more than (+ years¾ 
exferienYe in banaing and 
finanYe roles$ 

Richard was formerly Chief 
FinanYial EffiYer at Novion 
Proferty Grouf$ Prior to this" 
HiYhard was AYting General 
Canager for Suferannuation" 
Caraeting � :ireYt at  
BT FinanYial Grouf after  
three years as Chief Financial 
EffiYer$ Previously" HiYhard  
was 9hief FinanYial EffiYer  
for MestfaY New Pealand 
Bimited and ?nfrastruYture  
Fund Canager and 9hief 
FinanYial EffiYer at 9olonial 
First State Global Asset 
Canagement (9FSGAC)$ 

HiYhard is a member of 
the ?nstitute of 9hartered 
AYYountants in Australia$
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Simone Carroll
Executive General Manager 
Digital, Marketing, People  
and Culture

Stuart Macrae
Executive General Manager 
Leasing

Simone 9arroll `oined LiYinity 
9entres in November (&1+ 
and has Ylose to (& years¾ 
exferienYe in business 
transformation" with a strong 
YommerYial baYaground that 
spans human resources, 
maraeting" sales and 
YommerYial strategy" as well 
as digital froduYt develofment 
and data analytiYs$

Prior to her role with LiYinity" 
Simone held exeYutive 
leadership positions and 
advisor roles for numerous 
online digitally led domestiY 
and international businesses$ 
Cost reYently" Simone was 
;xeYutive General Canager 
Peofle and Brand :ireYtor  
at digital advertising Yomfany 
H;A Grouf$

?n (&1)" Simone was 
reYognised as Australian  
>H :ireYtor of the Year$

Stuart CaYrae `oined LiYinity 
9entres in @une (&1+ following 
the Cerger with Novion Proferty 
Grouf (Novion)" and has more 
than (+ years¾ exferienYe 
in froferty management" 
develofment and leasing$ 

Prior to his Yurrent 
appointment, he was General 
Canager of Beasing with 
Novion (and formerly 9FSGAC 
Proferty) sinYe (&&($ Stuart 
also held a number of senior 
leasing roles within Gandel 
Hetail Canagement from  
1/./ to (&&($

Stuart Macrae
Executive General Manager

Stuart CaYrae `oined LiYinity 
9entres in @une (&1+ following 
the Cerger with Novion Proferty 
Grouf (Novion)" and has more 
than (+ years¾ exferienYe 
in froferty management" 
develofment and leasing$ 

Prior to his Yurrent 
appointment, he was General 
Canager of Beasing with 
Novion (and formerly 9FSGAC 
Proferty) sinYe (&&($ Stuart 
also held a number of senior 
leasing roles within Gandel 
Hetail Canagement from 

Executive General Manager

Stuart CaYrae `oined LiYinity 
9entres in @une (&1+ following 
the Cerger with Novion Proferty 
Grouf (Novion)" and has more 
than (+ years¾ exferienYe 
in froferty management" 
develofment and leasing$ 

appointment, he was General 
Canager of Beasing with 
Novion (and formerly 9FSGAC 
Proferty) sinYe (&&($ Stuart 
also held a number of senior 
leasing roles within Gandel 
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Tax Transparency

Our approach to tax
Vicinity operates under a comprehensive 
tax risa management framewora whiYh  
is designed to ensure that LiYinity always 
conducts itself in a lawful manner with 
resfeYt to all of its tax obligations$ ?n 
Yarrying on its aYtivities" LiYinity0

• has robust tax governanYe" with ongoing 
oversight from LiYinity¾s aey exeYutives" 
Audit 9ommittee and Board of :ireYtors

• has a low risa affetite and does not 
engage in aggressive tax flanning  
and strategies

• is Yonservatively geared with a fubliYally 
disYlosed target gearing range of (+� 
to )+�

• is wholly domestic, does not have any 
offshore subsidiaries and therefore 
has no related farty Yross#border 
transactions

• undertaaes to Yomfly with all of its 
statutory obligations in a timely and 
transparent manner, and

• engages direYtly with the Australian 
Taxation EffiYe (ATE) to frovide greater 
transfarenYy and understanding of 
LiYinity¾s tax affairs$ 

Everall" LiYinity¾s tax Yulture and business 
fraYtiYes are driven by our Lision and 
Values, and are consistent with our 
Purfose of enriYhing the Yommunities 
that we serve$

Our strategy and business 
prospects 
Page &.

Australian tax transparency
To imfrove the transfarenYy of business 
tax affairs in Australia" the Board of 
Taxation designed the Tax TransfarenYy 
9ode (TT9) in (&16 to outline a set of 
principles and minimum standards for  
the furfose of guiding the disYlosure  
of tax information$ ?n adofting the TT9¾s 
guidelines for the seYond year" LiYinity 
aims to continue to provide informative 
disYlosure on its tax affairs$ 

Furthermore" LiYinity Bimited" as a 
Yorforate taxfayer with total inYome 
in exYess of �1&& million" is sub`eYt 
to the ATE¾s PubliY :isYlosure of ;ntity 
?nformation Hefort that is released 
annually$ This refort disYloses LiYinity 
Bimited¾s total inYome" taxable inYome 
and inYome tax fayable for the relevant 
finanYial year$

Further information 
Page *(

LiYinity values having a good relationshif 
with all external regulatory bodies" inYluding 
the ATE$ As a Aey Taxfayer" LiYinity is 
woraing with the ATE in its Pre#Bodgement 
9omflianYe Heview (P9H) frogram$ Knder 
the P9H frogram" LiYinity engages with the 
ATE on a real#time basis so that" where 
fossible" YlearanYe of any tax issues and 
transaYtions oYYurs frior to the lodgement 
of LiYinity¾s annual inYome tax returns$ 
Vicinity has a history of compliance, which 
is reÇeYtive of its affroaYh and attitude 
towards the ATE$

Tax governance
LiYinity¾s Tax Hisa Canagement Framewora 
(the Framewora) enables YomflianYe 
with tax laws and the management of tax 
risa through the imflementation of a set 
of tax foliYies" froYedures and systems 
aYross the LiYinity business$ 

The Framewora outlines the role of 
management teams" defines their 
resfonsibility and also frovides esYalation 
frotoYols within management" the Audit 
9ommittee and the Board to effeYtively 
manage tax risa$ The Framewora guides 
management on how to affrofriately 
analyse" mitigate and refort tax risas$ 
Further" a robust set of internal Yontrols 
has been fut in flaYe inYluding feriodiY 
reYonYiliations" information teYhnology 
systems and frovision for external advisor 
review" along with audit froYedures 
to ensure the Framewora effeYtively 
addresses tax risa$ Finally" the Framewora 
also gives authority to management to 
engage and Yonsult with regulatory bodies 
(inYluding the ATE) regarding tax foliYy" 
tax reform and tax law design on matters 
that affeYt LiYinity¾s business and its 
seYurityholders$

Group structure
Vicinity has a stapled structure, with each 
stafled seYurity Yomfrising one share in  
a Yomfany (LiYinity Bimited) and one unit 
in a trust (LiYinity 9entres Trust)$ 

LiYinity Bimited" and its wholly owned 
grouf of entities" undertaaes the business 
of managing LiYinity¾s shoffing Yentre 
fortfolio inYluding froferty management" 
develofment management and resfonsible  
entity and trustee services for Vicinity 
9entres Trust" its sub#trusts and external 
wholesale funds$ LiYinity Bimited also 
provides property and development 
management serviYes for `oint owners  
of LiYinity¾s assets and other third farties$

LiYinity 9entres Trust is a managed 
investment sYheme oferating in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001" and is regulated by the Australian 
SeYurities and ?nvestments 9ommission 
(AS?9)$ LiYinity 9entres Trust and its 
controlled trusts hold the real estate 
investments for LiYinity$

The stafling of Yomfanies to trusts to 
Yreate Australian Heal ;state ?nvestment 
Trusts (AH;?Ts)" as in the Yase of LiYinity 
and its fredeYessor organisations" has 
been YommonflaYe in the Australian 
froferty industry sinYe the 1//&s$  
A stafled froferty grouf generally holds 
its real estate investments within a trust, 
while its management and other trading 
aYtivities are held by the Yomfany$ The 
structure provides securityholders the 
offortunity to invest in froferty through 
a regulated and managed sYheme" while 
at the same time allowing seYurityholders 
to reYeive the benefits and effiYienYies 
that result from property investment as if 
they held their investment direYtly$ These 
benefits extend to Çow#through of the 
taxable inYome (inYluding Yafital gains) 
of the trust so that this inYome is taxed 
direYtly in the hands of the seYurityholder$
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Stapled structures review
En (* CarYh (&17" Federal Treasury 
announced a review of stapled structures 
in Australia and released its Consultation 
Pafer on Stafled StruYtures$ The review 
is being undertaaen at the direYtion of the 
Federal Treasurer with a view to froteYting 
the integrity of Australia¾s Yorforate tax 
system$ Federal Treasury is seeaing to 
ensure that stapled structures are not 
being inaffrofriately used as a means  
of re#YharaYterising trading inYome into 
more favourably taxed fassive inYome$ 
Federal Treasury has consistently 
indiYated throughout Yonsultation that  
its integrity YonYern regarding the use  
of stafled struYtures does not extend  
to traditional froferty stafles liae LiYinity$ 

As a leader in the Australian property 
industry and a stafled AH;?T" LiYinity  
has been aYtively engaged in the 
consultation process with Treasury and 
also made written submissions$ ?n its 
submissions" LiYinity has outlined its 
views and suggestions on ensuring that 
Australia¾s regime for taxing froferty is 
affrofriately balanYed and fosters an 
environment that promotes investment, 
growth and effiYienYy$

Vicinity will continue to monitor and 
engage with Federal Treasury to ensure 
that they understand the impact of any 
potential reforms on Vicinity’s structure 
and its seYurityholder¾s tax fosition" as 
well as to ensure that it is in a position to 
appropriately adapt to the implementation 
of any announYed reforms$ 

Taxation of Vicinity
LiYinity is a tax resident of Australia and 
operates entirely within the Australian 
maraet$ LiYinity does not own any foreign 
assets" nor does it have any foreign 
subsidiaries$

As desYribed above" LiYinity is a stafled 
grouf that Yonsists of Yomfanies and 
trusts$ Knder Australian tax law" Yomfanies 
are sub`eYt to inYome tax at the affliYable 
Yorforate tax rate ()&� for FY17) on their 
taxable inYome$ Trusts" in Yomfarison" are 

generally taxed on a Çow#through basis" 
meaning that a trust¾s taxable inYome is 
taxed in the hands of the benefiYiaries (or 
in the Yase of LiYinity" its seYurityholders) 
at their affliYable tax rates$

LiYinity Bimited and its wholly owned grouf 
of entities are consolidated for income 
tax furfoses" resulting in all members of 
the Yonsolidated grouf being treated as 
a single Yorforate taxfayer$ As a result" 
LiYinity Bimited is resfonsible for the 
inYome tax liability of the Yonsolidated 
tax grouf" and intra#grouf transaYtions 
are eliminated in order to determine the 
Yonsolidated tax grouf¾s taxable inYome$

Vicinity Centres Trust and its controlled 
trusts are not liable to fay inYome tax 
(inYluding Yafital gains tax)" as the taxable 
income from their property investments 
Çows through the trust and is taxed in the 
hands of seYurityholders annually$ LiYinity¾s 
seYurityholders fay tax at their marginal 
tax rates" in the Yase of Australian resident 
seYurityholders" or through the Canaged 
?nvestment Trust (C?T) withholding tax rules 
for non#resident seYurityholders$

Reconciliation of accounting 
profit to income tax paiZ
A full reYonYiliation of LiYinity¾s aYYounting 
net frofit to inYome tax faid is inYluded  
in the deferred and Yurrent tax note 
in Note ) of the FinanYial Hefort$ 
?n interfreting the disYlosure in the 
deferred and Yurrent tax note" it should 
be noted that the aYYounting net frofit 
is determined in accordance with the 
Australian AYYounting Standards$ Taxable 
inYome" in Yontrast" is a YonYeft defined 
under inYome tax law" whiYh is YalYulated 
by subtraYting allowable deduYtions from 
assessable inYome$ A taxfayer¾s inYome 
tax liability is YalYulated by multiflying its 
taxable inYome by its affliYable tax rate$

The aYYounting net frofit that was 
attributable to seYurityholders of  
Vicinity Centres Trust and its controlled 
entities was �1"+/+$/ million for FY17$ 
This aYYounting net frofit was derived 
through its trust struYture" so the taxable  

inYome that is referrable to this net  
frofit is therefore taxed in the hands  
of seYurityholders" as desYribed above$

The LiYinity Bimited Yonsolidated  
grouf generated an aYYounting loss  
of �1($) million$ Mith resfeYt to its tax 
fosition for FY17" the LiYinity Bimited 
inYome tax Yonsolidated grouf generated 
a tax loss of affroximately �7* million$ 
The tax loss was frimarily driven by the 
aYYounting loss" ad`usted for allowable 
deduYtions (of �*.$/ million1) that arose 
from the internalisation of management 
in (&1*$ AYYordingly" LiYinity Bimited is 
not reguired to fay inYome tax for FY17$ 
LiYinity Bimited¾s losses that are Yarried 
forward to later income years are partly 
reYognised through its deferred tax asset 
balanYe and desYribed in detail in the 
deferred and Yurrent tax disYlosures at 
Note )(Y) of the FinanYial Hefort$ LiYinity 
Bimited will fay tax when it fully utilises  
its tax losses and other deferred tax assets$

?t is noted that LiYinity Bimited¾s nil taxable 
inYome and nil inYome tax fayable will be 
reforted in the ATE¾s PubliY :isYlosure of 
;ntity ?nformation Hefort for FY17" whiYh  
is exfeYted to be released in late (&1.$

Effective tax rate
Knder the TT9" LiYinity has Yhosen  
to YalYulate its effeYtive tax rate (;TH)  
as inYome tax exfense (Yurrent and 
deferred) divided by aYYounting frofit$  
?t is noted that this is a simflified method 
of YalYulating the ;TH" and should not 
be Yomfared to the Yorforate tax rate 
without affreYiating the differenYes 
between aYYounting frofit and taxable 
inYome (as exflained above)$ Further 
information is available on the ATE¾s tax 
transfarenYy webfage$

Further information 
Page *(

Given that Vicinity Centres Trust does 
not fay inYome tax (rather" tax is faid by 
LiYinity¾s seYurityholders)" it has nil inYome 
tax exfense and therefore nil ;TH$ LiYinity 
Bimited will not fay inYome tax in resfeYt 
of FY17 due to its tax losses" henYe it has 
nil tax exfense and therefore nil ;TH$

1$  Although the Yonsideration for the internalisation of the funds management business was faid in FY1*" the 
allowable deduYtions are reguired to be amortised for tax furfoses over five years (refer to Note ) of the 
FinanYial Hefort for further information)$
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Tax Transparency continued

Contributions to the 
Australian tax system
LiYinity 9entres Trust¾s Çow#through  
trust status means that Vicinity 
seYurityholders fay inYome tax direYtly  
on LiYinity¾s froferty investments inYome$ 
For FY17" LiYinity¾s seYurityholders 
will fay inYome tax on the taxable 
Yomfonents of the �6.*$. million 
distribution faid to them$ The taxable 
Yomfonents of the distribution will be 
communicated to securityholders and 
ufloaded onto the LiYinity website" 
along with the Fund Payment notiYe 
for C?T withholding furfoses" in late 
August (&17$ As the ma`ority of our 

non#resident seYurityholders hold their 
interests indireYtly (for examfle through 
Yustodians)" the Fund Payment notiYe 
informs these third parties of the amount 
of tax to withhold from our distribution$

Additionally" as a business that oferates 
in the Australian property industry, Vicinity 
is sub`eYt to various other taxes at the 
federal" state and loYal government 
levels$ ?n FY17" these taxes amounted 
to affroximately �((+$) million and are 
either borne by LiYinity as a Yost of our 
business" or are remitted by LiYinity as fart 
of our Yontribution to the administration 
of the tax system$1 As Yan be seen below" 
the taxes remitted inYlude fay as you 

1$ ?n this regard" LiYinity inYludes entities whiYh have been eguity aYYounted in these finanYial statements$

($  Band tax and loYal rates and levies data has been extraYted from the grouf finanYial statements and therefore 
may vary from the aYtual taxes faid in FY16 and FY17 due to timing differenYes$ 

)$  Net GST remitted for FY17 is Yomfrised of �1.&$( million of GST YolleYted (FY160 �1.+$* million) and 
�1&*$+ million of GST Ylaimed (FY160 �11&$+ million)$ 

*$  This refresents taxes withheld from LiYinity¾s seYurityholders$ As the ma`ority of our seYurityholders either 
suffly their tax file number or in the Yase of non#residents" hold their interests indireYtly" this figure is not 
refresentative of the taxes aYtually faid by our seYurityholders$

go (PAYG) withholding taxes faid by our 
emfloyees and Goods and ServiYes Tax 
(GST) we YolleYt from our retailers who rent 
sfaYe in our Yentres" net of GST Ylaimed 
by LiYinity on its own furYhases$

The information frovided below 
summarises LiYinity¾s Australian tax 
Yontribution for FY17$ The most material 
Yhanges between the taxes faid in FY16 
and FY17 arise in the areas of stamf duty 
and loYal rates and levies1 FY16 inYluded 
stamf duty faid on the merger to Yreate 
Vicinity, while local rates and levies 
have fallen during FY17 due to asset 
sales through the year$ Payroll taxes and 
PAYG withholding were also higher in the 
frior year due to signifiYant feofle Yost 
assoYiated with the merger$ 

Further information
• LiYinity Bimited taxes faid information  

is fublished by the ATE in its Hefort  
of ;ntity ?nformation fublished on0  
data$gov$au%dataset%Yorforate#
transparency

• A breaadown of the taxable Yomfonents 
that securityholders receive via their 
annual taxation statements will be 
available in late August on LiYinity¾s 
website0 viYinity$Yom$au

• ATE¾s webfage on tax transfarenYy 
for Yorforate tax entities" inYluding 
baYaground information and 
exflanations0 ato$gov$au%Business%
Barge#business%?n#detail%Tax#
transfarenYy%Tax#transfarenYy##
reforting#of#entity#tax#information

• The Treasury¾s 9onsultation Pafer  
on Stafled StruYtures (CarYh (&17)  
is fublished on0 treasury$gov$au% 
9onsultationsandHeviews%9onsultations% 
(&17%Stafled#StruYtures 

Local rates and levies2

Land tax2

Stamp duty – property acquisitions

Fringe benefits tax (FBT)

Payroll tax

Workcover contributions

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Total taxes borne by Vicinity ($m)
$95.4 million

Stamp duty – merger 63.2
0

0.7

1.0

0.6

1.4

9.2
12.0

9.9
18.9

30.3
30.8

44.3
50.3

Net GST remitted3

Pay as you go (PAYG) withholding

Taxes withheld from investors4

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 8070

Total taxes remitted by Vicinity ($m)
$129.9 million

FY16 FY17

0.7
0.8

53.5
59.7

75.7
74.9
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Sustainability Assurance Statement

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

 

 

Independent Limited Assurance Statement to the 
Management and Directors of Vicinity Centres 
 

What our review covered 

We reviewed a selection of Vicinity Centres’ sustainability 
performance data for the year ended 30 June 2017, as shown in 
the table below:  

Selected sustainability performance data Annual Report page 

Carbon intensity (scope 1 and 2) (kg CO2-
e/sqm) 3, 12 

Energy intensity (MJ/sqm) 12 

Waste diversion rate (% recovered for 
recycling) 12 

Community investment ($) 3, 4, 12 & 28 

TRIFR (Total recordable injury frequency 
rate) 12 

Diversity (% representation of women by 
level) 

12 
(13 & 14 of Corporate 

Governance Statement) 

Gross lettable area (GLA) (sqm) 14 

Criteria applied by Vicinity Centres  

The following criteria have been applied:  

► specific criteria from the Global Reporting Initiative Standards 

► Vicinity Centres’ own criteria and management methods as set 
out in its publicly disclosed Sustainability Reporting Criteria, 
available at: 
http://www.vicinity.com.au/sustainability/governance-and-
performance. 

Key responsibilities  
EY’s responsibility and independence 
Our responsibility was to express a limited assurance conclusion 
on the disclosures of selected sustainability metrics. 
We were also responsible for maintaining our independence and 
confirm that we have met the independence requirements of the 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and have 
the required competencies and experience to conduct this 
assurance engagement. 

Vicinity Centres’ responsibility  
Vicinity Centres’ management was responsible for selecting the 
Criteria, and preparing and fairly presenting the selected 
sustainability performance data in accordance with that Criteria. 
This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal 
controls, adequate records and making estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.   

Our approach to conducting the review 
We conducted this review in accordance with the Standard for 
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of 
Historical Financial Information (ASAE 3000), Assurance 
Engagements on Greenhouse Gas Statements (ASAE 3410) and 
the terms of reference for this engagement as agreed with Vicinity 
Centres 21 June 2017. 

 

Summary of review procedures performed  
Our procedures included, but were not limited to: 

► Gaining an understanding of the processes supporting the 
development of data for Vicinity Centres’ sustainability 
disclosures 

► Conducting interviews with key personnel to understand 
Vicinity Centres’ process for collecting, collating and reporting 
the selected sustainability performance data during the 
reporting period 

► Checking that the Criteria has been correctly applied in the 
calculation of the selected sustainability performance data   

► Undertaking analytical review procedures to support the 
reasonableness of the data 

► Identifying and testing assumptions supporting calculations 

► Testing the calculations performed by Vicinity Centres 

► Testing, on a sample basis, underlying source information to 
check the accuracy of the data 

► Reviewing the appropriateness of the presentation of 
information. 

We believe that the evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our limited assurance conclusions. 

 

Ernst & Young        Terence Jeyaretnam 
Melbourne, Australia       Partner 

16 August 2017 

Our Conclusion 

We were engaged by Vicinity Centres to undertake limited assurance as defined by Australian Auditing Standards and below, and 
hereafter referred to as a ‘review’, over Vicinity Centres’ disclosures of selected sustainability performance data included in Vicinity 
Centres’ 2017 Annual Report and Corporate Governance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2017. Based on the work we 
performed, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the selected sustainability performance data had not been 
prepared and presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the reporting criteria. 

Limited Assurance 

Procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in 
nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a 
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of 
assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is 
substantially lower than the assurance that would have been 
obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been 
performed.  

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal 
controls when determining the nature and extent of our 
procedures, our assurance engagement was not designed to 
provide assurance on internal controls. Our procedures did not 
include testing controls or performing procedures relating to 
checking aggregation or calculation of data within IT systems. 

Use of our Assurance Statement 

We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on 
this assurance report to any persons other than management and 
the Directors of Vicinity Centres, or for any purpose other than that 
for which it was prepared. 
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Directors’ Report

The :ireYtors of LiYinity Bimited fresent the FinanYial Hefort of LiYinity 9entres (LiYinity or the Grouf) for the year ended )& @une 
(&17$ LiYinity 9entres is a stafled grouf Yomfrising LiYinity Bimited (the 9omfany) and LiYinity 9entres Trust (the Trust)$ Although 
sefarate entities" the Stafling :eed entered into by the 9omfany and the Trust ensures that shares in the 9omfany and units in  
the Trust are ½stafled¾ together and are traded YolleYtively on the Australian SeYurities ;xYhange" under the Yode ½L9N¾$

Directors
The Boards of :ireYtors of the 9omfany and LiYinity 9entres H; Btd" as Hesfonsible ;ntity (H;) of the Trust (together" the LiYinity 
Board) Yonsist of the same :ireYtors$ The following fersons were members of the LiYinity Board from 1 @uly (&16 and uf to the 
date of this report unless otherwise stated:

(i) Chairman

Peter >ay (?ndefendent) 

(ii) Non-executive Directors

9harles CaYea (?ndefendent)1 

:avid Thurin

:ebra Stirling (?ndefendent)1

Aaren Penrose (?ndefendent)

Peter Aahan 

HiYhard >addoYa AC (?ndefendent) (retired )& Afril (&17) 

Tim >ammon (?ndefendent)

Trevor Gerber (?ndefendent)

Mai Tang (?ndefendent)

(iii) Executive Director

Angus CYNaughton (9;E and Canaging :ireYtor)(

Further information on the baYaground and exferienYe of the :ireYtors is Yontained on fages )* to )6 of this refort$ 

Company Secretaries
Carolyn Reynolds

CiYhelle Brady 

Principal activities
The Grouf has its frinYifal flaYe of business at Bevel *" 9hadstone Tower Ene" 1)*1 :andenong Hoad" 9hadstone" LiYtoria )1*.$

The frinYifal aYtivities of the Grouf during the year were froferty investment" froferty management" froferty develofment" leasing 
and funds management$ 

Review of results and operations
The Eferating and FinanYial Heview is Yontained on fages &. to (& of this refort$

Ii]nificant matters
The :ireYtors are not aware of any matter or YirYumstanYe not otherwise dealt with in the :ireYtors¾ Hefort or the finanYial 
statements that has signifiYantly affeYted or may signifiYantly affeYt" the oferations of the Grouf" the results of those oferations"  
or the state of the Grouf¾s affairs in future finanYial years$

1$  Cr 9harles CaYea and Cs :ebra Stirling have announYed their intention to retire as Non#exeYutive :ireYtors at the Annual General 
Ceeting to be held on 16 November (&17$

($  As announYed on (( @une (&17" 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor" Cr Angus CYNaughton" has advised of his intention to retire during 
the (&1. finanYial year$ En 11 August (&17" the Grouf announYed Cr Grant Aelley would suYYeed Cr Angus CYNaughton 9;E 
and Canaging :ireYtor" with a flanned YommenYement date of 1 @anuary (&1.$
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Directors’ Report continued

Distributions
Total distributions deYlared by LiYinity during the year were as follows0

Total
$m

Cents per  
stapled security

?nterim ¹ )1 :eYember (&16 344.4 .$7
Final ¹ )& @une (&17 340.4 .$6
Total – year end 684.8 17$)

The final distribution of .$6 Yents fer stafled seYurity will be faid on )& August (&17$

Director-related information
Meetings of Directors held during the year

Board
Special Purpose 

Board1

Audit  
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Risk and 
Compliance 
Committee

Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended
Peter >ay 7 7 ) ) # # # # # #
Angus CYNaughton 7 7 ) ) # # # # # #
9harles CaYea 7 7 ) ) # # 6 6 # #
:avid Thurin 7 7 ) ) # # # # * *
:ebra Stirling 7 7 ) ) # # 6 6 * *
Aaren Penrose 7 7 ) ) 7 7 # # * *
Peter Aahan 7 7 ) ) 7 7 6 6 # #
HiYhard >addoYa 6 6 ( ( 6 6 # # ) )
Tim Hammon 7 7 ) ) # # 6 6 * *
Trevor Gerber 7 7 ) ) 7 7 6 6 # #
Mai Tang 7 7 ) ) 7 7 # # * *

1$ SfeYial furfose Board meetings were sYheduled and Yonvened at short notiYe to Yonsider sfeYial furfose affrovals$

LiYinity also has a Nominations 9ommittee Yonsisting of Cr >ay" Cr >ammon" Cr CaYea and Cr Aahan$ All members attended  
the three Nominations 9ommittee meetings held during the year$

Director security holdings
:ireYtor seYurity holdings as at )& @une (&17 are detailed within the Hemuneration Hefort$ There have been no movements in 
seYurity holdings between )& @une (&17 and the date of this refort$

?nZemnification anZ inskrance of :irectors anZ Efficers
The 9omfany must indemnify the :ireYtors" on a full indemnity basis and to the full extent fermitted by law" against all losses or 
liabilities inYurred by the :ireYtors as offiYers of the 9omfany or of a related body Yorforate frovided that the loss or liability does 
not arise out of misYonduYt" inYluding laYa of good faith$

:uring the finanYial year" the 9omfany insured its :ireYtors" SeYretaries and EffiYers against liability to third farties and for Yosts 
inYurred in defending any Yivil or Yriminal froYeedings that may be brought against them in their YafaYity as :ireYtors or EffiYers 
of LiYinity$ This exYludes a liability that arises out of wilful breaYh of duty or imfrofer use of inside information$ The fremium also 
insures the 9omfany for any indemnity fayments it may maae to its EffiYers in resfeYt of Yosts and liabilities inYurred$ :isYlosure  
of the fremium fayable is frohibited under the Yonditions of the foliYy$
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Auditor-related information
;rnst � Young (;Y) is the auditor of the Grouf and is loYated at . ;xhibition Street" Celbourne" LiYtoria )&&&$

?nZemnification of akZitor
To the extent fermitted by law" the 9omfany has agreed to indemnify ;Y" as fart of the terms of its audit engagement agreement" 
against Ylaims by third farties arising from the audit (for an unsfeYified amount)$ The indemnity does not affly to any loss arising 
out of any breaYh of the audit engagement agreement or from ;Y¾s negligent" wrongful or wilful aYts or omissions$ No fayment  
has been made under this indemnity to ;Y during or sinYe the end of the finanYial year$

Non-audit services
The Grouf may deYide to emfloy the auditor on assignments additional to statutory audit duties where the auditor¾s exfertise  
and exferienYe with the Grouf are essential and will not Yomfromise auditor indefendenYe$

:etails of the amounts faid or fayable to ;Y for audit and non#audit serviYes frovided during the year are set out in Note 17  
to the FinanYial Hefort$

The Board has Yonsidered the non#audit serviYes frovided during the year and is satisfied these serviYes are Yomfatible with the 
general standard of indefendenYe for auditors imfosed by the Corporations Act 2001 (9th) for the following reasons0 

• All non#audit serviYes have been reviewed by the Audit 9ommittee to ensure they do not imfaYt the imfartiality and ob`eYtivity  
of the auditor; and

• None of the serviYes undermine the general frinYifles relating to auditor indefendenYe as set out in AP;S 11& Code of Ethics  
for Professional Accountants$

A Yofy of the Auditor¾s ?ndefendenYe :eYlaration as reguired under seYtion )&79 of the Corporations Act 2001 (9th) is inYluded 
immediately following the :ireYtors¾ Hefort$

Environmental regulation
The Grouf is sub`eYt to the reforting obligations under the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting (NGER) Act 2007 (9th)$ 
This reguires the Grouf to refort annual greenhouse gas emissions" energy use and froduYtion for all assets under management 
for years ending )& @une$ The Grouf met this obligation by submitting its NG;H refort to the :efartment of the ;nvironment and 
;nergy for the year ended )& @une (&16 by )1 EYtober (&16$ The (&17 NG;H refort will be submitted by the )1 EYtober (&17 
deadline$ The Grouf monitors its other environmental legal obligations and is Yomfliant for the reforting feriod$

Corporate governance
?n reYognition of the need for high standards of Yorforate behaviour and aYYountability" the :ireYtors of the 9omfany have 
adofted and refort against the third edition of the ASN 9orforate GovernanYe 9ounYil¾s 9orforate GovernanYe PrinYifles and 
HeYommendations$ The full 9orforate GovernanYe Statement is available on the 9orforate GovernanYe seYtion of LiYinity¾s website 
at viYinity$Yom$au$ 
 

Options over unissued securities
As at )& @une (&17 and at the date of this refort" there were 6"1(1"*1/ unissued ordinary seYurities under oftion in the form of 
ferformanYe rights$ Hefer to the Hemuneration Hefort for further details of the oftions outstanding for Aey Canagement Personnel$

Eftion holders do not have any rights" by virtue of the oftion" to fartiYifate in any seYurity issue of the Grouf$
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Directors’ Report continued

Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
On-market securities buy-back
En (+ @uly (&17" the Grouf announYed an on#maraet buy#baYa frogram of uf to +� of ordinary seYurities on issue$ The Grouf  
will only furYhase seYurities where doing so is aYYretive to earnings fer seYurity and NTA" while also freserving amfle YafaYity  
to fund other Yafital reguirements$

Appointment of nem 9^ief ;xecktive Efficer (9;E) anZ Cana]in] :irector
En 11 August (&17" the Grouf announYed Cr Grant Aelley would suYYeed Cr Angus CYNaughton as 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor" 
with a flanned YommenYement date of 1 @anuary (&1.$

Vicinity Board changes
En )1 @uly (&17 the Grouf announYed the affointment of Cs @anette Aendall as an ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtor to the 
Boards of LiYinity Bimited and LiYinity 9entres H; Btd" effeYtive from 1 :eYember (&17$ Cr 9harles CaYea and Cs :ebra Stirling  
will retire as ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtors at the Annual General Ceeting to be held on 16 November (&17$

No matters other than those identified above have arisen sinYe the end of the year whiYh have signifiYantly affeYted" or may 
signifiYantly affeYt" the oferations of the Grouf" the results of those oferations" or the state of affairs of the Grouf in future  
finanYial feriods$ 

Rounding of amounts
The 9omfany is an entity of a aind referred to in Begislative ?nstrument (&16%1/1" issued by the Australian SeYurities and 
?nvestments 9ommission" relating to the ½rounding off¾ of amounts in the :ireYtors¾ Hefort$ AYYordingly" amounts in the :ireYtors¾ 
Hefort have been rounded off to the nearest tenth of a million dollars (�m) in aYYordanYe with that Begislative ?nstrument" unless 
stated otherwise$
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Remuneration Report

Charles Macek
Chairman – Remuneration and Human Resources Committee

:ear SeYurityholders

En behalf of the Board" ? am fleased to 
fresent our FY17 Hemuneration Hefort 
for whiYh we will seea your affroval at 
our Annual General Ceeting in November 
(&17$ The Hemuneration Hefort 
is designed to frovide you with the 
necessary information to demonstrate 
the lina between LiYinity¾s strategy" 
performance, and the remuneration 
outYomes for our ;xeYutive Aey 
Canagement Personnel (ACP)$
 
?n FY17" LiYinity delivered solid finanYial 
ferformanYe and made strong frogress 
towards our strategiY ob`eYtives$ 

?ntegration aYtivities were suYYessfully 
YonYluded well ahead of frogram and 
merger synergy targets were exYeeded$ 
EYYufanYy of //$+�" whiYh is ahead 
of target desfite a Yhallenging retail 
environment" together with a strong 
leasing sfread outYome enabled net 
froferty inYome to exYeed budget$  
This Yontributed to underlying earnings 
fer seYurity of 1.$7 Yents" whiYh" when 
Yombined with strong valuation gains" 
resulted in a total return of 1+$+� being 
reYorded for the year ended )& @une 
(&17$ Statutory net frofit for the year 
was �1"+.)$6 million$

Letter from Chairman of the Remuneration and Human Resources Committee

?n our seYond year sinYe formation in 
@une (&1+" the LiYinity Yulture Yontinues 
to evolve$ ;mbedding a digital mindset  
in the :NA of our Yulture is an imferative$ 
9entral to this is agility" with a foYus  
on Yustomers" both Yonsumers and 
retailers$ Pleasingly" muYh frogress in  
this transformation has occurred over  
the fast 1( months$ There has been a 
signifiYant imfrovement in our emfloyee 
engagement sYore from 66� to 71� and 
our feofle have embraYed our refined 
Yomfany values0 Me Always 9ollaborate" 
Me ;mbraYe :iversity and Me ?magine  
a Better May$ 

This year" we flaYed signifiYant emfhasis 
on develofing senior leadershif Yafability" 
imflementing our diversity and inYlusion 
frogram whiYh is foYused on gender" age 
and mental health" and strengthening the 
connection we have with our communities 
through investment" volunteering and 
woraflaYe giving frograms$

Mith underlying earnings fer seYurity in 
line with target and strong total returns 
aYhieved" an average of 6+� of the 
maximum Short Term ?nYentive (ST?) Plan 
offortunity available was awarded to 
;xeYutive ACP$ 

EnYe again" to reYognise the imfortanYe 
of the Yontribution by all emfloyees we 
maintain an ;xemft ;mfloyee SeYurity 
Plan (;;SP)$ This enables LiYinity to gift 
uf to �1"&&& worth of seYurities to eaYh 
eligible emfloyee$ This year we exfeYt 
`ust over 1"&&& emfloyees to benefit 
from the ;;SP$

The retirement of Angus CYNaughton" 
9;E and Canaging :ireYtor" effeYtive 
)1 :eYember (&17 will signify a new 
era for LiYinity" but with our strong 
exeYutive team and oferating flatform" 
and a strong alignment between our 
strategy" ferformanYe and remuneration 
framewora" ? am Yonfident that LiYinity  
is well fositioned for the future$

Charles Macek
9hairman ¹ Hemuneration and >uman 
Resources Committee
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Remuneration Report continued

Report overview
This Remuneration Report outlines:

• LiYinity¾s reward frinYifles and framewora1

• LiYinity¾s ferformanYe for the (&17 finanYial year and the remuneration outYomes for ;xeYutive ACP1 and

• Hemuneration reYeived by :ireYtors and ;xeYutive ACP$

The Yontents of the Hemuneration Hefort (as set out below) are governed by s)&&A of the Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations 
Begislation$ Knless otherwise noted" figures Yontained within this refort are frefared on a basis Yonsistent with the reguirements  
of Australian AYYounting Standards and have been audited$

1. Remuneration framework 51
2. Company performance and executive remuneration outcomes 52
3. Executive remuneration – further information 58
4. Non-executive Director remuneration 61
5. Other remuneration information 63
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1. Remuneration framework
1.1 Reward principles and framework
The ob`eYtive of LiYinity¾s remuneration framewora is to build Yafability by attraYting" retaining and engaging a talented exeYutive team 
while aligning their aYtions with seYurityholder interests$ This is aYhieved through linaing exeYutive remuneration to both short and 
long#term Yomfany ferformanYe$ Eur framewora enYourages exeYutives to foYus on Yreating long#term growth and Yomflements our 
furfose of enriYhing Yommunity exferienYes by ensuring that short#term aYtions do not have a detrimental effeYt in the longer term$ 

The diagram below frovides a snafshot" linaing our reward frinYifles to the Yomfonents of our remuneration framewora and how 
these Yomfonents are measured to ensure that exeYutive and seYurityholder interests are aligned$

Reward principles

Attract, retain and motivate 
high#ferforming exeYutives$

:emonstrate lina between 
ferformanYe" strategy exeYution  

and value Yreation$

;nYourage exeYutives to  
manage from the fersfeYtive  

of seYurityholders$

Remuneration framework

Components Performance measures Strategic objective

Total Fixed Remuneration (TFR)

Base salary, superannuation and  
any salary sacrifice amounts.

Further details are contained  
in seYtion )$1$

!

• BenYhmaraed to Yomfetitive rates$

• Sipe" sYofe and Yomflexity  
of the role$

• The relevant `ob maraet$

• ?ndividual exferienYe" Yafability  
and ferformanYe$

• Remuneration set at competitive 
levels" to attraYt" retain and engage 
aey talent$

Short Term Incentive (STI)

Annual bonus opportunity, 12-month 
performance period subject to 
performance targets.

Partially paid in cash and partially 
deferred into equity (24-month 
deferral for the CEO and Managing 
Director and 18 months for other 
Executive KMP).

Further details are contained in 
seYtion )$($

!

Ceasured against four ferformanYe 
Yategories0

• Financial: targets inYlude underlying 
earnings fer seYurity" net froferty 
inYome (NP?) and management 
exfense ratio$

• Strategic: relates to portfolio 
enhancement, development pipeline 
and digital strategy$

• People and leadership: includes 
Yulture" Yafability" emfloyee 
engagement and diversity and 
inYlusion$

• Operational excellence: comprises 
innovation" risa management" 
systems" froYesses" sustainability 
and safety metriYs$

• FinanYial targets relate to LiYinity¾s 
YafaYity to fay distributions and 
generate seYurityholder returns$

• StrategiY measures foYus on asset 
and business flanning$

• Peofle and leadershif ob`eYtives aim 
to fromote a Yulture and behaviours 
that drive company performance  
and reÇeYt our long#term ob`eYtives$

• Eferational exYellenYe areas foYus 
on froviding safe and sustainable 
environments for employees, 
consumers and retailers, and a  
drive for effiYienYy and innovation 
aYross the business$

Long Term Incentive (LTI)

Performance rights, three-year 
performance period, additional  
one-year holding lock.

Further details are contained  
in seYtion )$)$

The ferformanYe rights vest sub`eYt  
to achievement of an:

• ?nternal hurdle based on total  
return (TH)1 and

• ;xternal hurdle based on total 
seYurityholder return (TSH) relative  
to the S�P%ASN (&& A#H;?T 
(Australian Heal ;state ?nvestment 
Trust) ?ndex" exYluding Mestfield 
9orforation (ASN0MF:)$

• ;nYourages sustainable high 
ferformanYe over the medium to long 
term and seYurityholder value Yreation$

• Provides retention element$ 

• TH measures the extent to whiYh 
LiYinity effiYiently manages and 
extraYts value from LiYinity¾s assets$

• Helative TSH hurdle aligns 
remuneration with LiYinity¾s long#
term return relative to its nominated 
feer grouf$
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Remuneration Report continued

1. Remuneration framework continued
1.2 Pay mix
A signifiYant Yomfonent of exeYutive remuneration is linaed to short and long#term Yomfany ferformanYe to assist in aligning exeYutive 
interests with those of seYurityholders$ The relative weightings of the fixed and at risa Yomfonents of total target remuneration for 
;xeYutive ACP are detailed in Figure 1$1 below$ A higher frofortion of the 9;E¾s total remuneration is at risa as he has the greatest 
sYofe to inÇuenYe LiYinity¾s long#term ferformanYe$

Figure 1.1

TFR 34%
STI 33%
LTI 33%

9^ief ;xecktive Efficer

TFR 40%
STI 29%
LTI 31%

9^ief <inancial Efficer

TFR 42%
STI 27%
LTI 31%

Chief Investment Officer

1.3 Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The ACP of LiYinity inYludes all Non#exeYutive :ireYtors and those exeYutives who are deemed to have authority and resfonsibility 
for flanning" direYting and Yontrolling the aYtivities of LiYinity (;xeYutive ACP)$

A summary of ;xeYutive ACP during the year and their tenure as ACP is shown in Table 1$( below$ 

Table 1.2

Name1 Position Tenure
Angus CYNaughton 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor (9;E) Full year
HiYhard @amieson 9hief FinanYial EffiYer (9FE) Full year
CiYhael E¾Brien 9hief ?nvestment EffiYer (9?E) Full year

1$  Former ;xeYutive ACP who held ACP fositions during the year ended )& @une (&16 are inYluded in the statutory remuneration tables in seYtion ($*$

The list of Non#exeYutive :ireYtors during the Yurrent and frior years Yan be found in seYtion *$($

2. Company performance and executive remuneration outcomes
2.1 Overview of company performance
Ever the 1( months to )& @une (&17" LiYinity¾s net frofit was �1"+.)$6 million" underfinned by solid underlying fortfolio ferformanYe 
and strong froferty valuation gains$ Net tangible assets fer seYurity inYreased () Yents" or .$/�" to �($.( Yontributing to a total  
return of 1+$+� for the feriod$ 

LiYinity¾s underlying earnings for the year was �7*1$. million" or 1.$7 Yents on a fer seYurity basis" in line with guidanYe$ This 
refresented a deYrease of �1+$7 million" or ($1�" from the frior year due to the imfaYt of the non#Yore asset divestment frogram 
whiYh saw interests in 1/ retail assets disfosed sinYe 1 @uly (&1+$ The imfaYt of the disfosals was fartially offset by Yomfarable 
NP? growth" as a result of base rental and anYillary inYome growth" frudent froferty exfense management and additional NP? from 
develofments and aYguisitions$ Additionally" a 7$)� reduYtion in net Yorforate overheads was aYhieved" reÇeYting the strong foYus 
on oferational effiYienYies and the realisation of merger synergies$ 
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A Yontinued foYus on Yafital management was reYognised by Standard � Poor¾s raising LiYinity¾s Yredit rating to ½A¾ with stable 
outlooa in @anuary (&17$ Prudent Yafital alloYation deYisions and the divestment of interests in �1$7 billion of assets over the  
fast (* months have fut LiYinity in a strong Yafital fosition$ Gearing is (*$7� at )& @une (&17 and the weighted average debt  
duration is +$) years" with no debt exfiries in FY1.$

LiYinity¾s TSH relative underferformanYe in the feriod" together with other retail H;?Ts" is frimarily due to a Yontinuation of  
the ferYeftion of stronger Yonditions in offiYe maraets (fartiYularly Sydney and Celbourne)" softer retail trading Yonditions  
and the announYement by Amapon Yonfirming its exfansion into Australia$

Table ($1 below summarises details of LiYinity¾s ferformanYe for aey finanYial metriYs for the Yurrent and fast four finanYial years0 

Table 2.1

Performance metric FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17
SeYurity friYe as at )& @une (�) ($)7 ($*/ ($/( )$)( ($+7
:istributions deYlared fer seYurity (Yents) 1*$1 1+$71 16$/ 17$7 17$)
TSH for the year ended )& @une (7$)� 11$.� (*$*� (&$*� (17$7�)
S�P%ASN (&& A#H;?T ?ndex (*$(� 11$1� (&$)� (*$6� (6$)�)
Total return( 6$/� 1*$1� 1&$6� 1($.� 1+$+�

1$ FY1* inYludes a &$* Yent distribution deYlared fost )& @une (&1*" relating to FY1*$

($ 9alYulated as0 (Yhange in NTA during the feriod ! distributions deYlared)%ofening NTA$ 

2.2 FY17 Short Term Incentive (STI) outcomes

Summary
LiYinity¾s ST? frovides emfloyees with the offortunity to be rewarded for aYhieving a Yombination of grouf finanYial" strategiY and 
individual ferformanYe ob`eYtives" through an annual" ferformanYe#based reward$ Cany of these ob`eYtives Yontribute towards 
medium to longer term ferformanYe outYomes aligned to LiYinity¾s strategy$ The ST? outYome is weighted against four ferformanYe 
Yategories that are outlined in Table ($($ 

SfeYifiY measures for individuals are set within these ferformanYe Yategories and affroved by the Board$ Further details of the ST? 
are set out in seYtion )$($

PerformanYe for eaYh measure is assessed on a range from ½threshold¾ to ½maximum¾$ Caximum is set at a level that ensures that 
the maximum amount of ST? is fayable only when ferformanYe has signifiYantly exYeeded target measures$ Further detail on the 
assessment of eaYh ferformanYe measure is Yontained in Table ($) below and details of ST? awarded are Yontained in Table ($*$

Outcomes
The YalYulation of finanYial ferformanYe for FY17 was undertaaen in @uly (&17 by Yomfaring aYtual ferformanYe against the agreed 
ferformanYe ob`eYtives$ Tables ($(" ($) and ($* below outline the FY17 ST? outYomes$ 

Table ($( below shows the range of outYomes aYhieved by the ;xeYutive ACP against eaYh ferformanYe Yategory relating to the 
(&17 finanYial year$ 

Table 2.2: FY17 STI outcomes for Executive KMP 

Performance level achieved1

Performance category Weighting at target Threshold Target Maximum

Financial (&�¹*&�

Strategic )&�¹+&�

People and Leadership 1+�

Operational Excellence 1+�

1$  The line refresents that range of outYomes aYhieved by the ;xeYutive ACP$ The YirYles indiYate the average outYome$ Please refer to Table ($) for more detail on 
business ferformanYe against FY17 measures$ 
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2. Company performance and executive remuneration outcomes continued
Table 2.3: Business performance against FY17 measures 

Performance 
category and 
weighting Performance measure Reason chosen Performance outcome

Financial
(20%–40%)

Knderlying earnings 
fer seYurity (;PS)" net 
froferty inYome (NP?) 
and NP? growth" total 
return" management  
exfense ratio (C;H) and 
Yafital management  
ob`eYtives

Knderlying ;PS" NP?" 
total return and C;H are 
aey finanYial measures 
of performance, while 
balanYe sheet strength  
is a critical foundation  
for future success

• :elivered underlying ;PS of 1.$7 Yents" in line with guidanYe

• :elivered Yomfarable NP? growth of ($+�

• AYhieved a total return of 1+$+�

• C;H reduYed from )* bfs to )1 bfs

• Standard � Poor¾s Yredit rating raised to ½A%stable¾

Strategic
(30%–50%)

Strategy ob`eYtives 
focused on portfolio 
enhancement, delivery 
of the development 
fifeline" merger 
synergies realisation" 
digital strategy 
and staaeholder 
management

:evelofing and 
imflementing  
LiYinity¾s aey strategiY 
initiatives will underpin 
future opportunities  
and growth

• Cerger suYYessfully Yomfleted with the integration of our 
feofle" systems and froYesses" and merger synergy targets 
exYeeded and delivered ahead of frogram

• ?mfroved fortfolio oYYufanYy rate from //$*� to //$+�

• :ivested �+.6m of non#Yore assets at a ($)� fremium to  
booa value and aYguired the remaining (+� of :FE South 
Mharf and the remaining +&� of Bentons Sguare

• SignifiYant frogress aYross live fro`eYts and the shadow 
fifeline" inYluding0

 – 9hadstone ma`or redevelofment suYYessfully Yomfleted

 – First retail stage at Candurah Forum ofened in @uly (&17  
fully leased

 – Approvals received and construction commenced  
at :FE Perth and The Glen

• 9omfleted rollout of high#sfeed digital networa within 
frogram and budget

• Strong engagement and woraing relationshifs with Yo#owners

People and 
Leadership
(15%)

Peofle ob`eYtives 
foYused on enhanYing 
Yulture" strengthening 
Yafability" imfroving 
emfloyee engagement 
and develofing our 
diversity and inclusion 
agenda

9reating and maintaining 
a team that is high 
ferforming" highly 
engaged and diverse  
is fundamental to long#
term performance

• SignifiYant imfrovement in emfloyee engagement sYore  
to 71� from 66� in FY16

• 9ommenYed roll out of initiatives under the three aey foYus  
areas of the :iversity and ?nYlusion Strategy

• Talent management flan and suYYession flanning for the 
;xeYutive 9ommittee and broader senior leadershif team  
in place

Operational 
Excellence
(15%)

Eferational ob`eYtives 
centred on a review of 
corporate overheads, 
risa management and 
our sustainability agenda

FoYus on business 
transformation, 
oferational effiYienYy" 
risa management and 
sustainability will underfin 
sustainable ferformanYe

• Net Yorforate overheads were reduYed by 7$)�

• ?mfrovement in Green Star PerformanYe fortfolio average  
rating from ( Stars to ) Stars

• ;stablished a three#year fartnershif with BeaYon Foundation 
foYused on unemfloyed and disengaged youth

Table 2.4

Target STI  
as % of TFR

Maximum STI 
opportunity  
as % of TFR

Actual STI 
awarded 

$

% of target STI 
opportunity 

awarded

% of maximum 
STI opportunity 

awarded

% of maximum 
STI opportunity 

forfeited
Executive KMP
Angus CYNaughton 1&&� 1(+� 1"611"&&& 1&7$*� .6$&� 1*$&�
HiYhard @amieson 7+� 1+&� +)*")7+ /+$&� *7$+� +($+�
CiYhael E¾Brien 6+� 1)&� +6."7+& 1(+$&� 6($+� )7$+�

Note0 the maximum ST? offortunity as � of TFH is the theoretiYal maximum the ;xeYutive ACP Yan reYeive$

Remuneration Report continued
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2.3 FY17 Long Term Incentive (LTI) outcomes

Summary
The BT? frovides an annual offortunity for the 9;E" the direYt reforts to the 9;E (;xeYutive 9ommittee) and other Senior ;xeYutives 
(Senior Beaders) for an eguity award (through ferformanYe rights)" sub`eYt to the aYhievement of ferformanYe hurdles over three 
years and a further 1(#month holding loYa$ The BT? aligns a signifiYant fortion of overall remuneration to seYurityholder value over  
the longer term$

Please refer to seYtion )$) for further details of the BT? Plan$

Outcomes
The FY1+ BT? grant was tested at )& @une (&17 and nil overall vesting level was aYhieved$ The relative TSH hurdle was not  
aYhieved and as the underlying ;PS target did not meet threshold" nil vesting was aYhieved against the Heturn on ;guity (HE;)  
and underlying ;PS tranYhe$ 

No Yurrent ;xeYutive ACP were emfloyees of LiYinity at the time these ferformanYe rights were granted in FY1+$ The first feriod  
in whiYh the ;xeYutive ACP will be eligible for ferformanYe rights to vest will be the year ending )& @une (&1. (three years after  
the FY16 ferformanYe rights were granted)$ :etails of all Yurrent BT? holdings for ;xeYutive ACP are Yontained in seYtion )$+$

FY17 grants
The FY17 BT? grant was made to the ;xeYutive 9ommittee and Senior Beaders with effeYt from 1 @uly (&16" with a three#year 
ferformanYe feriod$

Table ($+ shows the number of ferformanYe rights granted to the ;xeYutive ACP under the FY17 BT?$ The number of ferformanYe 
rights granted was alloYated using the ½faYe value¾ methodology$ 

The fair value of the ferformanYe rights at grant date are also inYluded in Table ($+ and are YalYulated in aYYordanYe with AASB ( 
Share Based Payment$ 

As outlined" these ferformanYe rights may vest in three years¾ time frovided TSH and TH hurdles are met$ ?f the ferformanYe rights 
vest" there is an additional 1(#month holding loYa during whiYh they Yannot be traded$ Further details on the hurdle reguirements  
are Yontained in seYtion )$) below$
 
Table 2.5: FY17 LTI grants

Number of 
performance

rights granted1 Grant date

Face value 
of rights on 
grant date

$

LTI face 
value as a 

percentage  
of TFR at 

grant date 
%

Fair value  
of rights on
grant date2,3

$

LTI fair 
value as a 

percentage  
of TFR at 

grant date
%

Executive KMP 
Angus CYNaughton +(.".(& / :eYember (&16 1"+&&"&&& 1&& .+6"6.. +7$1
HiYhard @amieson (11"+(. / :eYember (&16 6&&"&&& .& )*("67+ *+$7
CiYhael E¾Brien 1.+"&.7 / :eYember (&16 +(+"&&& 7+ (//".*( *($.
Total 925,435 2,625,000 89 1,499,205 50.8

1$  The grants made to ;xeYutive ACP refresented their full BT? entitlement for the relevant finanYial year$ The seYurity friYe used in the YalYulation is the volume 
weighted average friYe of LiYinity¾s seYurities 1& trading days immediately following the (&16 Annual General Ceeting$

($ 9alYulated based on a fair value fer ferformanYe right of0

 Grant date: / :eYember (&16

 TR hurdle: �($(7

 TSR hurdle: �&$/7

  The fair value fer ferformanYe right was YalYulated by indefendent Yonsultants as at the grant date identified above$ The valuation of the TSH ferformanYe rights 
inYorforates the frobability of aYhieving maraet Yonditions whereas the valuation of TH ferformanYe rights does not$ This results in a lower fair value for TSH ferformanYe 
rights than for TH ferformanYe rights$ Further details on assumftions used to determine the fair value of the ferformanYe rights are inYluded in Note 1*(a) to the FinanYial 
Hefort$ The fair value is reYognised as an exfense in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome over the three#year vesting feriod$

)$  The value of the grant has been determined based on the fair value fer instrument as at the date of grant$ The minimum total value of the grant to the ;xeYutive ACP 
is nil should none of the affliYable ferformanYe Yonditions be met$ 
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Remuneration Report continued

3. Executive remuneration – further information
This seYtion Yontains further details of the three Yomfonents of ;xeYutive ACP remuneration being0

• Fixed remuneration1

• ST?1 and

• BT?$

3.1 Fixed remuneration
Fixed remuneration Yomfrises base salary" suferannuation Yontributions and any salary saYrifiYe amounts (for examfle" motor vehiYle 
leases)$ LiYinity aims to frovide a Yomfetitive level of fixed remuneration that reYognises the sipe" sYofe and Yomflexity of the  
role1 the relevant `ob maraet1 and the exferienYe" Yafability and ferformanYe of the inYumbent$ 

3.2 STI
Hefer to seYtion ($( for a summary of the ST? and outYomes for FY17$

STI arrangements

Opportunity For the 9;E" the FY17 ST? offortunity at a target level of ferformanYe is 1&&� of TFH$ 

For other ;xeYutive ACP" the ST? offortunity at a target level of ferformanYe is between 6+� and 7+� of TFH$

;aYh ;xeYutive ACP (other than the 9;E) has a theoretiYal maximum of two times target for exYeftional 
individual and LiYinity ferformanYe$ For the 9;E" the maximum is limited to 1$(+ times target offortunity$

Performance  
period

The affliYable ST? ferformanYe feriod is the full finanYial year$ Mhere an ;xeYutive ACP YommenYes 
emfloyment during the year" their ST? is evaluated and faid on a fro rata basis$ Mhere an ;xeYutive ACP 
Yeases emfloyment during the year" if the ST? is not forfeited" it is evaluated and faid on a fro rata basis  
at the same time as all others$ 

Grant date, 
payment and 
deferral1

ST? is frovided as a Yombination of Yash and deferred eguity fayments$ Partial fayment is deferred into eguity 
for a feriod of (* months for the 9;E and 1. months for other ;xeYutive ACP$ :ividends are faid on the 
deferred eguity Yomfonent during the holding loYa feriod$

EutYomes are YalYulated following the Board¾s review of LiYinity¾s FY17 audited finanYial results and the Yash 
Yomfonent will be faid in Seftember (&17$

Performance  
targets and 
measurement

SeYtion ($( frovides a detailed summary of the ferformanYe ob`eYtives and measures and the subseguent 
results for ;xeYutive ACP for FY17$

PerformanYe ob`eYtives for FY17 were finalised by the Board in the Yase of the 9;E" and by the 9;E and 
Hemuneration and >uman HesourYes 9ommittee (the 9ommittee) in the Yase of other ;xeYutive ACP$  
The 9ommittee" with infut from the 9hairman of the Board" assesses the 9;E¾s ferformanYe against  
his ob`eYtives and maaes the reYommendation to the Board for final determination$

The 9;E assesses the ferformanYe of all other ;xeYutive ACP relative to their individual ob`eYtives and 
maaes reYommendations to the 9ommittee for determination$

1$  :ue to the resignation of the 9;E effeYtive )1 :eYember (&17" the 9;E¾s FY17 ST? will not be sub`eYt to deferral into eguity$ 7+� of the 9;E¾s FY17 ST? is sYheduled  
to be faid in Seftember" with the remaining (+� sub`eYt to Yash deferral and fayable ufon termination$

For FY1." our remuneration framewora relating to the ST? Plan has been adafted slightly to further align ST? fayments to  
shareholder interests$ The ferformanYe ob`eYtives and measures for FY1. reinforYe that ST? fayments are awarded for delivery  
of ferformanYe" strategy exeYution and value Yreation" and aYhievement of oferational or ½Business As Ksual¾ ob`eYtives are 
rewarded through fixed remuneration$
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3.3 LTI 
Hefer to seYtion ($) for a summary of the BT? and awards during FY17$

LTI arrangements

Type of equity 
awarded 

LiYinity stafled seYurities at a future time for nil Yonsideration" sub`eYt to the aYhievement of agreed 
ferformanYe hurdles at the end of the ferformanYe feriod (as set out below)$

Kntil the ferformanYe rights vest" an ;xeYutive ACP has no entitlement to reYeive dividends or distributions 
from" no legal or benefiYial interest in" and no voting rights assoYiated with" the underlying stafled seYurities$

Performance  
period

Three years$

There is an additional holding loYa feriod of 1( months after the three#year ferformanYe feriod ends$ :uring 
this feriod" the vested ferformanYe rights Yannot be traded but the holder is entitled to reYeive dividends" 
distributions and vote$

Performance 
hurdles

AlloYations of ferformanYe rights are tested against two ferformanYe hurdles0 

• +&� are sub`eYt to the aYhievement of a relative TSH1; and

• +&� are tied to the aYhievement of TH($

;aYh hurdle will be measured indefendently at the end of the ferformanYe feriod$

Opportunity For the 9;E" the FY17 BT? offortunity at a target level of ferformanYe is 1&&� of TFH$ 

For other ;xeYutive ACP" the BT? offortunity at a target level of ferformanYe is between 7+� and .&� of TFH$

The number of rights alloYated was determined based on the 1&#day Lolume Meighted Average PriYe (LMAP) 
of LiYinity seYurities immediately following the (&16 Annual General Ceeting$

Vesting scale The following vesting sYales affly0

TSR TR
Percentile ranking Percentage vesting Target total return Percentage vesting

2 +1st &�  2 /$&� &�
Between +1st and 7+th Between +1� to 1&&� Between /$&� and /$+� Between +&� and 1&&�

≥ 7+th 1&&� ≥ /$+� 1&&�

Following testing" any rights that do not vest" lafse$

1$  Helative TSH Yombines the seYurity friYe movement and dividends (whiYh are assumed to be re#invested) to show total return to seYurityholders" relative to that of 
other Yomfanies in the TSH 9omfarator Grouf$ The Board deYided that an affrofriate Yomfarator grouf for the relative TSH ferformanYe hurdle was the S�P%ASN 
(&& A#H;?T ?ndex exYluding Mestfield 9orforation$ Mhere affrofriate" the Board has disYretion to ad`ust the Yomfarator grouf to taae into aYYount events" inYluding 
but not limited to taaeovers" mergers or de#mergers" that might oYYur with resfeYt to the entities in the Yomfarator grouf$

($  TH is YalYulated as the Yhange in LiYinity¾s Net Tangible Assets fer seYurity (NTA) during the ferformanYe feriod flus total distributions made divided by the NTA  
at the beginning of the ferformanYe feriod$ 

3.4 STI and LTI – Cessation of employment, clawback or change of control
The Board retains disYretion to determine the treatment of the ST? and BT? awards on the Yessation of emfloyment1 however" generally0

• ?f terminated for Yause" any existing ST? and BT? entitlements will be forfeited$

• ?n the event of Yessation of emfloyment for suYh reasons as redundanYy" death" total and fermanent disablement or retirement0

 – a fro rata amount of unvested ferformanYe rights will remain on foot" with the balanYe forfeited$ PerformanYe rights may then 
vest at the end of the ferformanYe feriod sub`eYt to meeting the ferformanYe measures under the assoYiated flan and will  
be sub`eYt to the holding loYa1 and

 – ST? for the year will be fro#rated over the emfloyment feriod and faid fully in Yash at the same time as all others (no amounts 
are deferred into eguity)$ 
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3. Executive remuneration – further information continued
3.4 STI and LTI – Cessation of employment, clawback or change of control continued
The Board also has the right to reduYe future award fayments or ad`usted unvested amounts to ½YlawbaYa¾ from fartiYifants if there 
has been serious misYonduYt or a material misstatement in LiYinity¾s finanYial results$

?n the event of a Yhange in Yontrol" the Board has absolute disYretion to determine the treatment for ST? and BT? entitlements$

Mith resfeYt to the resignation of the 9;E effeYtive from )1 :eYember (&17" the following treatment of the 9;E¾s inYentives will affly0

• :eferred seYurities granted under the FY16 ST? offer will be released in Seftember (&1. in the ordinary Yourse1

• FY17 ST? will not be sub`eYt to deferral into eguity$ 7+� of the 9;E¾s FY17 ST? is sYheduled to be faid in Seftember (&17"  
with the remaining (+� sub`eYt to Yash deferral and fayable ufon termination1

• Any FY1. ST? will be fro#rated uf to the termination date and faid fully in Yash (deferral will not affly) in the ordinary Yourse  
in Seftember (&1.1

• PerformanYe rights granted under the FY16 and FY17 BT? offers will be fro#rated and will vest at the end of the resfeYtive 
ferformanYe feriods sub`eYt to aYhievement of the ferformanYe hurdles and the additional holding loYa1

• No grant to the 9;E will be made under the FY1. BT? offer1 and

• No other termination fayments will be made$

3.5 Total LTI holdings
Total ferformanYe rights held by ;xeYutive ACP inYluding the FY17 BT? grants detailed above are as follows0 

Opening 
performance 

rights
Granted as 

remuneration
Forfeited/

lapsed Vested Closing
Angus CYNaughton *+7"()( +(.".(& # # /.6"&+(
HiYhard @amieson 1/7".*1 (11"+(. # # *&/")6/
CiYhael E¾Brien 16&"&)1 1.+"&.7 # # )*+"11.
Total 815,104 925,435 - - 1,740,539

3.6 Service agreements
Hemuneration and other terms of emfloyment for ;xeYutive ACP are formalised in ;xeYutive ServiYes Agreements (;SAs)$ The terms 
and Yonditions of emfloyment of the ;xeYutive ACP reÇeYt maraet Yonditions at the time of entering into their YontraYt$

Aey features of the ;xeYutive ACP ;SAs inYlude the following0

• eligibility to fartiYifate in short and long term inYentive flans1

• ongoing emfloyment until terminated by either the ;xeYutive ACP or LiYinity1 and

• LiYinity may maae fayments in lieu of all or fart of the affliYable notiYe feriod$

NotiYe feriod frovisions are detailed below$

Termination by Vicinity

For cause Other
Termination by 
Executive KMP

Termination 
payment1

Angus CYNaughton ?mmediately 1( months 6 months 1( months x TFH
HiYhard @amieson ?mmediately 6 months 6 months 6 months x TFH
CiYhael E¾Brien ?mmediately 6 months 6 months 6 months x TFH

1$  Paid" sub`eYt to law" if LiYinity terminated the ;xeYutive ACP¾s emfloyment agreement on notiYe and without Yause" and maaes fayment in lieu of notiYe$  
Termination fayments are generally not faid on resignation or termination with Yause" although the Board may determine exYeftions to this$ No termination  
fayment will exYeed the limit under the Corporations Act$

 

Remuneration Report continued
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4. Non-executive Director remuneration
4.1 Remuneration philosophy
Non#exeYutive :ireYtor fee levels are set with regard to time Yommitment and woraload" the risa and resfonsibility attaYhed to the role 
and external maraet benYhmaraing$ To fromote indefendenYe and imfartiality" no element of Non#exeYutive :ireYtor remuneration  
is ½at risa¾" that is" no element is based on the ferformanYe of LiYinity$

The Yurrent maximum fee fool of �($(+ million was affroved by LiYinity seYurityholders in November (&11$ 

Board and committee fees
FY17 Board and Yommittee fees are outlined in the table below0

Table 4.1: FY17 Board and committee fees

Board/Committee Role FY17 fees1

$

Board
Chairman *+&"&&&
Non#exeYutive :ireYtor 16&"&&&

Audit Committee
Chairman *&"&&&
Cember (&"&&&

Hisa and 9omflianYe 9ommittee
Chairman *&"&&&
Cember (&"&&&

Nominations Committee
Chairman No additional fee
Cember No additional fee

Remuneration and Human Resources Committee
Chairman *&"&&&
Cember (&"&&&

1$ Fees are inYlusive of suferannuation$

The 9hairman of the Board reYeives no further remuneration for Yommittee membershif" although he may attend Yommittee meetings$ 

Non#exeYutive :ireYtors are entitled to be reimbursed for all reasonable business#related exfenses" inYluding travel on Yomfany 
business" that may be inYurred in the disYharge of their duties$ 
 

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 2017 61



4. Non-executive Director remuneration continued
4.2 <ees anZ benefits paiZ

Table 4.2: Non-executive Directors’ fees for FY17 and FY16

I^ort#term benefits
Post-employment

benefits2

Non-executive Director Period
Fees1

$

Committee  
fees

$

Superannuation 
contributions

$
Total fees

$
Non-executive Directors
Peter Hay, Chair
(affointed 11 @une (&1+)

FY17 430,384 - 19,616 450,000
FY16 *)&"6/( # 1/")&. *+&"&&&

Trevor Gerber3

(affointed (. EYtober (&1+)
FY17 146,118 36,530 17,352 200,000
FY16 1(("16* )6"+)& 1+"&76 17)"77&

Tim Hammon
(affointed 1+ :eYember (&11)

FY17 146,118 54,795 19,087 220,000
FY16 1*6"11. +*"7/+ 1/"&.7 ((&"&&&

Peter Kahan4

(affointed 11 @une (&1+)
FY17 160,000 40,000 - 200,000
FY16 16&"&&& *&"&&& # (&&"&&&

Charles Macek
(affointed 1+ :eYember (&11)

FY17 146,118 36,530 17,352 200,000
FY16 1*6"11. )6"+)& 17")+( (&&"&&&

Karen Penrose
(affointed 11 @une (&1+)

FY17 146,118 54,795 19,087 220,000
FY16 1*6"11. +*"7/+ 1/"&.7 ((&"&&&

Debra Stirling3

(affointed (. EYtober (&1+)
FY17 146,118 36,530 17,352 200,000
FY16 1(("16* )6"+)& 1+"&76 17)"77&

Wai Tang
(affointed )& Cay (&1*)

FY17 146,118 36,530 17,352 200,000
FY16 1*6"11. )6"+)& 17")+( (&&"&&&

David Thurin
(affointed 11 @une (&1+)

FY17 146,118 18,266 15,616 180,000
FY16 1*6"11/ 1."(6+ 1+"616 1.&"&&&

Subtotal Non-executive Directors
FY17 1,613,210 313,976 142,814 2,070,000
FY16 1"+6+"611 )1)"/7+ 1)7"/+* ("&17"+*&

1$  Knless otherwise stated" fees refresent fees faid to Non#exeYutive :ireYtors in their YafaYity as :ireYtors of LiYinity Bimited (the 9omfany) and LiYinity 9entre H; Btd 
as Hesfonsible ;ntity for LiYinity 9entres Trust (the H;) whiYh meet YonYurrently$

($  Non#exeYutive :ireYtors reYeive no fost#emfloyment benefits other than statutory suferannuation$

)$  Cr Gerber and Cs Stirling were affointed as :ireYtors of the 9omfany on (. EYtober (&1+$ The remuneration disYlosed in Table *$( for FY16 for Cr Gerber and  
Cs Stirling is Yonseguently for the feriod from (. EYtober (&1+ to )& @une (&16$ From 1 @uly (&1+ to (. EYtober (&1+ Cr Gerber and Cs Stirling were engaged 
as Yonsultants and affointed as alternate direYtors of the Yomfany for whiYh they eaYh earned fees of �(6"()&$ 

*$  Cr Aahan¾s :ireYtor fees are faid to the Gandel Grouf Pty Bimited and therefore no suferannuation Yontributions are made by LiYinity on his behalf$
 

Remuneration Report continued
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Table 4.2.1: Former Non-executive Directors’ fees

I^ort#term benefits
Post-employment

benefits2

Non-executive Director Period
Fees1

$

Committee  
fees

$

Superannuation 
contributions

$
Total fees

$
Former Non-executive Directors
Richard Haddock AM
(Yeased as :ireYtor on )& Afril (&17)

FY17 121,765 30,441 14,460 166,666
FY16 1*6"11. )6"+)& 17")+( (&&"&&&

Subtotal Former  
Non-executive Directors

FY17 121,765 30,441 14,460 166,666
FY16 1*6"11. )6"+)& 17")+( (&&"&&&

Total
FY17 1,734,975 344,417 157,274 2,236,666
FY16 1"711"7(/ )+&"+&+ 1++")&6 ("(17"+*&

1$  Fees refresent fees faid to Non#exeYutive :ireYtors in their YafaYity as :ireYtors of the 9omfany and the H; whiYh meet YonYurrently$

($ Non#exeYutive :ireYtors reYeive no fost#emfloyment benefits other than statutory suferannuation$

5. Other remuneration information
5.1 Remuneration governance
The Board of :ireYtors has resfonsibility to ensure that affrofriate governanYe is in flaYe in relation to all human resourYe 
matters inYluding remuneration$ To ensure that the Board aYts indefendently of management and is fully informed when maaing 
remuneration deYisions" the Board has established the following frotoYols0

• The Board has established the 9ommittee Yomfrised of Non#exeYutive :ireYtors" whiYh is resfonsible for reviewing and maaing 
reYommendations on remuneration foliYies for LiYinity" inYluding foliYies governing the remuneration of ;xeYutive ACP and other 
senior exeYutives$ Further information regarding the resfeYtive roles and resfonsibilities of the Board and the 9ommittee are 
Yontained in their resfeYtive Yharters" available at viYinity$Yom$au and in LiYinity¾s 9orforate GovernanYe Statement$

• Mhen Yonsidering the reYommendations of the 9ommittee" the Board afflies a foliYy of exYluding any exeYutives from being 
fresent and fartiYifating in disYussions imfaYting their own remuneration$

• The 9ommittee Yan seea adviYe from both management and external advisors in develofing its remuneration reYommendations  
for the Board$

5.2 External advisors and consultants
To assist in ferforming its duties" and maaing reYommendations to the Board" the 9ommittee direYtly engages external advisors  
to frovide infut to the froYess of reviewing ;xeYutive ACP and Non#exeYutive :ireYtor remuneration" and to frovide adviYe on 
various asfeYts of the remuneration framewora$

:uring FY17" APCG was engaged by the 9ommittee and management to frovide a number of serviYes$

The wora undertaaen by APCG in FY17 did not Yonstitute a remuneration reYommendation for the furfoses of the 9orforations AYt$
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5. Other remuneration information continued
5.3 Security trading restrictions
LiYinity¾s SeYurities Trading PoliYy frohibits senior exeYutives from hedging or otherwise limiting their exfosure to risa in relation  
to unvested LiYinity seYurities issued or aYguired under any affliYable eguity arrangements$

5.4 Minimum executive securityholdings
A mandatory seYurity ownershif foliYy is in flaYe for exeYutives$ This reguires ;xeYutive ACP and other senior exeYutives to aYguire 
and retain a minimum holding of seYurities egual to 6&� of TFH (1&&� of TFH for 9;E) within five years$ :eferred ST? and BT? Yount 
towards the holding level$

5.5 Minimum NED securityholdings
A minimum seYurity holding foliYy for ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtors is Yurrently in flaYe$ This foliYy enYourages :ireYtors 
to aYguire a holding of seYurities egual in value to one year of base Board fees (on an after#tax basis) within five years from the 
introduYtion of the foliYy in (&16 or from the :ireYtor¾s YommenYement date" whiYhever is the latter$

5.6 Executive KMP and Non-executive Directors’ securityholdings
The table below shows the seYurities held (direYtly or indireYtly) by Non#exeYutive :ireYtors and ;xeYutive ACP as at )& @une (&17$ 
There were no Yhanges in holdings between )& @une (&17 and the date of this refort$

Opening
Securities1

Granted as
remuneration2

Additions  
during the year

Other 
Movements Closing

Non-executive Directors
Peter >ay 7("(/1 # *7"+&& # 119,791
Trevor Gerber +&"&&& # # # 50,000
HiYhard >addoYa AC 1(+"*&( # (+"&&& (1+&"*&()) -
Tim Hammon (+"&&& # (+"&&& # 50,000
Peter Aahan* # # # # -
9harles CaYea +&"&&& # # # 50,000
Aaren Penrose (&"+6) # 1/"*)7 # 40,000
:ebra Stirling 1&"&&& # # # 10,000
Mai Tang ("/.& # # # 2,980
:avid Thurin 1)"./+")7) # # # 13,895,373
Total 14,251,609 - 116,937 (150,402) 14,218,144

Executive KMP
Angus CYNaughton 1.("+1( 1*1"(.6 7+"/11 # 399,709
HiYhard @amieson # 1(6"/)1 # # 126,931
CiYhael E¾Brien # 7)"77/ # # 73,779
Total 182,512 341,996 75,911 - 600,419

1$ HeÇeYts seYurities balanYe as at 1 @uly (&16$

($ HeÇeYts deferred seYurities alloYated under the FY16 ST? Plan$

)$ HeÇeYts seYurities held at the date HiYhard >addoYa AC Yeased to be a :ireYtor$

*$  As Cr Aahan and :r Thurin refresent The Gandel Grouf Pty Bimited" a substantial seYurityholder of LiYinity" they are not ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtors  
and therefore are not reguired to meet the minimum N;: seYurityholding foliYy$

Remuneration Report continued
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There were no other related farty transaYtions or balanYes with :ireYtors and ;xeYutive ACP or their Yontrolled entities" in relation 
to seYurities held$

End of the Remuneration Report.

Signed in Celbourne on 16 August (&17 in aYYordanYe with a resolution of the :ireYtors$

Peter Hay
Chairman
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Signed in Celbourne on 16 August (&17 in aYYordanYe with a resolution 

Peter Hay
Chairman
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

 

 

Ernst & Young
8 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne  VIC  3000  Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne  VIC  3001

Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
ey.com/au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Vicinity Limited  

As lead auditor for the audit of Vicinity Centres for the financial year ended 30 June 2017, I declare to 
the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the audit; and   

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

This declaration is in respect of Vicinity Limited and the entities it controlled during the financial year. 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
David Shewring 
Partner 
16 August 2017 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Revenue
Proferty ownershif revenue 1,235.8 1"(+/$+
Canagement fee revenue from strategiY fartnershifs 66.3 66$/
?nterest and other inYome 9.4 1+$*
Total revenue and income 1,311.5 1")*1$.
Share of net frofit%(loss) of eguity aYYounted investments +(a) 18.2 (6$&)
Proferty revaluation inYrement for direYtly owned froferties *(b) 906.7 7))$&
:ireYt froferty exfenses (332.2) ()()$))
Borrowing Yosts 6(b) (154.9) (17+$1)
;mfloyee benefits exfense 1) (98.7) (1&6$/)
Ether exfenses from ordinary aYtivities (33.0) ().$&)
Net foreign exYhange movement on interest bearing liabilities 60.7 *($*
Net mara#to#maraet movement on derivatives (55.1) (1*7$+)
?mfairment and amortisation of intangible assets 1+(a) (3.0) ((/.$))
?ntegration Yosts (26.7) (*1$1)
Stamf duty and other Yosts written off on aYguisition of investment froferties *(b) (9.9) ((&$1)
Profit before tax for the year 1,583.6 /6&$/
?nYome tax exfense ) - #
Net profit for the year 1,583.6 /6&$/
Ether Yomfrehensive inYome - #
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,583.6 /6&$/
Total profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 
attributable to stapled securityholders as:
SeYurityholders of LiYinity Bimited 1.(b) (12.3) ()&+$6)
SeYurityholders of other stafled entities of the Grouf 1,595.9 1"(66$+
Net profit and total comprehensive income for the year 1,583.6 /6&$/

Earnings per security attributable to securityholders of the Group:
BasiY earnings fer seYurity (Yents) ( 40.00 (*$(7
:iluted earnings fer seYurity (Yents) ( 39.95 (*$(+

The above Yonsolidated Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome should be read in Yon`unYtion with the aYYomfanying notes$ 
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2017

Note 30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Current assets
9ash and Yash eguivalents 42.2 +($.
HeYeivables and other assets / 88.3 1&+$+
?nvestment froferties held for sale *(a) 33.5 ()($1
FinanYial assets Yarried at fair value through frofit or loss 4.3 )$6
:erivative finanYial instruments 6(d) - 1+$6
Total current assets 168.3 *&/$6
Non-current assets
?nvestment froferties *(a) 15,633.5 1*"*(6$6
?nvestments aYYounted for using the eguity method + 88.0 .&$+
?ntangible assets 1+ 599.4 6&($*
Plant and eguifment 14.5 1)$.
:erivative finanYial instruments 6(d) 68.3 11($(
:eferred tax assets )(Y) 84.3 .*$)
HeYeivables and other assets / 2.5 1(&$1
Total non-current assets 16,490.5 1+"*)/$/
Total assets 16,658.8 1+".*/$+
Current liabilities
?nterest bearing liabilities 6 - 1/)$1
:istribution fayable 340.4 )+($)
Payables and other finanYial liabilities 1& 209.6 ()7$.
Provisions 11 78.5 .+$.
:erivative finanYial instruments 6(d) 2.3 #
Total current liabilities 630.8 .6/$&
Non-current liabilities
?nterest bearing liabilities 6 3,893.7 )"7*/$1
Ether finanYial liabilities 1& 202.7 (&&$*
Provisions 11 7.8 ($)
:erivative finanYial instruments 6(d) 176.1 17/$7
Total non-current liabilities 4,280.3 *"1)1$+
Total liabilities 4,911.1 +"&&&$+
Net assets 11,747.7 1&".*/$&
Equity
9ontributed eguity . 8,493.2 ."*/)$(
Share based fayment reserve 4.6 *$7
Hetained frofits 3,249.9 (")+1$1
Total equity 11,747.7 1&".*/$&

The above Yonsolidated BalanYe Sheet should be read in Yon`unYtion with the aYYomfanying notes$
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2017
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts in the course of operations 1,469.5 1"+&.$7
Payments in the Yourse of oferations (591.3) (61.$))
:istributions and dividends reYeived from assoYiates" `oint venture fartnershifs and 
managed investments

6.8 1($6

?nterest and other revenue reYeived 4.6 /$+
?nterest faid (158.4) (17&$7)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 16 731.2 7*1$.

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Yafital exfenditure on investment froferties (398.9) (*(($()
Payments for aYguisition of investment froferties (141.3) ()+.$&)
ProYeeds from disfosal of investment froferties 436.0 1"1*6$7
Payments for flant and eguifment and other investments (6.6) ()$*)
ProYeeds from other investments - )$+
Payment for intangibles - (/$))
?ntegration Yosts (18.4) (*&$&)
Payment to settle other finanYial liability ¹ Bentons Sguare aYguisition (38.3) #
Stamf duty faid (9.9) (.)$*)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from investing activities (177.4) ())$/

Cash flows from financing activities
ProYeeds from borrowings 1,972.6 *"+1/$(
Hefayment of borrowings (1,946.3) (*".)7$.)
ProYeeds from refayment of loan to Tuggeranong Town 9entre Trust 117.4 #
:istributions faid to external seYurityholders (696.7) (6.*$/)
:ebt establishment Yosts faid (3.8) (1*$6)
AYguisition of shares on maraet for settlement of share based fayments (7.6) (1($()
Net cash outflows from financing activities (564.4) (1"&)&$))
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents held (10.6) (+*$6)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 52.8 1&7$*
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 42.2 +($.

The above 9ash Flow Statement should be read in Yon`unYtion with the aYYomfanying notes$
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The index of notes to the finanYial statements is shown below$ Similar notes have been groufed into seYtions with relevant 
aYYounting foliYies and `udgement and estimate disYlosures inYorforated within the notes to whiYh they relate$

Operations 
1$ Segment information  

($ ;arnings fer seYurity  

)$ Taxes  

*$ ?nvestment froferties  

+$ ;guity aYYounted investments  
  
9apital strkctkre anZ financial risk mana]ement  
6$ ?nterest bearing liabilities and derivatives  

7$ 9afital and finanYial risa management  

.$ 9ontributed eguity  
   
Working capital  
/$ HeYeivables and other assets  

1&$ Payables and other finanYial liabilities  

11$ Provisions   
   
Remuneration  
1($ Aey management fersonnel  

1)$ ;mfloyees  

1*$ Share based fayments  
   
Other disclosures  
1+$ ?ntangible assets  

16$ Notes to the 9ash Flow Statement  

17$ Auditor¾s remuneration  

1.$ Parent entity finanYial information  

1/$ Helated farties  

(&$ 9ommitments and YontingenYies  

(1$ Ether Grouf aYYounting matters  

(($ ;vents oYYurring after the reforting date  
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About This Report

LiYinity 9entres (the Grouf) is listed on the Australian SeYurities ;xYhange (ASN) under the Yode L9N$ ?t Yomfrises LiYinity Bimited (the 
9omfany) and LiYinity 9entres Trust (the Trust)$ The Stafling :eed entered into by the 9omfany and the Trust ensures that shares in 
the 9omfany and units in the Trust are ½stafled¾ together and are traded YolleYtively$ The 9omfany and the Trust are for#frofit entities 
that are domiYiled and oferate wholly in Australia$

Basis of preparation
This general furfose FinanYial Hefort0

• has been frefared in aYYordanYe with the Corporations Act 2001 (9th) and Australian AYYounting Standards (AASBs) issued by 
the Australian AYYounting Standards Board$ 9omflianYe with AASBs ensures YomflianYe with ?nternational FinanYial Heforting 
Standards (?FHS) as issued by the ?nternational AYYounting Standards Board (?ASB)1

• is fresented in Australian dollars (�) and rounded to the nearest tenth of a million dollars (�m) in aYYordanYe with AS?9 Begislative 
?nstrument (&16%1/1 (unless otherwise stated)1

• has been frefared in aYYordanYe with the historiYal Yost Yonvention" exYeft for Yertain finanYial assets and liabilities and investment 
froferties whiYh have been reYognised at fair value1 and 

• was authorised for issue by the Board of :ireYtors on 16 August (&17$ The :ireYtors have the fower to amend and reissue the 
FinanYial Hefort$

Although the Grouf has a net Yurrent defiYienYy of �*6($+ million (Yurrent liabilities exYeed Yurrent assets) at reforting date" the Grouf 
has suffiYient Yurrent undrawn borrowing faYilities (of �1"1(6$& million" refer to Note 6(a)) and generates suffiYient oferating Yash Çows 
to meet its Yurrent obligations as they fall due$ AYYordingly" this FinanYial Hefort has been frefared on a going YonYern basis$

The fresentation of Yertain items has also been ad`usted as neYessary to frovide more meaningful information in the Yontext of the 
Grouf$ Mhere the fresentation or YlassifiYation of items in the FinanYial Hefort is amended" Yomfarative amounts are also reYlassified 
unless it is imfraYtiYal$ The ad`ustments made to the fresentation of items had no imfaYt on the net assets or net frofit of the Grouf$

Accounting policies
The Grouf¾s aYYounting foliYies are Yontained within the relevant notes to these finanYial statements$ Ether aYYounting foliYies 
that relate to the finanYial statements as a whole" detail of any Yhanges in aYYounting foliYies and the imfaYt of new or amended 
aYYounting standards are Yontained in Note (1$

Critical accounting judgements and estimates
The frefaration of finanYial statements reguires the Grouf to maae `udgements" estimates and assumftions$ These are based on 
historiYal exferienYe and other faYtors Yonsidered to be reasonable under the YirYumstanYes" but whiYh are inherently unYertain"  
the results of whiYh form the basis of the Yarrying value of those assets and liabilities$ 9onseguently" future aYtual results Yould  
differ from these estimates$ @udgements and estimates Yonsidered material to this FinanYial Hefort are0

Judgement or estimate Reference
HeYognition of deferred tax assets Note )
Valuation of investment properties Note *
Valuation of derivatives Note 6
HeYoverability of goodwill and intangibles Note 1+
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Operations

1. Segment information
The Grouf¾s oferating segments identified for internal reforting furfoses are Proferty ?nvestment and StrategiY Partnershifs0

• Property Investment: comprises net property income derived from investment in retail property; and

• Strategic Partnerships: refresents fee inYome from froferty management" develofment" leasing and management of wholesale 
froferty funds$

The internal reforting on these segments is frovided to the 9hief Eferating :eYision Caaers to maae strategiY deYisions$ :uring  
the year" the 9hief Eferating :eYision Caaers were the 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor (9;E) and the 9hief FinanYial EffiYer (9FE)$

Segment ferformanYe is assessed based on Knderlying ;arnings" whiYh is YalYulated as statutory net frofit" ad`usted for fair value 
movements" Yertain unrealised and non#Yash items" and other items that are not in the ordinary Yourse of business or Yafital in 
nature$ ?n addition to Knderlying ;arnings" the 9;E and 9FE also review Ad`usted Funds From Eferations (AFFE) in assessing the 
ferformanYe of the Grouf$ AFFE is determined by ad`usting Knderlying ;arnings for Yertain items in aYYordanYe with the guidelines 
fublished by the Proferty 9ounYil of Australia$

(a) Segment results

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Property Investment segment
Net property income 916.7 /+)$6
Strategic Partnerships segment
Proferty management" develofment and leasing fees 56.3 +6$)
Funds management fees 9.7 /$.
Total segment income 982.7 1"&1/$7
9orforate overheads (net of internal froferty management fees) (74.9) (.&$.)
Net interest exfense (166.0) (1.1$*)
Underlying earnings 741.8 7+7$+
Ad`usted for0
Hent lost from undertaaing develofments (28.9) (1.$&)
Funds From Operations 712.9 7)/$+
CaintenanYe Yafital exfenditure and tenant inYentives given (71.4) (7($1)
Adjusted Funds From Operations 641.5 667$*
Distribution declared 684.8 7&&$7
Distribution as a percentage of AFFO 106.8% 1&+$&�
Distribution as a percentage of underlying earnings 92.3% /($+�

Grouf ferformanYe is also monitored on Knderlying ;arnings fer seYurity (underlying ;PS)$ The YalYulation of underlying ;PS for eaYh 
year uses the basiY weighted average number of shares on issue as YalYulated in Note ($

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

Cents
30-Jun-16

Cents
Knderlying ;PS 18.74 1/$1*
:istribution fer seYurity 17.30 17$7&
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1. Segment information continued
(b) Heconciliation of knZerlyin] earnin]s to net profit after tax

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Underlying earnings 741.8 7+7$+
Proferty revaluation inYrement for direYtly owned froferties1 906.7 7))$&
Non#distributable gain%(loss) relating to eguity aYYounted investments1 9.1 (1+$6)
Amortisation of static lease incentives( (11.3) (1&$()
Amortisation of other fro`eYt items( (16.8) ((($*)
Straight#lining of rent ad`ustment) 16.8 *$.
Hent lost from undertaaing develofments* (28.9) (1.$&)
Stamf duty and transaYtion Yosts written off on aYguisition of investment froferties (9.9) ((&$1)
Net mara#to#maraet movement on derivatives+ (55.1) (1*7$+)
Net foreign exYhange movement on interest bearing liabilities 60.7 *($*
?ntegration Yosts6 (26.7) (*1$1)
?mfairment and amortisation of intangible assets7 (3.0) ((/.$))
Ether non#distributable items 0.2 ()$6)
Net profit after tax 1,583.6 /6&$/

The material ad`ustments to net frofit to arrive at underlying earnings and reasons for their exYlusion are desYribed below0

1$  Knderlying earnings exYludes non#distributable fair value movements relating to direYtly owned investment froferties and eguity aYYounted investments$

($  9ertain fayments suYh as lease inYentives relating to investment froferties are Yafitalised to investment froferties$ Amortisation of these items is then reYognised 
as an exfense in aYYordanYe with Australian AYYounting Standards$ Tenant inYentives faid during the year are reÇeYted in the AFFE YalYulation at Note 1(a)$ AYYordingly" 
amortisation of these amounts is exYluded from underlying earnings$

)$  Straight#lining of rental revenue" whiYh is reguired by Australian AYYounting Standards" is an unrealised non#Yash amount and exYluded from underlying earnings$

*$  The Grouf reYognises rent lost from undertaaing develofments in underlying earnings$ This inYome does not meet the definition of revenue under Australian AYYounting 
Standards and is therefore not reYognised in statutory net frofit$

+$  Fair value movements in derivatives Yomfrise mara#to#maraet movements reguired by Australian AYYounting Standards for valuation furfoses" inYluding realised and 
unrealised amounts and are exYluded from underlying earnings$

6$  The Grouf has inYurred Yosts in the Yurrent year in relation to integration aYtivities following the merger of Federation 9entres and Novion Proferty Grouf on 11 @une (&1+$ 
Further information on the merger Yan be found in the )& @une (&1+ and )& @une (&16 finanYial statements$

7$  Knderlying earnings exYludes non#Yash Yharges relating to intangible assets$

(c) Reconciliation of segment income to total revenue
The following is a reYonYiliation of total segment inYome to total revenue and other inYome in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Total segment income (Note 1(a)) 982.7 1"&1/$7
Ad`usted for0

Net froferty inYome from eguity aYYounted investments inYluded in segment inYome (13.7) ((&$()
Straight#lining revenue 16.8 *$.
Proferty related exfenses inYluded in segment inYome 379.2 )77$/
Amortisation of statiY lease inYentives and other fro`eYt items (28.1) ()($6)
Hent lost from undertaaing develofments (28.9) (1.$&)
?nterest and other revenue not inYluded in segment inYome 3.5 1&$(

Total revenue and other income per Statement of Comprehensive Income 1,311.5 1")*1$.

Operations continued
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(d) Segment assets and liabilities
The froferty investment segment reforted to the 9;E and 9FE inYludes investment froferties held direYtly and those that are 
inYluded in eguity aYYounted investments$ The froferty investment values are measured in a manner Yonsistent with the BalanYe 
Sheet$ A breaadown of the total investment froferties in the froferty investment segment is shown below0

Note
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
?nvestment froferties *(a)1 15,410.5 1*"*1.$7
?nvestment froferties inYluded in eguity aYYounted investments +(b) 138.2 (67$1
Total interests in directly owned investment properties 15,548.7 1*"6.+$.
Assets under management on behalf of strategiY fartners( 9,725.3 ."/(&$6
Total assets under management 25,274.0 ()"6&6$*

1$ ;xYludes flanning and holding Yosts" finanYe lease assets relating to investment froferties and :FE Perth whiYh is under YonstruYtion as disYlosed in Note *(a)$

($ Hefresents the value of froferty interests managed" but not owned" Yonsolidated or otherwise aYYounted for by the Grouf$

All other assets and liabilities are not alloYated by segment for reforting to the 9;E and 9FE$

2. Earnings per security
The basiY and diluted earnings fer seYurity for the Grouf are YalYulated below in aYYordanYe with the reguirements of AASB 1)) 
Earnings per Share$

BasiY earnings fer seYurity is determined by dividing the net frofit or loss after inYome tax by the weighted average number  
of seYurities outstanding during the year$

:iluted earnings fer seYurity ad`usts the figures used in the determination of basiY earnings fer seYurity by taaing into aYYount  
the interest and other finanYing Yosts assoYiated with dilutive fotential ordinary seYurities and the weighted average number  
of seYurities assumed to have been issued for no Yonsideration in relation to dilutive fotential ordinary seYurities$

BasiY and diluted earnings fer seYurity are as follows0

For the 12 months to: 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Earnings per security attributable to securityholders of the Group:
BasiY earnings fer seYurity (Yents) 40.00 (*$(7
:iluted earnings fer seYurity (Yents) 39.95 (*$(+

Loss per security attributable to securityholders of the Parent:
BasiY loss fer seYurity (Yents) (0.31) (7$7()
:iluted loss fer seYurity (Yents) (0.31) (7$7()

The following net frofit%(loss) amounts are used in the numerator in YalYulating earnings fer stafled seYurity0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
;arnings used in YalYulating basiY and diluted earnings fer seYurity of the Grouf 1,583.6 /6&$/
Boss used in YalYulating basiY and diluted earnings fer seYurity of the Parent (12.3) ()&+$6)

The following weighted average number of seYurities are used in the denominator in YalYulating earnings fer seYurity for the Parent 
and the Group:

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

Number (m)
30-Jun-16

Number (m)
Meighted average number of seYurities used as the denominator in YalYulating basiY earnings  
per security

3,958.6 )"/+.$6

Ad`ustment for fotential dilution from ferformanYe rights granted 5.0 )$.
Meighted average number of seYurities and fotential seYurities used as the denominator in YalYulating 
the diluted earnings fer seYurity

3,963.6 )"/6($*
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3. Taxes
(a) Group taxation

Income tax
Vicinity Centres Trust (flow through trust structure)
LiYinity 9entres Trust (the Trust) and its Yontrolled trusts are not liable to fay inYome tax (inYluding Yafital gains tax) on the basis 
that their benefiYiaries are fresently entitled to the net inYome of the trusts$ This means that the taxable inYome from the Trust¾s 
froferty investments is taxed on a Çow through basis in the hands of the Trust¾s seYurityholders$ The Trust¾s seYurityholders fay tax 
at their marginal tax rates" in the Yase of Australian resident seYurityholders" or through the Canaged ?nvestment Trust withholding 
rules for non#resident seYurityholders$ As a result" the Grouf has pero inYome tax exfense reYognised in resfeYt of the Trust¾s frofit$

Vicinity Limited (corporate tax group)
LiYinity Bimited (the 9omfany) and its subsidiaries have formed a tax Yonsolidated grouf (T9G)$ Knder this arrangement" the 
9omfany" the head entity" aYYounts for its own Yurrent and deferred tax amounts and assumes those from subsidiaries in the T9G$ 
Cembers of the T9G have entered into a tax funding arrangement whiYh sets out the funding obligations of members of the T9G in 
resfeYt of tax amounts$ The tax funding arrangement reguires fayments to%from the head entity to be reYognised via an inter#entity 
reYeivable%fayable whiYh is at Yall$ 

?nYome tax exfense for the year is YalYulated at the Yorforate tax rate of )&� and Yomfrises Yurrent and deferred tax exfense$ 
These amounts are reYognised in frofit or loss" exYeft to the extent they relate to items reYognised direYtly in other Yomfrehensive 
inYome or eguity$ 9urrent tax exfense refresents the exfense relating to the exfeYted taxable inYome at the affliYable rate for the 
finanYial year$ 

:eferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the exfeYted manner of reYovery of the Yarrying value of an asset or 
liability$ :eferred tax exfense refresents the tax exfenses in resfeYt of future tax YonseguenYes of reYovering or settling the Yarrying 
amount of an asset or liability$ These future tax YonseguenYes are reYorded as deferred tax assets to the extent it is frobable that 
future taxable frofits or deferred tax liabilities will be available to utilise them$ Mhere affrofriate" deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset as fermitted by Australian AYYounting Standards$

A summary of LiYinity Bimited¾s Yurrent and deferred tax exfense" and reYognised deferred tax assets" is shown below0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
9urrent inYome tax benefit 5.9 6$)
:eferred inYome tax exfense (3.5) (($.)
Ad`ustment for Yurrent year tax of frior feriods 2.1 &$7
Benefit from tax losses not reYognised (4.5) (*$()
Income tax expense - #

Statutory taxes and levies
The Grouf also inYurs federal" state based or loYal authority taxes inYluding land tax" YounYil rates and levies$ These are inYluded 
within direYt froferty exfenses in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome$ Also inYluded in emfloyee benefits exfenses are 
emfloyment#related taxes suYh as fringe benefits tax" fayroll tax and woraYover Yontributions$

Further details of these taxes Yan be found in the Tax TransfarenYy seYtion of this Annual Hefort$ 

Goods and services tax
Hevenues" exfenses and assets are reYognised net of the amount of Goods and ServiYes Tax (GST) exYeft0

• where the GST inYurred on a furYhase of goods and serviYes is not reYoverable from the taxation authority" in whiYh Yase the GST 
is reYognised as fart of the Yost of aYguisition of the asset or as fart of the exfense item as affliYable1 and

• reYeivables and fayables" whiYh are stated with the amount of GST inYluded$

The net amount of GST reYoverable from" or fayable to" the taxation authority is inYluded as fart of reYeivables and fayables in the 
BalanYe Sheet$ 9ash Çows are inYluded in the 9ash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST Yomfonent of Yash Çows arising 
from investing and finanYing aYtivities that is reYoverable from" or fayable to" the taxation authority is Ylassified as fart of oferating 
Yash Çows$

9ommitments and YontingenYies are disYlosed net of the amount of GST reYoverable from" or fayable to" the taxation authority$ 
Further details of these taxes Yan be found in the Tax TransfarenYy seYtion of this Annual Hefort$ 

Operations continued
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(b) Heconciliation betmeen income tax expense%(benefit) to net profit

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Profit before tax for the year 1,583.6 /6&$/
Bess0 Profit attributed to the Trust and not sub`eYt to tax 1,595.9 1"(66$+
Net loss before tax attributable to securityholders of Vicinity Limited (12.3) ()&+$6)

Prima faYie inYome benefit at )&� 3.7 /1$7
Tax effect of amounts not taxable in calculating income tax expense:
Non#deduYtible imfairment and amortisation of intangible assets (0.9) (./$+)
Net ad`ustment relating to aYguisition of share based fayments (0.2) ($*
Prior feriod ad`ustments 2.1 &$7
Ether non#deduYtible items (0.2) (1$1)
Benefit from tax losses not reYognised (4.5) (*$()
Income tax expense - #

(c) Movement in temporary differences
A summary of the movements in deferred tax balanYes is as follows0

Provisions
$m

Intangible 
assets

$m
Other

$m

Allowable
deductions1

$m
Tax losses

$m
Total

$m
At 30 June 2015 19.4 (4.3) 7.3 23.9 38.0 84.3

Transfers # # # (1+$&) 1+$& #
9harged to frofit (1$+) 1$& (($)) &$6 ($( #
At 30 June 2016 17.9 (3.3) 5.0 9.5 55.2 84.3

Transfers # # # (/$+) /$+ #
9harged to frofit &$) &$/ (*$7) # )$+ #
At 30 June 2017 18.2 (2.4) 0.3 - 68.2 84.3

1$  The Grouf is entitled to tax deduYtions under s*&#..& of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 frimarily resulting from the termination of funds management 
YontraYts in CarYh (&1*$

The deferred tax assets are reYognised as it is frobable that the Grouf will earn suffiYient taxable inYome in future feriods for them 
to be utilised$ 

KnreYognised deferred tax assets will be reviewed on an annual basis and may be reYognised at a later date if Yonsidered liaely  
to be reYovered$ These totalled �(/$. million at )& @une (&17 ()& @une (&160 �(+$) million) Yomfrising0

• allowable deduYtions of �16$6 million ()& @une (&160 �(1$) million)1 and

• tax losses of �1)$( million ()& @une (&160 �*$& million)$
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4. Investment properties
The Grouf¾s investment froferties refresent freehold and leasehold interests in land and buildings held to derive rental inYome$ 
They are initially measured at Yost" inYluding related transaYtion Yosts$ Subseguently" at eaYh reforting feriod" they are Yarried at 
their fair values based on the maraet value determined by indefendent (external) valuers or internal valuations$ These valuations 
inYlude the Yost of Yafital woras in frogress on develofment fro`eYts$ Further detail on the Grouf¾s valuation froYess and valuation 
methods is desYribed in Note *(Y)$

(a) Portfolio summary

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16

Shopping centre type
Number of 
properties

Value
$m

Weighted 
average  
cap rate

%
Number of 
properties

Value
$m

Weighted 
average  
cap rate

%
Sufer Hegional 1 2,675.0 4.25 1 ("(1+$& *$7+
Ca`or Hegional 7 3,358.0 5.45 7 )"1**$( +$7/
City Centre 4 1,726.7 4.97 * 1".*/$+ +$&6
Hegional 10 2,240.4 6.17 1& ("1&+$* 6$))
Eutlet 9entre 6 1,391.7 6.29 + 1"&.*$. 6$*/
Sub Hegional 31 3,308.0 6.37 )* )"(7($+ 6$7+
Neighbourhood 15 728.4 6.51 1/ 7*7$) 6$.6
Planning and holding Yosts1 - 21.3 - # (+$. #
Total 74 15,449.5 5.61 .& 1*"***$+ +$/*
Add: Finance lease assets( 217.5 (1*$(
Bess0 Proferties held for sale  
(Yurrent asset))

(33.5) (()($1)

Total investment properties 15,633.5 1*"*(6$6

1$  Planning and holding Yosts relating to fotential ma`or develofment fro`eYts are Yafitalised and Yarried within the overall investment froferty balanYe$ These Yosts  
are reviewed eaYh feriod and the status of the fro`eYt assessed to determine if Yontinued Yafitalisation of these Yosts remains affrofriate$

($  Hefer to Note (1(b) for further detail$

)$  Hefresents the Yarrying amount of froferties whiYh the Grouf had an agreement to sell$ At )& @une (&17" the value refresented a 1&&� freehold interest in  
TerraYe 9entral" whiYh is due to settle in (&17$ The )& @une (&16 balanYe inYluded a (+� freehold interest in The Cyer 9entre Brisbane" a +&� freehold interest  
in Cornington 9entral and a 1&&� freehold interest in Bowes Street$ The frior year froferties held for sale all settled during the year$

(b) Movements for the year

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Efening balanYe at 1 @uly 14,444.5 1*"1&/$7
AYguisitions inYluding assoYiated stamf duty and transaYtion Yosts1 151.1 )7.$1
9afital exfenditure( 397.1 *&6$+
9afitalised borrowing Yosts) 8.0 11$.
:isfosals (436.0) (1"1*6$7)
Proferty revaluation inYrement for direYtly owned froferties 906.7 7))$&
Stamf duty and other Yosts written off on aYguisition of investment froferties (9.9) ((&$1)
Amortisation of inYentives and leasing Yosts (28.8) ()($6)
Straight#lining of rent ad`ustment 16.8 *$.
Closing balance at 30 June 15,449.5 1*"***$+

1$  ;xYludes �).$) million deferred Yonsideration faid for the aYguisition of the remaining +&� of Bentons Sguare in @uly (&16" as this asset was freviously aYYounted 
for in investment froferties on a 1&&� ownershif basis based on the terms of the aYguisition agreement$

($  ?nYludes develofment Yosts" maintenanYe Yafital exfenditure" lease inYentives and fit#out Yosts$

)$  Borrowing Yosts inYurred in the YonstruYtion of gualifying assets have been Yafitalised at a weighted average rate of *$)� ()& @une (&160 *$1�)$
 

Operations continued
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(c) Portfolio valuation

Process
;aYh investment froferty is valued either indefendently (externally) or internally in :eYember and @une eaYh year as fart of the 
biannual valuation froYess$ This froYess reguires0

• eaYh froferty to be indefendently valued at least onYe fer year1

• indefendent valuers (who are seleYted from a fre#affroved fanel) that are affrofriately gualified$ This is Yonsidered to be when 
they are authorised by law to Yarry out suYh valuations and have at least five years¾ valuation exferienYe (inYluding at least two 
years in Australia)1

• internal valuations to be undertaaen if a froferty is not due for an indefendent valuation1

• where an internal valuation shows a varianYe greater than 1&� from the last indefendent valuation" a new indefendent valuation 
to be undertaaen (even if this results in a froferty being indefendently valued twiYe in one year)1 and

• internal valuations to be reviewed by a direYtor of an indefendent valuation firm to assess the assumftions adofted and the 
reasonableness of the outYomes$

The valuation froYess is governed by the Board and the internal management ?nvestment 9ommittee" with infut from aey exeYutives 
as reguired$ The froYess is reviewed feriodiYally to taae into aYYount any regulatory Yhanges" Yhanges in maraet Yonditions and any 
other reguirements that would need to be adofted$

Methodology
To determine fair value:

• ?ndefendent valuations Yommonly adoft the midfoint of the ½Yafitalisation of net inYome¾ and ½disYounted Yash Çow¾ (:9F) methods$

• ?nternal valuations utilise the latest available froferty finanYial information in the ½Yafitalisation of net inYome¾ method with a 
Yross#YheYa using the :9F method$

• Both indefendent and internal valuations emfloy the ½residual value¾ method when valuing develofment froferties$

• Proferties that have sale agreements in flaYe by the end of the finanYial year are valued at the agreed sale amount$

Method Description

Capitalisation  
of net income

The fully leased annual net inYome of the froferty is Yafitalised in ferfetuity from the valuation date$ 
Larious ad`ustments are then made to the YalYulated result" inYluding estimated future inYentives" Yafital 
exfenditure" vaYanYy allowanYes and reversions to maraet rent$

The Yafitalisation rate reÇeYts the nature" loYation and tenanYy frofile of the froferty together with Yurrent 
maraet investment Yriteria" as evidenYed by Yurrent sales results$

Discounted  
cash flow

Pro`eYted Yash Çows for a seleYted investment feriod (usually 1& years) are derived from YontraYted or 
maraet rents" oferating Yosts" lease inYentives" Yafital exfenditure and future inYome on vaYant sfaYe$

The Yash Çows assume the froferty is sold at the end of the investment feriod for a terminal value$  
This terminal value is YalYulated by Yafitalising in ferfetuity assumed rents at the end of the investment  
feriod by an affrofriate terminal yield$

Fair value is determined to be the fresent value of these fro`eYted Yash Çows" whiYh is YalYulated by  
afflying a maraet#derived disYount rate to the Yash Çows$

Residual value  
(for properties 
under development)

The value of the asset on Yomfletion is YalYulated using the Yafitalisation of net inYome and :9F methods 
as desYribed above" based on the foreYast inYome frofile at develofment Yomfletion$ The estimated Yost  
to Yomflete the develofment" inYluding YonstruYtion Yosts and assoYiated exfenditures" finanYe Yosts" and  
an allowanYe for develofer¾s risa and frofit is deduYted from the value of the asset on Yomfletion to derive 
the Yurrent value$
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4. Investment properties continued
(c) Portfolio valuation continued

Key inputs and sensitivities
The Grouf has Ylassified fair value measurements (suYh as those ferformed on investment froferties) into the following hierarYhy  
as reguired by AASB 1) Fair Value Measurement:

• Bevel 10 guoted friYes (unad`usted) in aYtive maraets for identiYal assets or liabilities$

• Bevel (0 infuts other than guoted friYes inYluded within Bevel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability" either direYtly  
or indireYtly$ 

• Bevel )0 infuts for the asset or liability that are not based on observable maraet data (unobservable infuts)$

?nfuts to investment froferty valuations are Yonsidered Bevel ) of the fair value hierarYhy as the Yafitalisation of inYome and :9F 
methods reguire assumftions to be made to determine Yertain infuts that are not based on observable maraet data$

At reforting date" the aey unobservable infuts used by the Grouf in determining fair value of its investment froferties are 
summarised below0

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16

Unobservable 
inputs

Range of 
inputs

Weighted 
average  

inputs
Range of 

inputs

Weighted 
average  

inputs Sensitivity
Capitalisation rate1 4.25%–7.50% 5.61% *$7+�¹.$+&� +$/*� The higher the disYount rate" 

terminal yield, capitalisation rate 
and exfeYted downtime due to 
tenants vaYating" the lower the 
fair value$

:isYount rate( 6.75%–8.50% 7.55% 7$&&�¹/$(+� 7$/+�
Terminal yield) 4.50%–7.75% 5.85% +$&&�¹.$7+� 6$1.�
;xfeYted downtime  
(for tenants vaYating)

2 months to  
9 months 

5 months ( months to  
1( months

* months

Hental growth rate 2.27%–4.44% 3.52% ($7&�¹*$+&� )$7&�
The higher the rental growth 
rate" the higher the fair value$

1$  The Yafitalisation rate is the reguired annual yield of net maraet inYome used to determine the value of the froferty$ The rate is determined with regard to 
Yomfarable maraet transaYtions$

($  The disYount rate is a reguired annual total rate of return used to Yonvert a foreYast Yash Çow of an asset into a fresent value$ ?t should reÇeYt the reguired rate  
of return of the froferty given its risa frofile relative to Yomfeting uses of Yafital$ The rate is determined with regard to Yomfarable maraet transaYtions$

)$  The terminal yield is the Yafitalisation rate used to Yonvert foreYast annual inYome into a foreYast asset value at the end of the holding feriod when Yarrying out  
a disYounted Yash Çow YalYulation$ The rate is determined with regard to Yomfarable maraet transaYtions and the exfeYted risa of the asset at the end of the Yash 
Çow feriod$

All of the above aey assumftions have been taaen from the latest external valuation reforts and internal valuation assessments$ 
:FE Perth is exYluded from the )& @une (&17 infuts as it is Yurrently under YonstruYtion$

For all investment froferties" the Yurrent use eguates to the highest and best use$ 

Operations continued
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(d) List of investment properties held

i. Super Regional
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation  

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Chadstone +& ?nternal 2,675.0 ("(1+$&
Total Super Regional 2,675.0 ("(1+$&

ii. Major Regional
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Banastown 9entral +& ;xternal 350.0 )*)$&
Bayside 1&& ;xternal 622.5 +7&$&
9hatswood 9hase Sydney 1&& ;xternal 1,121.2 1"&11$(
Galleria +& ?nternal 395.0 ).($+
Northland +& ;xternal 487.5 *.($+
Roselands +& ;xternal 179.7 1.+$&
The Glen +& ?nternal 202.1 17&$&
Total Major Regional 3,358.0 )"1**$(

iii. City Centre
Carrying value

 Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
;mforium Celbourne1 +& ;xternal 605.0 +7&$&
Cyer Bourae Street1 )) ?nternal 156.2 1+1$)
The Cyer 9entre Brisbane( (+ ?nternal 195.0 ).*$(
GueensPlapa 1&& ;xternal 770.5 7**$&
Total City Centre 1,726.7 1".*/$+

Hefer to footnotes at the end of Note *(d)$

iv. Regional
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Broadmeadows 9entral 1&& ;xternal 330.5 )(($.
Colonnades +& ;xternal 155.6 1++$+
9ranbourne Para +& ?nternal 153.0 1*7$+
;astlands 1&& ?nternal 170.0 16)$&
;lipabeth 9ity 9entre 1&& ;xternal 384.1 )7*$1
Grand Plapa +& ;xternal 215.0 (&+$&
Candurah Forum +& ;xternal 256.5 17($+
Ct Emmaney 9entre (+ ?nternal 105.2 1&+$&
HoYaingham 9entre +& ;xternal 313.0 )&&$&
Hunaway Bay 9entre +& ;xternal 157.5 16&$&
Total Regional 2,240.4 ("1&+$*
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4. Investment properties continued
(d) List of investment properties held continued

v. Outlet Centre
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
:FE Brisbane) 1&& ;xternal 59.0 ++$&
:FE ;ssendon* 1&& ?nternal 170.0 16)$&
:FE >omebush 1&& ?nternal 425.0 )/&$&
:FE Coorabbin+ 1&& ;xternal 122.0 11&$+
:FE Perth6 +& ?nternal 17.7 #
:FE South Mharf7 1&& ;xternal 598.0 )66$)
Total Outlet Centre 1,391.7 1"&.*$.

Hefer to footnotes at the end of Note *(d)$

vi. Sub Regional
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Altona Gate Shoffing 9entre 1&& ?nternal 102.5 /*$&
Armidale Central 1&& ;xternal 46.0 *+$+
Belmont Lillage 1&& ?nternal 50.0 *6$)
Box >ill 9entral (North PreYinYt) 1&& ;xternal 103.0 .6$6
Box >ill 9entral (South PreYinYt). 1&& ?nternal 192.0 161$&
Brandon Para +& ;xternal 65.0 +7$+
Buranda Lillage 1&& ?nternal 42.5 *1$+
9arlingford 9ourt +& ?nternal 114.0 1&.$+
9astle Plapa 1&& ?nternal 174.0 16.$/
Corio Central 1&& ?nternal 131.0 1(6$&
;llenbrooa 9entral 1&& ?nternal 240.0 ())$&
Gympie Central 1&& ;xternal 79.0 7.$&
Halls Head Central +& ;xternal 54.6 *7$*
Karratha City +& ;xternal 52.5 +6$6
Kurralta Central 1&& ?nternal 42.0 )7$&
Baae >aven 9entre 1&& ?nternal 298.0 (7)$+
Bavington Sguare 1&& ?nternal 62.3 +.$&
Bivingston CaraetflaYe 1&& ?nternal 86.0 .*$&
Caddington 9entral 1&& ?nternal 122.0 11/$&
Cornington 9entral( +& ?nternal 36.0 6+$&
Nefean Lillage 1&& ?nternal 181.0 16*$&
Northgate 1&& ;xternal 108.0 1&)$+
Hoxburgh Lillage 1&& ;xternal 122.1 111$/
Sunshine CaraetflaYe +& ;xternal 58.5 +7$+
Taigum Sguare 1&& ;xternal 100.0 /1$&
Toormina Gardens +& ?nternal 40.5 *&$&
Marnbro 9entre 1&& ?nternal 125.0 1()$+
Marriewood Sguare +& ;xternal 142.5 1)($+
MarwiYa Grove 1&& ?nternal 200.0 1/7$+
Mest ;nd Plapa 1&& ;xternal 70.0 6*$*
Mhitsunday Plapa 1&& ?nternal 68.0 6)$&
Caitland >unter Call/ # # - (&$&
Tweed Call/ # # - 7&$&
Modonga Plapa/ # # - *6$*
Total Sub Regional 3,308.0 )"(7($+

Hefer to footnotes at the end of Note *(d)$

Operations continued
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vii. Neighbourhood
Carrying value

Ownership interest
%

30-Jun-17
Valuation 

type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Bentons Sguare 1&& ?nternal 82.0 77$)
9urrambine 9entral 1&& ?nternal 105.0 /.$&
:ianella Plapa 1&& ?nternal 89.0 .1$+
Flinders Sguare 1&& ?nternal 32.5 )1$&
Goldfields Plapa 1&& ;xternal 27.2 (7$&
Kalamunda Central 1&& ?nternal 38.5 )7$+
Bennox Lillage +& ?nternal 36.5 )($+
Cilton Lillage 1&& ?nternal 27.5 (+$+
North Shore Lillage 1&& ?nternal 25.0 ()$+
Eaaleigh 9entral 1&& ;xternal 71.6 6($&
Exenford Lillage 1&& ;xternal 33.1 (.$*
Stirlings 9entral 1&& ?nternal 50.0 +&$&
Terrace Central1& 1&& ?nternal 33.5 )($+
The Gateway 1&& ?nternal 46.0 *($+
LiYtoria Para 9entral 1&& ;xternal 31.0 (/$+
Albany Brooas Garden/ # # - ()$.
Bowes Street/ # # - 7$+
>ilton Plapa/ # # - 17$.
Conier Lillage/ # # - 1/$+
Total Neighbourhood 728.4 747.3

1$  The titles to these froferties are leasehold and exfire in ()&6$

($  A (+� interest in The Cyer 9entre Brisbane and a +&� interest in Cornington 9entral were disfosed during the year$

)$  The right to oferate the :FE Brisbane business exfires in (&*6$

*$  The title to this froferty is leasehold and exfires in (&*.$

+$  The title to this froferty is leasehold with an oftion to extend the ground lease to (&)* at the Grouf¾s disYretion$ 

6$  This froferty is Yurrently under YonstruYtion$ The Yarrying value at )& @une (&17 refresents Yosts inYurred to date$ The title is leasehold and exfires in (&*7$

7$  An additional (+� interest in :FE South Mharf was aYguired during the year$ The title to this froferty is leasehold and exfires in (1&.$

.$  The title to this froferty is leasehold with oftions to extend the ground lease to (1)* at the Grouf¾s disYretion$

/$  :isfosed during the year$

1&$  Proferty is Yurrently YontraYted for sale with settlement exfeYted in (&17$

(e) Operating lease receivables
The investment froferties are leased to tenants under oferating leases with rentals fayable monthly$ Future minimum rental 
revenue reYeivables under non#YanYellable oferating leases of investment froferties are as follows0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Not later than one year 861.6 .))$(
Bater than one year and not later than five years 2,282.2 ("&77$)
Bater than five years 1,123.9 1"&/1$6
Total operating lease receivables 4,267.7 *"&&($1
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5. Equity accounted investments
;guity aYYounted investments are fredominantly investment froferty `oint ventures with strategiY fartners where the froferty 
ownershif interest is held through a `ointly owned trust rather than direYt ownershif into the froferty title$ The Grouf has YontraYtual 
arrangements that establish `oint Yontrol over the eYonomiY aYtivities of these trusts" based on standard maraet terms$ These are 
aYYounted for in the Grouf¾s finanYial statements using the eguity method$

Ownership Carrying value

30-Jun-17
%

30-Jun-16
%

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

LiYtoria Gardens Hetail Trust `oint venture 50.0 +&$& 86.4 76$)
Ether assoYiates and `oint ventures - # 1.6 *$(
Closing balance 88.0 .&$+

(a) Movements for the year

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Efening balanYe 80.5 /)$/
Additional investments made during the year 0.4 ($&
Share of net frofit%(loss) of eguity aYYounted investments 18.2 (6$&)
:istributions of net inYome from eguity aYYounted investments (9.4) (.$/)
:isfosal of ownershif in eguity aYYounted investments (1.7) (&$+)
Closing balance 88.0 .&$+

(b) IkmmariseZ financial information for Lictoria =arZens Hetail Jrkst1

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

?nvestment froferties ¹ non#Yurrent 138.2 1(7$1
?nterest bearing liabilities ¹ non#Yurrent (46.6) (*6$6)
Ether net liabilities (5.2) (*$()
Net assets 86.4 76$)
Total income 10.3 /$)
Aggregate net frofits after inYome tax 14.8 1&$1
?nterest exfense (1.9) (1$/)
:istributions reYeivable by the Grouf 5.8 )$6

1$  Summarised finanYial information refresents +&� of the underlying finanYial statement information of the `oint venture with no ad`ustments made$

(c) Related party transactions with equity accounted investments during the year

Victoria Gardens Retail Trust (joint venture, 50% ownership interest)
Asset management fees earned by the Grouf for management serviYes frovided to LiYtoria Gardens Hetail Trust totalled �./*"1() 
()& @une (&160 �.(7"*.+)$ At )& @une (&17" �++1 remains fayable to the Grouf ()& @une (&160 �66"1(7)$ The Grouf also has 
distributions reYeivable of �+".(+"1+7 at balanYe date ()& @une (&160 �)"667"7+*)$

Vicinity Asset Operations Pty Ltd (VAO) (associate, 33% ownership interest)
Hent and outgoings earned from LAE as a tenant of the Grouf¾s Yentres was �1("*6*"/1. ()& @une (&160 �1)"+1)".+/)$ 
:ividends faid to the Grouf were �("71+".1) ()& @une (&160 �/&*"717)$ The Grouf has reYeivables from LAE of �+"1&1"**6  
at )& @une (&17 ()& @une (&160 �*"11&"(7/)$

Tuggeranong Town Centre Trust (joint venture, 50% ownership interest disposed on 30 November 2016)
Asset management fees earned by the Grouf for management serviYes frovided to Tuggeranong Town 9entre Trust (TT9T)" frior 
to disfosal" totalled �+/)"/1* ()& @une (&160 �1")6."6+/)$ The loan reYeivable from TT9T of �117").7"&&& was refaid ufon 
disfosal$ ?nterest inYome for the year was �(".)*"1*( ()& @une (&160 �7"1)("&+1)$ There are no outstanding balanYes related  
to this `oint venture at )& @une (&17$

Operations continued
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Capital Structure and Financial Risk Management

6. Interest bearing liabilities and derivatives
?nterest bearing liabilities are initially reYognised at fair value" net of transaYtion Yosts inYurred and subseguently measured at 
amortised Yost using the effeYtive interest rate method$ Foreign YurrenYy denominated notes are translated to Australian :ollars (A�) 
at the affliYable exYhange rate at year end with the gain or loss attributable to exYhange rate movements reYognised in frofit or 
loss in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome$ 

:uring the year" the following finanYing aYtivities have oYYurred0

• KS �1**$& million of KS� Private PlaYement Notes (KSPPs) exfired on 7 February (&17 and were refaid through existing available 
bana debt faYilities$

• �(&&$& million of 7#year and �(&&$& million of 1&#year A� Cedium Term Notes (ACTNs) were issued on (6 Afril (&17$ The 
froYeeds of the issue were used to refay existing bana faYilities and for general Yorforate furfoses$ �(6&$& million of existing 
bana debt faYilities were YanYelled following this issue$

• A 1)#month extension of Yertain bana debt faYilities to imfrove the debt exfiry frofiles$

• Net refayments of existing faYilities have been made throughout the year from asset sales" fartially offset by funds drawn for 
Yafital exfenditure$

The following table outlines the Grouf¾s interest bearing liabilities at balanYe date0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Current liabilities 
Unsecured
KSPPs - 1/)$1
Total current liabilities - 1/)$1
Non-current liabilities
Secured
ACTNs 317.4 )()$(
Unsecured
Bana debt 1,506.3 1"6/6$)
ACTNs 645.7 (+&$&
GBP ;urofean Cedium Term Notes (;CTNs) 588.1 61/$/
KSPPs 852.2 .77$6
:eferred debt Yosts1 (16.0) (17$/)
Total non-current liabilities 3,893.7 )"7*/$1
Total interest bearing liabilities 3,893.7 )"/*($(

1$  :eferred debt Yosts Yomfrise the unamortised value of borrowing Yosts on establishment or refinanYe of debt faYilities$ These Yosts are deferred on the BalanYe 
Sheet and amortised to borrowing Yosts in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome$
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Capital Structure and Financial Risk Management continued

6. Interest bearing liabilities and derivatives continued
(a) Financing facilities
The Yharts below outline the maturity of the Grouf¾s total available faYilities at )& @une (&17 by tyfe" and the bana to Yafital 
maraets debt ratio$ Ef the �+"&+&$. million total available faYilities ()& @une (&160 �+"&..$* million)" �1"1(6$& million remains 
undrawn at )& @une (&17 ()& @une (&160 �1"1/6$& million)$

1$  The Yarrying amount of the KSPPs" ;CTNs and ACTNs in the BalanYe Sheet is net of ad`ustments for fair value items and foreign exYhange translation of #�1+$1 million  
()& @une (&160 !�67$7 million)$ These ad`ustments are exYluded from the YalYulation of total faYilities available and amounts drawn as shown in the Yharts$ 
Additionally" deferred debt Yosts of �16$& million ()& @une (&160 �17$/ million) are not reÇeYted in the amount drawn$ 

($  Total bana debt faYilities are reduYed by bana guarantees of �17$7 million drawn against bana debt faYilities ()& @une (&160 �17$7 million)$

(b) Borrowing costs
Borrowing Yosts Yonsist of interest and other Yosts that an entity inYurs in YonneYtion with borrowing funds suYh as establishment 
fees" legal and other fees$ Borrowing Yosts are exfensed to the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome using the effeYtive interest rate 
method" exYeft for borrowing Yosts inYurred for the develofment of investment froferties whiYh are Yafitalised to the Yost of an 
investment froferty during the feriod of develofment$

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
?nterest Yosts on interest bearing liabilities and derivatives 167.4 1..$*
Amortisation of borrowing Yosts 5.2 +$/
Amortisation of fair value ad`ustments relating to disYontinuation of hedge aYYounting1 (7.9) (1$/)
Amortisation of ACTN and ;CTN fair value ad`ustments (5.1) (+$+)
Finance lease interest 3.3 #
Bess0 9afitalised borrowing Yosts (8.0) (11$.)
Total borrowing costs 154.9 17+$1

1$  En 1 Cay (&16" the Grouf eleYted to disYontinue hedge aYYounting that it freviously afflied for its existing KSPPs and 9ross 9urrenYy Swaf derivatives$ AASB 1)/ 
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement reguired that ufon disYontinuation" the historiYal hedge aYYounting ad`ustment afflied to the Yarrying value of 
the KSPPs relating to movements in interest rates sinYe the KSPPs were entered into be reYognised as fart of the Yarrying value of the KSPP$ This ad`ustment is then 
amortised to pero over the remaining life of the KSPPs using the effeYtive interest rate method$ This amortisation is inYluded in borrowing Yosts in the Statement of 
9omfrehensive ?nYome$

Beyond

1,600

800

1,400

1,200

1,000

600

200

400

0

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26

Available facilities expiry profile ($m)1,2

Bank debt undrawnBank debt drawnEMTNAMTNUSPP Bank debt limit

Capital market debt outstanding

Bank to capital market 
debt ratio

52%
48%

$2,632.3
$2,418.5

725.3

192.0

383.0

200.0
727.0

198.0 40.0 58.9200.0 309.0

200.0

367.4

655.2

200.0

150.0
400.0

7.0
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(c) Defaults and covenants
At )& @une (&17" the Grouf had no defaults on debt obligations or breaYhes of lending Yovenants ()& @une (&160 None)$

(d) Derivatives
As detailed further in Note 7" derivative instruments are held to hedge against the interest rate risa and foreign YurrenYy risa of the 
Grouf¾s borrowings$ The fair value of these derivatives are estimated using valuation teYhnigues" inYluding referenYing to the Yurrent 
fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same or YalYulation of disYounted Yash Çows$ These valuation teYhnigues use 
observable Bevel ( infuts" mainly interest rates and interest rate Yurves as well as foreign YurrenYy rates and foreign YurrenYy Yurves$

The Yarrying value and notional frinYifal amounts of these instruments are shown in the table below0 

Carrying amount Notional principal value

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

9ross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� Çoating reYeive KS� fixed) ¹ Assets - 1+$6 - 177$+
Total current assets - 1+$6 n/a n%a

9ross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� Çoating reYeive KS� fixed) ¹ Assets 68.3 11($( 340.6 *)+$&
Total non-current assets 68.3 11($( n/a n%a

?nterest rate swafs (Çoating to fixed) ¹ Biabilities (2.3) # 1,187.0 #
Total current liabilities (2.3) # n/a n%a

9ross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� Çoating reYeive KS� fixed) ¹ Biabilities (36.2) (1$&) 357.8 (6)$)
9ross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� Çoating reYeive GBP fixed) ¹ Biabilities (67.5) (1*$.) 655.2 6++$(
?nterest rate swafs (Çoating to fixed) ¹ Biabilities (72.4) (16)$/) 1,275.0 (".7&$1
Total non-current liabilities (176.1) (17/$7) n/a n%a
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7. 9apital anZ financial risk mana]ement
The Grouf¾s treasury team is resfonsible for the day to day management of the Grouf¾s Yafital reguirements and finanYial risa 
management$ These aYtivities are overseen by the internal management 9afital Canagement 9ommittee (9C9)" oferating under 
9C9 9harter and treasury foliYies$ These foliYies are endorsed by the Audit 9ommittee and affroved by the Board of :ireYtors$  
The overall ob`eYtives of the 9C9 are to0

• ensure that the Grouf has funds available to meet all finanYial obligations" woraing Yafital and Yommitted Yafital  
exfenditure reguirements1

• monitor and ensure YomflianYe with all relevant finanYial Yovenants under the Grouf¾s debt faYilities1

• reduYe the imfaYt of adverse interest rate or foreign exYhange movements on the Grouf using affroved finanYial risa  
management instruments1 and

• diversify banaing Younterfarties to mitigate Younterfarty Yredit risa$

The aey finanYial risas monitored by the 9C9 and strategies adofted by the Grouf to assist in aYhieving these ob`eYtives  
are set out below0

Risk Primary source(s) Explanation and risk management strategy Details

Interest 
rate risk

Floating rate 
borrowings

?nterest rate risa refresents the fotential for Yhanges in maraet interest rates  
to imfaYt the total interest exfense for the Grouf$

Floating#to#fixed interest rate swafs1 are used to manage this risa$ None of the  
Grouf¾s derivatives are Yurrently in designated hedge relationshifs$

Knder the terms of these swafs" the Grouf agrees to exYhange" at sfeYified  
intervals" amounts based on the differenYe between the fixed YontraYt interest  
rate and the Çoating maraet interest rate YalYulated by referenYe to an agreed  
notional frinYifal amount$

Note 7(a)

Foreign 
exchange 
rate risk

Foreign denominated 
interest bearing 
liabilities (KSPPs  
and ;CTNs)

Foreign exYhange risa refers to the risa that Yash Çows arising from a finanYial 
Yommitment" asset or liability" denominated in a foreign YurrenYy" will ÇuYtuate due  
to Yhanges in a foreign exYhange rate$

This risa is managed through the use of Yross YurrenYy swafs1 which swap the  
foreign YurrenYy interest fayments into Australian :ollars and fix the exYhange rate  
for the Yonversion of the frinYifal refayment$ None of these derivatives are Yurrently  
in designated hedge relationshifs$

Note 7(b)

Liquidity 
risk

?nterest bearing 
liabilities

Biguidity risa refresents the risa that the Grouf will be unable to meet finanYial 
obligations as they fall due$

To manage this risa" suffiYient YafaYity under the Grouf¾s finanYing faYilities is 
maintained to meet the needs arising from the Board affroved short#term and 
medium#term business strategy$ This is aYhieved through seYuring and maintaining 
funding from a range of sourYes (e$g$ Banas and Australian and foreign debt Yafital 
maraets)" maintaining suffiYient undrawn debt YafaYity and Yash balanYes" and 
managing the amount of borrowings that mature" or faYilities that exfire" in any  
one year$

Note 7(Y)

Credit 
risk

Tenant reYeivables" 
derivative 
counterparties  
and bana defosits

9redit risa is the risa that a tenant or Younterfarty to a finanYial instrument fails  
to meet their finanYial obligations to the Grouf$

To mitigate tenant Yredit risa" an assessment is ferformed taaing into Yonsideration 
the finanYial baYaground of the tenant and the amount of any guarantee or bana 
guarantee frovided as Yollateral under the lease$

To mitigate Yredit risa in relation to derivative Younterfarties and bana defosits"  
the Grouf has foliYies to limit exfosure to any one finanYial institution$

The maximum exfosure to Yredit risa at the balanYe date is the Yarrying amount  
of the Grouf¾s finanYial assets$

Note /

Note 6(d)

1$  :erivative finanYial instruments suYh as interest rate swafs and Yross YurrenYy swafs are not fermitted to be entered into for sfeYulative furfoses under the Grouf¾s 
hedging foliYy$ Bimits are in flaYe in resfeYt of their use to hedge Yash Çows sub`eYt to interest rate and foreign exYhange risa$ None of these derivatives are Yurrently 
in hedge relationshifs$ 

Capital Structure and Financial Risk Management continued
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(a) Interest rate risk
As at the balanYe date" the Grouf had the following exfosure to Yash Çow interest rate risa0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Total interest bearing liabilities (Note 6) 3,893.7 )"/*($(
Add0 :eferred debt Yosts 16.0 17$/
Add0 Fair value and foreign exYhange ad`ustments to ;CTNs 67.1 )+$)
Bess0 Fair value and foreign exYhange ad`ustments to KSPPs (38.9) (7/$/)
Bess0 Fair value ad`ustments to ACTNs (13.1) (()$1)
Total drawn debt 3,924.8 )"./($*
Bess0 Fixed rate borrowings (1,065.0) (66+$&)
Variable rate borrowings exposed to cash flow interest rate risk 2,859.8 )"((7$*
Bess0 Notional frinYifal of outstanding interest rate swaf YontraYts (2,462.0) ((".7&$1)
Net variable rate borrowings exposed to cash flow interest rate risk 397.8 )+7$)
Hedge ratio1 90% /1�

1$  9alYulated as total drawn debt less refresentative net variable rate borrowings exfosed to Yash Çow interest rate risa divided by total drawn debt$

Sensitivity to interest rates
A shift in the forward interest rate Yurve of !%# (+ bfs" assuming the net exfosure to Yash Çow interest rate risa as at )& @une (&17 
remains unYhanged for the next 1( months" would imfaYt the Grouf¾s Yash interest Yost for the next 1( months by �1$& million  
()& @une (&16 !%#(+ bfs0 �&$/ million)$

The fair values of derivatives used by the Grouf are also sensitive to interest rates$ A shift in the forward interest rate Yurve of !% 
(+ bfs" assuming the net exfosure to fair value interest rate risa as at )& @une (&17 remains unYhanged for the next 1( months" 
would imfaYt net frofit and eguity for the next 1( months by �.$6 million ()& @une (&16 !%#(+ bfs0 �1&$& million)$

This sensitivity analysis should not be Yonsidered a fro`eYtion$ 

(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
At )& @une (&17" the Grouf has the following net exfosure to foreign YurrenYy translation risa arising from KS� and GBP 
denominated borrowings0

US$ borrowings
30-Jun-17 

US$ $m
30-Jun-16 

US$ $m
Total interest bearing liabilities in KS� 553.0 6/)$&
Bess0 Notional value of Yross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� reYeive KS�) (553.0) (6/)$&)
Net exfosure to KS� translation risa - #
>edge ratio for interest bearing liability in KS� 100% 1&&�

GBP borrowings
30-Jun-17

GBP $m
30-Jun-16

GBP $m
Total interest bearing liabilities in GBP 350.0 )+&$&
Bess0 Notional value of Yross YurrenYy swafs (fay A� reYeive GBP) (350.0) ()+&$&)
Net exfosure to GBP translation risa - #
>edge ratio for interest bearing liability in GBP 100% 1&&�

The Yarrying values of debt and derivatives held by the Grouf are also sensitive to foreign exYhange rates$ A shift in the forward 
KS: and GBP exYhange rate Yurves of !%# +$& Yents" assuming the net exfosure to fair value exYhange rate risa as at )& @une (&17 
remains unYhanged for the next 1( months" would imfaYt net frofit and eguity for the next 1( months by �16$+ million ()& @une 
(&16 !%# +$& Yents0 �(7$& million)$ 
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7. 9apital anZ financial risk mana]ement continued
(c) Liquidity risk
The YontraYtual maturity of interest bearing liabilities and the interest fayment frofile is shown below$ ;stimated interest and 
frinYifal fayments are YalYulated based on the forward interest and foreign exYhange rates frevailing at year end and are 
undisYounted$ Timing of fayments is based on Yurrent YontraYtual obligations whiYh may not align to the YlassifiYations of Yurrent 
and non#Yurrent liabilities$ Hefer to Note 1& for details on trade and other liabilities that are not inYluded in the table below$ 

30-Jun-17

Less than  
1 year 

$m

1 to 3  
years

$m

Greater 
than  

3 years
$m

Total 
$m

Carrying 
amount

$m
Bana debt # 1"1&.$) )/.$& 1,506.3 1,506.3
ACTNs # *&&$& ++&$& 950.0 963.1
KSPPs # )/$* .+1$/ 891.3 852.2
;CTNs # # 6/*$+ 694.5 588.1
;stimated interest fayments on borrowings 1(1$. (*+$. *.1$& 848.6 n/a
;stimated net interest rate swaf Yash outÇow (6$+ *&$+ 1($) 79.3 74.7
;stimated gross Yross YurrenYy swaf Yash outÇows +($6 1+)$7 1"761$1 1,967.4 35.4
;stimated gross Yross YurrenYy swaf Yash (inÇows) (*.$6) (1)+$/) (1"761$.) (1,946.3) n/a
Total contractual outflows 1+($) 1".+1$. ("/.7$& 4,991.1 4,019.8

30-Jun-16

Less than  
1 year 

$m

1 to 3  
years

$m

Greater 
than 3 
years

$m
Total 

$m

Carrying 
amount

$m
Bana debt #  1"+)/$) 1+7$& 1"6/6$)  1"6/6$) 
ACTNs # # ++&$& ++&$&  +7)$( 
KSPPs  1./$.  *1$+  ..+$.  1"117$1  1"&7&$7 
;CTNs  #  #  7(&$*  7(&$*  61/$/ 
;stimated interest fayments on borrowings 1)/$( (*)$6 *.6$& .6.$. n%a
;stimated net interest rate swaf Yash outÇow 17$6 6($( 1&*$( 1.*$&  16)$/ 
;stimated gross Yross YurrenYy swaf Yash outÇows  ()+$7  1*($+  1"7*+$.  ("1(*$& n%a
;stimated gross Yross YurrenYy swaf Yash (inÇows) ((+1$&) (1*+$() (1"../$/) (("(.6$1) (11($&)
Total contractual outflows  ))1$)  1"..)$/  ("7+/$)  *"/7*$+  *"&1($&

 
(d) Fair value of borrowings 
As at )& @une (&17" the Grouf¾s debt has a fair value of �)"/.7$) million ()& @une (&160 �*"&.1$6 million)$ 

The differenYe between the Yarrying amount and fair value is due to fixed rate borrowings held$ The fair value of fixed rate borrowings 
is YalYulated by disYounting the YontraYtual Yash Çows using the yield to maturity or frevailing maraet disYount rates for maraet fixed 
interest debt instruments" with similar terms" maturity and Yredit guality$ >ad the fixed debt been reYognised at fair value" these infuts 
would have been Ylassified as Bevel ( under the fair value hierarYhy as the maraet disYount rates used are indireYtly observable$
 

Capital Structure and Financial Risk Management continued
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(e) Capital risk management
The Grouf maintains a strong and Yonservative Yafital struYture with affrofriate liguidity" a strong BalanYe Sheet and a diversified 
debt frofile (by sourYe and tenor)$ The Grouf has long#term Yredit ratings of ½A(¾ from Coody¾s ?nvestors ServiYe and ½A¾ from 
Standard � Poor¾s$ The two aey metriYs monitored by the Grouf are the bana faYilities to Yafital maraets debt ratio and gearing 
ratio$ These metriYs are shown in the tables below0

Bank facilities to capital market debt

Facility type
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Total bana debt limit1 2,632.3 ("/1&$&
Total Yafital maraet outstanding 2,418.5 ("1/6$1
Total debt facilities available to the Group 5,050.8 +"1&6$1
Bank facilities as a proportion of total debt facilities 52.1% +7$&�
Capital market debt as a proportion of total debt facilities 47.9% *)$&�
1$  Total bana debt faYilities are reduYed by bana guarantees of �17$7 million drawn against bana debt faYilities ()& @une (&160 �17$7 million)$

Gearing

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Total drawn debt ($m) 3,924.8 )"./($*
:rawn debt net of Yash (�m) 3,882.6 )".)/$6
Total tangible assets exYluding Yash" finanYe lease assets and derivative finanYial assets (�m) 15,731.4 1*".+($)
Gearing ratio (target range of 25.0% to 35.0%) 24.7% (+$/�

8. Contributed equity 
An ordinary stafled seYurity Yomfrises one share in the 9omfany and one unit in the Trust$ Erdinary stafled seYurities entitle the holder 
to fartiYifate in distributions and the froYeeds on winding uf of the Grouf (if enaYted) in frofortion to the number of seYurities 
held$ Erdinary stafled seYurities are Ylassified as eguity$

?nYremental Yosts direYtly attributable to the issue of new stafled seYurities are shown in eguity as a deduYtion" net of tax" from the  
froYeeds$ ?nYremental Yosts direYtly attributable to the issue of new stafled seYurities for the aYguisition of a business are not inYluded 
in the Yost of the aYguisition as fart of the furYhase Yonsideration$

The number of ordinary seYurities of the Grouf is shown in the table below$ All ordinary seYurities are fully faid$ There were no 
movements in the number of ordinary seYurities on issue during the Yurrent or frior finanYial year$

30-Jun-17
Number (m)

30-Jun-16
Number (m)

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Total stapled securities on issue during and at the end of the year 3,958.6 )"/+.$6 8,493.2 ."*/)$(
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Working Capital

9. Receivables and other assets
Trade and other reYeivables are reYognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised Yost using the effeYtive 
interest method" less any frovision for imfairment$ 

:ebts that are individually anown to be unYolleYtable are written off when identified$ An allowanYe aYYount (frovision for doubtful 
debts) is used when there is ob`eYtive evidenYe that the Grouf may not be able to YolleYt all amounts due aYYording to the original 
terms of the reYeivables$

Note 30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Trade debtors 14.8 17$*
Accrued income 15.5 (($7
HeYeivables from strategiY fartnershifs 15.6 (+$(
:istribution reYeivable from `oint ventures and assoYiates 5.8 +$1
Bess0 Provision for doubtful debts (6.0) (*$6)
Total receivables 45.7 6+$.

Prefayments 12.9 7$+
Bevies 13.1 1)$*
Tenant security deposits held 1.2 1$/
Ether 15.4 16$/
Total current receivables and other assets 88.3 1&+$+

Boan to Tuggeranong Town 9entre Trust +(Y) - 117$*
?nvestment in related farty 2.5 ($7
Total non-current receivables and other assets 2.5 1(&$1

Risk of tenant default
Tenant debtor balanYes are Yontinually monitored with the Grouf Yonsidering reYeivables that have not been faid for )& days after 
the invoiYe date as fast due$ Promft reYovery of these balanYes is sought$ Mhere there are indiYators that full reYovery will not 
oYYur" frovision is made for these amounts$

Ef the �+1$7 million trade and related farty reYeivables outstanding ()& @une (&160 �7&$* million)" �1($1 million" whiYh refresents 
affroximately &$/(� of total Yombined revenue" is Yonsidered fast due but not imfaired at )& @une (&17 ()& @une (&160  
�1&$6 million)$

The Grouf has reYognised a loss of �+$6 million ()& @une (&160 �)$6 million) in resfeYt of imfaired trade reYeivables during the 
year$ The loss has been inYluded in direYt froferty exfenses from ordinary aYtivities in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome$ 

The Grouf does not hold any Yollateral in relation to trade or other reYeivables" other than seYurity defosits or bana guarantees  
as is usual in leasing agreements$

The maximum exfosure to Yredit risa at the balanYe date is the Yarrying amount of eaYh Ylass of reYeivables outlined above$
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10. Fayables anZ ot^er financial liabilities
Payables and other finanYial liabilities refresent liabilities for goods and serviYes frovided to the Grouf frior to the end of the 
finanYial year and that are unfaid$ The amounts are unseYured and are usually faid within )& days of reYognition$ Trade and other 
fayables are Yarried at amortised Yost and are not disYounted due to their short#term nature$

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Current
Trade fayables and aYYrued exfenses 64.3 7&$*
Rents received in advance 34.5 (7$1
AYYrued interest exfense 16.8 16$7
AYYrued Yafital exfenditure 70.2 6($&
SeYurity defosits 0.6 1$)
Ether finanYial liability ¹ Bentons Sguare1 - ).$6
FinanYe lease liabilities( 14.8 1)$.
Ether 8.4 7$/
Total current liabilities 209.6 ()7$.
Non-current
FinanYe lease liabilities( 202.7 (&&$*
Total non-current liabilities 202.7 (&&$*
1$  Hefer footnote 1 in Note *(b)$

($  Hefer Note (1(b)$

At )& @une (&17" the Yarrying value of fayables and other finanYial liabilities affroximated their fair value$ All Yurrent fayables" 
exYluding finanYe lease liabilities" are exfeYted to be due and fayable within the next three months$
 

11. Provisions
Provisions Yomfrise liabilities arising from emfloyee benefits" suYh as annual leave and long serviYe leave" as well as frovisions for 
stamf duty and other items for whiYh the amount or timing of the settlement is unYertain as it is outside the Yontrol of the Grouf$ 

Mhere the frovisions are not exfeYted to be settled wholly within 1( months after the end of the annual reforting feriod in whiYh 
the obligation arises" the liability is disYounted to fresent value based on management¾s best estimate of the timing of settlement 
and the exfenditure reguired to settle the liability at the reforting date$ 

The disYount rates used to determine the fresent value are determined by referenYe to maraet yields at the end of the reforting 
feriod attaYhing to high guality Yorforate bonds with terms to maturity and YurrenYies that matYh" as Ylosely as fossible" the 
estimated future Yash outÇows of the related liability$

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Current
Current employee entitlements 51.6 ++$.
Ether Yurrent frovisions 26.9 )&$&
Total current provisions 78.5 .+$.
Non-current
Non#Yurrent emfloyee entitlements 3.6 ($)
Ether non#Yurrent frovisions 4.2 #
Total non-current provisions 7.8 ($)

The movements for the year in other provisions are as follows:

30-Jun-16
$m

Arising 
during  

the year

Paid  
during  

the year
Other 

movements
30-Jun-17

$m
Current
Stamf duty /$& /$/ (/$/) # 9.0
Bevies 1)$* 1)$1 (1)$*) # 13.1
Ether 7$6 &$) # ()$1) 4.8
Total other current provisions )&$& ()$) (()$)) ()$1) 26.9
Non-current
Ether # *$( # # 4.2
Total other non-current provisions # *$( # # 4.2
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Remuneration

12. Key management personnel
The remuneration of the Aey Canagement Personnel (ACP) of the Grouf is disYlosed in the Hemuneration Hefort$ The Yomfensation  
of ACP inYluded in the Grouf¾s finanYial statements Yomfrises0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$’000
30-Jun-16

$’000
Short#term emfloyee benefits ¹ ;xeYutive ACP 5,158 +"+(7
Short#term emfloyee benefits ¹ Non#exeYutive ACP 2,079 ("11*
Termination benefits - 1"&/(
Share based fayments 1,490 1"//+
Post#emfloyment benefits 227 ((+
Ether long#term emfloyee benefits 11 +)(
Total remuneration of KMP of the Group 8,965 11"*.+

13. Employees
;mfloyee benefits exfense Yonsists of0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Salaries and wages 88.1 /7$6
Share based fayments exfense 7.5 +$)
Ether emfloyee benefits exfense 3.1 *$&
Total employee benefits expense 98.7 1&6$/
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14. Share based payments
The Grouf remunerates eligible emfloyees through three seYurity based Yomfensation flans$ These flans are designed to align 
exeYutives¾ and emfloyees¾ interests with those of seYurityholders by inYentivising fartiYifants to deliver long#term shareholder 
returns$ A summary of eaYh flan is desYribed below0

Plan Description

Long Term 
Incentive (LTI)

;xeYutives and senior management are granted ferformanYe rights to aYguire LiYinity seYurities for nil 
Yonsideration$ These rights vest when Yertain hurdle reguirements" whiYh are set when the rights are granted" 
are met$ AYhievement of the hurdle reguirements are assessed three years after the rights are granted (the 
vesting feriod)$ The detailed hurdle reguirements are set out in Note 1*(a)$

Short Term 
Incentive (STI)

ST? frovides the offortunity to reYeive an annual" ferformanYe based inYentive fayment" when a Yombination 
of short#term Grouf finanYial and individual ferformanYe ob`eYtives is aYhieved$ 9ertain exeYutives and senior 
management are then reguired to defer a fortion of their annual ST? fayment into eguity for a feriod of  
1( to (* months$ The amounts deferred will beYome available to the emfloyee at the end of the deferral 
feriod" frovided they remain emfloyed by the Grouf$

$1,000 
Employee Plan

�1"&&& worth of LiYinity seYurities are granted annually to eligible emfloyees for nil Yonsideration$ SeYurities 
granted under the flan are sub`eYt to a three#year trading restriYtion unless the emfloyee Yeases to be 
emfloyed by the Grouf$

Further details relating to the BT? and ST? flans are inYluded in Note 1*(a)$

The following exfenses were reYognised in relation to the share based fayment Yomfensation flans0

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Bong Term ?nYentive (formerly PerformanYe Heward Payment Bong) 2.9 ($6
Short term inYentive (formerly PerformanYe Heward Payment Short)1 3.6 1$7
�1"&&& ;mfloyee Plan( 1.0 1$&
Total share based payments 7.5 +$)

1$  As desYribed in Note 1*(a) this amount refresents the value of ST? deferred into eguity relating to the frior finanYial year$

($  A total of )+/"&*& seYurities were granted under the �1"&&& ;mfloyee Plan during the year ()& @une (&160 )6&".(.)$

The movement in the number of BT? ferformanYe rights during the year was as follows0

30-Jun-17
Number

30-Jun-16
Number

Efening balanYe at the beginning of the year 4,385,154 +"/1)"(+(
Granted 3,074,501 ("/1.".6+
Forfeited and lapsed (605,374) (1"16*"/*&)
Vested (732,862) ()"(.("&())
Outstanding at the end of the year 6,121,419 *").+"1+*

;xerYisable at the end of the year Nil Nil
Meighted average remaining YontraYtual life 2.38 years ($(. years
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(a) Plan details

Long Term Incentive Plan conditions
Features of the BT? ferformanYe rights Yurrently on issue are0

Grant years FY17 and FY16

Performance 
period

Three years

Holding lock 1( months after the end of the ferformanYe feriod

Performance 
hurdles1

50% relative total securityholder return (TSR) 

Helative TSH Yombines the seYurity friYe movement and dividends (whiYh are assumed to be reinvested)  
to show total return to seYurityholders" relative to that of other Yomfanies in the TSH 9omfarator Grouf$

50% total return (TR)

TH is YalYulated as0 9hange in LiYinity¾s Net Tangible Assets (NTA) value during the ferformanYe feriod flus  
total distributions made divided by the NTA value at the beginning of the ferformanYe feriod$

TSR Comparator 
Group

S�P%ASN (&& A#H;?T ?ndex exYluding Mestfield 9orforation

1$  For the furfoses of BT? flan assessment" eaYh ferformanYe hurdle oferates indefendently of the other$

Long Term Incentive Plan – performance rights valuation
The fair value of ferformanYe rights granted under the BT? is estimated at the date of grant using a Conte 9arlo Simulation Codel 
taaing into aYYount the terms and Yonditions ufon whiYh the ferformanYe rights were granted$ The total grant date fair value is 
exfensed over the vesting feriod (three years) and is ad`usted to reÇeYt the aYtual number of rights for whiYh the related serviYe  
and non#maraet vesting Yonditions are exfeYted to be met$ 

A number of assumftions were used in valuing the ferformanYe rights as shown in the table below0

Assumption Basis FY17 FY16

:istribution yield ;xfeYted annual distribution rate over the next three years$ 5.9% 6$&�

Hisa#free interest rate Three#year government bond yields as at grant date$ 1.9% ($1�

Lolatility Yorrelation between LiYinity 
and other comparator companies

Analysis of historiYal total seYurity return volatility (i$e$ standard 
deviation) and the imflied volatilities of exYhange traded oftions$

50.0% )+$&�

Volatility of Vicinity securities As above$ 21.0% ()$&�

TSH of LiYinity seYurities
PerformanYe between the start date of the testing feriod and the 
valuation date$

(9.1%) (+$1�)

>olding loYa ad`ustment Ad`ustment for 1(#month holding loYa feriod$ 7.5% 7$+�

SeYurity friYe at measurement date 9losing LiYinity seYurities friYe at grant date$ $2.92 �($7+

Fair value per right – TR $2.27 �($1/

Fair value per right – TSR $0.97 �1$&*

Short Term Incentive Plan
The number of seYurities granted and deferred under the ST? flan during the year ended )& @une (&17 relating to inYentive fayments 
earned in the year ended )& @une (&16 was 1"1**"+*1 ()& @une (&160 6(&"*.() and the fair value of these seYurities was  
�)$(/ fer seYurity ()& @une (&160 �($7/) determined based on the seYurity friYe of LiYinity at the grant date of (( Seftember (&16$

Remuneration continued

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 201796



C
or

po
ra

te
 

D
ire

ct
or

y
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 

Se
cu

rit
yh

ol
de

rs
In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
Au

di
to

r’s
 R

ep
or

t
D

ire
ct

or
s’

 
D

ec
la

ra
tio

n
Ca

sh
 F

lo
w

 
St

at
em

en
t

St
at

em
en

ts
 o

f 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 E
qu

ity
Ba

la
nc

e 
 

Sh
ee

t
St

at
em

en
t o

f 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
co

m
e

Re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
Re

po
rt

D
ire

ct
or

s’
 

Re
po

rt
N

ot
es

 t
o 

th
e 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Other Disclosures

15. Intangible assets
(a) Background
?ntangible asset balanYes relate to the value of external management YontraYts and goodwill$

External management contracts
;xternal management YontraYts reÇeYt the right to frovide asset and funds management serviYes to external farties in aYYordanYe 
with management agreements$ They were reYognised at their fair value at both the date of Novion Proferty Grouf¾s internalisation 
of management from the 9ommonwealth Bana of Australia (on (* CarYh (&1*) and the merger of Novion Proferty Grouf and 
Federation 9entres (Cerger" on 11 @une (&1+)$ The value of these YontraYts is alloYated to the StrategiY Partnershifs Yash#
generating unit (9GK) whiYh is also an oferating and refortable segment$

Finite life
;xternal management YontraYts that are Yonsidered to have a finite life are amortised on a straight#line basis defending on the timing 
of the fro`eYted Yash Çows under the management agreements$ The amortisation feriod is based on termination dates reÇeYted in 
the management agreements (with Yonsideration given to renewals)$ The Grouf amortises intangible assets with a finite life using 
the straight#line method over feriods ranging from one to seven years$

Indefinite life
;xternal management YontraYts" frimarily those assoYiated with strategiY fartners who Yo#own assets with the Grouf and that have 
management agreements without termination dates" are Yonsidered to have indefinite useful lives and are therefore not amortised$ 
No deferred tax liability has been reYognised in resfeYt of these YontraYts as their Yarrying value is not exfeYted to be reYovered 
through use$

Goodwill
Goodwill relates to the internalised management of the owned froferties and the fortfolio fremium assoYiated with being a large 
listed Heal ;state ?nvestment Trust (H;?T)$ This balanYe is alloYated to the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK" whiYh is also an oferating and 
refortable segment$

Portfolio premium
The ½fortfolio fremium¾ that was reYognised ufon Cerger relates to value elements not Yaftured in the underlying fair value of the 
individual froferties$ This fortfolio fremium refresents" amongst other items" develofment fotential" liguidity" diversified fortfolio 
benefits and the Grouf¾s ability to obtain and attraYt debt funding$

Internal management contracts
?nternal management YontraYts relate to the inYremental value Yreated in relation to the Grouf¾s investment froferties by reflaYing 
froferty management fees with an internalised Yost struYture (asset management business)" i$e$ the value of management YontraYts 
relating to internally#owned assets$

A reYonYiliation of the movements in the value of intangible assets for the Yurrent and frior year is shown below0

Goodwill
$m

?nZefinite life  
management  

contracts 
$m

Finite life  
management  

contracts 
$m

Total 
$m

Carrying value 1 July 2015 712.7 164.2 14.5 891.4
?mfairment1 and amortisation Yharge ((/+$&) # ()$)) ((/.$))
Arising from aYguisitions /$) # # /$)
Carrying value 30 June 2016 427.0 164.2 11.2 602.4
?mfairment and amortisation Yharge # # ()$&) ()$&)
Carrying value 30 June 2017 427.0 164.2 8.2 599.4

1$  The imfairment Yharge of �(/+$& million to goodwill was reYorded at )1 :eYember (&1+ based on the assessment of the reYoverable amount ferformed at that time$
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Other Disclosures continued

15. Intangible assets continued
(b) Impairment testing
The Grouf ferforms imfairment testing for goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets on an annual basis (at )& @une eaYh year)  
or when there are other indiYators of imfairment$ Summarised below are the results of the Grouf¾s annual imfairment testing 
froYess ferformed at )& @une (&17$ 

External management contracts
As desYribed in Note 1+(a)" external management YontraYts are alloYated to the strategiY fartnershifs 9GK for the furfoses of 
imfairment testing$ The reYoverable amount of the StrategiY Partnershifs 9GK is determined using a fair value less Yost of disfosal 
(fair value) affroaYh$ This is ferformed using a disYounted Yash Çow (:9F) valuation of the external asset and funds management 
business whiYh is based on the following aey assumftions0

Key assumption 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
9ash Çows for foreYast ;arnings Before ?nterest and Tax on management fees 5 years + years
Terminal growth rates 2.20%–2.70% ($)&�¹)$&&�
Post tax disYount rate range 7.36%–7.86% 7$6*�¹.$1*�

Sensitivities to these assumftions have been tested and the Grouf has determined that no reasonably fossible Yhanges would give 
rise to imfairment at )& @une (&17$ The future disfosal of interests in direYtly owned or eguity aYYounted investment froferty assets" 
where the Grouf also gives uf any future rights under existing finite life or indefinite life YontraYts" may lead to the dereYognition of the 
assoYiated Yarrying values of these management YontraYts" as the Grouf may no longer be entitled to the management fees under 
disfosal arrangements$

Goodwill
As desYribed in Note 1+(a)" Goodwill is alloYated to the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK for the furfoses of imfairment testing$ The 
reYoverable amount of the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK is determined using a fair value affroaYh$ ?n order to determine the fair value 
of the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK as a whole" an ;nterfrise Lalue (;L) affroaYh has been adofted$ This affroaYh estimates fair value 
based on a :9F analysis using underlying earnings ad`usted for interest exfense" Yash Çows from the StrategiY Partnershifs 9GK and 
Yafital exfenditure reguirements$ The reYoverable amount" whiYh is egual to the Yarrying value" has been determined as the Grouf¾s 
net asset value less the value of the finite and indefinite life management YontraYts$

The table below summarises aey assumftions used in the ;L model0 

Key assumption 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
9ash Çows for foreYast underlying earnings and oferational Yafital exfenditure 3 years ) years
Terminal growth rate 2.20% ($)&�
Post#tax disYount rate range 7.11%–7.61% 7$6*�¹.$1*�
9ost of eguity 7.69%–8.19% .$)6�¹.$.6�

The Yarrying amount of the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK inYludes the value of the Grouf¾s investment froferties whiYh are held at fair value$ 
These fair values are determined based on a number of assumftions" as outlined in Note *(Y)$ As the Yarrying amount of the Proferty 
?nvestment 9GK is egual to its reYoverable amount" any reasonably fossible Yhange in the assumftions that imfaYt the froferty  
valuations and ;L model may have a Yorresfonding imfaYt on the Yarrying amount of the Proferty ?nvestment 9GK" inYluding goodwill$

Process for determination of key assumptions
The aey assumftions used in the fair value assessment of both goodwill and the external management YontraYts have been 
determined as follows:

• Helevant disYount rates are YalYulated based on the 9afital Asset PriYing Codel with referenYe to the Grouf¾s Yost of debt"  
Yost of eguity and target gearing ratios$

• Terminal growth rates are estimated with referenYe to maYro#eYonomiY Yonditions and the Grouf¾s exfeYted earnings growth 
through fixed rental inYreases$

• ForeYast underlying earnings" oferational Yafital exfenditure and asset and funds management Yash Çows are based on the  
values determined by the Grouf¾s budgeting and flanning froYess$

The Grouf Yonsiders the infuts and the valuation affroaYh to be Yonsistent with the affroaYh taaen by maraet fartiYifants$

As foreYast underlying earnings" disYount rates and growth rates are unobservable infuts into the valuation froYess" the aey 
assumftions are Yonsidered to be Bevel ) in the fair value hierarYhy$
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16. Dotes to t^e cas^ Çom statement
The reYonYiliation of net frofit after tax for the finanYial year to net Yash frovided by oferating aYtivities is frovided below$ 

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Net profit after tax for the financial year 1,583.6 /6&$/
Exclude non-cash items and cash flows under investing and financing activities:

Amortisation of inYentives and leasing Yosts 28.8 )($6
Straight#lining of rent ad`ustment (16.8) (*$.)
Proferty revaluation inYrement for direYtly owned froferties (906.7) (7))$&)
Stamf duty and other Yosts written off on aYguisition of investment froferties 9.9 (&$1
Share of net (frofit)%loss of eguity aYYounted investments (18.2) 6$&
:istributions of net inYome from eguity aYYounted investments 9.4 .$/
Amortisation of non#Yash items inYluded in interest exfense (4.5) (1$+)
Net foreign exYhange movement on interest bearing liabilities (60.7) (*($*)
Net mara#to#maraet movement on derivatives 55.1 1*7$+
Share based fayment exfense 7.5 +$)
?ntegration Yosts 26.7 *1$1
?mfairment and amortisation of intangible assets 3.0 (/.$)
Ether non#Yash items 3.0 (($))

Movements in working capital:
:eYrease in fayables" frovisions and other liabilities (6.4) (()$7)
:eYrease in reYeivables and other assets 17.5 (.$.

Net cash inflow from operating activities 731.2 7*1$.
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17. Auditor’s remuneration
:uring the year" the following fees were faid or fayable for serviYes frovided by the auditor of the Grouf" ;Y or its related fraYtiYes$ 

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17

$’000
30-Jun-16

$’000
Audit services
Statutory audit and review of finanYial reforts 1,287.5 1")&/$(
Ether assuranYe serviYes 592.4 *6($+
Taxation serviYes 544.0 (/1$)
Total auditor’s remuneration 2,423.9 ("&6)$&

 

18. Farent entity financial information
(a) Ikmmary financials
The finanYial information fresented below refresents that of the legal farent entity" and deemed farent entity of the stafled Grouf" 
LiYinity Bimited$ ?nvestments in subsidiary entities are aYYounted for at Yost" less any imfairment reYognised sinYe aYguisition$  
Ether aYYounting foliYies are Yonsistent with those used for the frefaration of the Yonsolidated FinanYial Hefort$

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Balance Sheet
Current assets 3.3 )&)$&
Total assets 667.1 1"&)+$.
9urrent liabilities (65.3) (*)/$.)
Total liabilities (584.8) (/+1$1)
Equity
9ontributed eguity 455.3 *++$)
Share based fayment reserve (4.1) (*$1)
Accumulated losses (368.9)  ()66$+)
Total equity 82.3 .*$7
Net loss for the finanYial year of LiYinity Bimited as farent entity (2.4) ((.+$/)1

Total comprehensive loss for the financial year of Vicinity Limited (2.4) ((.+$/)1

1$  The loss of LiYinity Bimited for the year ended )& @une (&16 inYluded an imfairment of the goodwill value of �(/+$& million$ No imfairment has been reYognised  
in the Yurrent year$

LiYinity Bimited has aYYess to the Grouf¾s Yash Çow from oferations and undrawn bana faYilities" in order to fay its Yurrent 
obligations as and when they fall due$

The farent entity has no Yafital exfenditure Yommitments whiYh have been YontraYted but not frovided for" or oferating lease 
Yommitments and YontingenYies as at reforting date$ Guarantees frovided to subsidiary entities are disYlosed at Note (&(Y) and 
fredominantly relate to fulfilling Yafital reguirements under Australian FinanYial ServiYes BiYenYes held by these subsidiaries$

Other Disclosures continued
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(b) ItapleZ entity allocation of net profit
?n aYYordanYe with AASB ) Business Combinations" the 9omfany is the deemed farent of the LiYinity 9entres stafled grouf$ As the 
9omfany has no legal ownershif over LiYinity 9entres Trust and its Yontrolled entities" the alloYation of net frofit and net assets is 
shown sefarately for the 9omfany and the Trust in the Statement of 9omfrehensive ?nYome and Statements of 9hanges in ;guity$

The following illustrates the Yontribution of the 9omfany to the stafled Grouf¾s net frofit after tax0

Vicinity Limited and controlled entities
30-Jun-17

$m
30-Jun-16

$m
Eferating result of the 9omfany 17.4 (($6
Bess0 ?ntegration and transaYtion Yosts inYurred by the 9omfany (26.7) ((/$/)
Bess0 ?mfairment and amortisation of intangibles (3.0) ((/.$))
Net loss attributable to securityholders of Vicinity Limited (as the Companies) (12.3) ()&+$6)
Net profit attributable to securityholders of Vicinity Centres Trust (as other stapled entities of the Group) 1,595.9 1"(66$+
Net profit of the Stapled Group 1,583.6 /6&$/

 

19. Related parties 
(a) Background
The deemed farent entity of the Grouf is LiYinity Bimited" whiYh is domiYiled and inYorforated in Australia$ All subsidiaries and  
sub#trusts of the Grouf are wholly#owned subsidiaries of LiYinity Bimited or sub#trusts of LiYinity 9entres Trust as at )& @une (&17$

(b) Information on related party transactions and balances
LiYinity Funds H; Btd" a wholly#owned subsidiary of the Grouf" is the Hesfonsible ;ntity%Trustee of the following funds (YolleYtively 
anown as the Mholesale funds managed by the Grouf)0

• :ireYt Proferty ?nvestment Fund A (:P?F#A)1

• :ireYt Proferty ?nvestment Fund B (:P?F#B)1

• LiYinity ;nhanYed Hetail Fund (L;HF)1

• ?nternational Private ;guity Heal ;state Fund (?P;H;)1 and

• Australian ?nvestments Trust (A?T)$

The transaYtions with the Mholesale funds" on normal YommerYial terms" and the balanYes outstanding at )& @une (&17 are 
outlined in the tables below$

Related party balances with Wholesale funds

Property 
jointly owned1

Funds management  
fee receivable

Alignment  
fee payable

30-Jun-17 
$’000

30-Jun-16 
$’000

30-Jun-17 
$’000

30-Jun-16 
$’000

30-Jun-17 
$’000

30-Jun-16 
$’000

Mholesale funds managed by the Grouf 528,000 +&+"&&& 2,140 ("&*) 285 (6(

1$  Hefresents the value of the Grouf¾s +&� interest in Grand Plapa and +&� interest in HoYaingham whiYh are `ointly owned with Mholesale funds$

An imfairment assessment is undertaaen eaYh finanYial year by examining the finanYial fosition of the related farty to determine 
whether there is ob`eYtive evidenYe that a related farty reYeivable is imfaired$ Mhen suYh ob`eYtive evidenYe exists" the Grouf 
reYognises an allowanYe for the imfairment loss$ Eutstanding related farty trade reYeivables balanYes at year end are unseYured 
and settlement oYYurs in Yash$ ?nterest is Yharged on an arm¾s length basis on amounts greater than /& days outstanding$ The 
Grouf does not hold any Yollateral in relation to related farty reYeivables$
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19. Related parties continued
Related party transactions with Wholesale funds

For the 12 months to:
30-Jun-17 

$’000
30-Jun-16 

$’000
Asset and funds management fee inYome 19,265 17"7/1
Heimbursement of exfenses to the froferty manager 5,291 +")7*
:istribution inYome 115 11&
Alignment fee exfense (1,137) (1"&*/)
Hent and outgoings exfenses (519) (66+)

20. Commitments and contingencies
(a) Operating lease commitments
;stimated oferating lease exfenditure YontraYted for at reforting date" but not frovided for in the finanYial statements0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Not later than one year 5.2 +$7
Bater than one year and not later than five years 19.7 1.$(
Bater than five years 7.5 *$)
Total operating lease commitments 32.4 (.$(

(b) Capital commitments
;stimated Yafital exfenditure YontraYted for at reforting date" but not frovided for0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Not later than one year 168.9 1.($)
Bater than one year and not later than five years 52.5 66$(
Total capital commitments 221.4 (*.$+

(c) Contingent assets and liabilities
Bana guarantees totalling �*.$1 million have been arranged by the Grouf" frimarily to guarantee obligations for three of the Grouf¾s 
Hesfonsible ;ntities to meet their finanYial obligations under their Australian FinanYial ServiYes BiYenYes$

As at reforting date" there were no other material Yontingent assets or liabilities$

Other Disclosures continued
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21. Other Group accounting matters
(a) Other accounting policies
This seYtion Yontains other aYYounting foliYies that relate to the finanYial statements as a whole" detail of any Yhanges in aYYounting 
foliYies and the imfaYt of new or amended aYYounting standards$

Principles of consolidation
These Yonsolidated finanYial statements Yomfrise the assets and liabilities of all Yontrolled entities at )& @une (&17 and the results 
of all Yontrolled entities for the finanYial year unless otherwise stated$ 9ontrolled entities are0

• all entities over whiYh the Grouf is exfosed to" or has rights to" variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the 
ability to affeYt those returns through its fower to direYt the relevant aYtivities of the entity1 and

• fully Yonsolidated from the date on whiYh Yontrol is transferred to the Grouf" and" where affliYable" deYonsolidated from the date 
on whiYh Yontrol Yeases$

The aYguisition method of aYYounting is used to aYYount for the aYguisition of Yontrolled entities" and the balanYes and effeYts  
of transaYtions between all Yontrolled entities are eliminated in full$

?n aYYordanYe with AASB ) Business Combinations" LiYinity Bimited is the deemed farent of the stafled Grouf$ The results and eguity 
attributable to LiYinity 9entres Trust (that is" the amounts shown as attributable to seYurityholders of other stafled entities of the Grouf) 
are shown frior to the elimination of transaYtions between LiYinity Bimited and LiYinity 9entres Trust$
 
Revenue recognition
Hevenue is measured at the fair value of the Yonsideration reYeived or reYeivable$ Hevenue is reYognised for the following aYtivities0

Property ownership revenue and lease income
As the owner of a number of shoffing Yentres" the Grouf derives rental revenue as lessor from the leasing of the retail sfaYe 
in these froferties$ Bease inYome is reYognised on a straight#line basis over the lease term$ ?tems inYluded in the straight#lining 
YalYulation as reguired by aYYounting standards are lease inYentives given to tenants and fixed rental inYreases that form fart of 
rental YontraYts$

Management fee revenue
Proferty management and leasing fees are generated from existing froferties" and develofment fees are derived in resfeYt of  
new develofments and redevelofments$ Funds management revenue relates to inYome reYeived for the management of externally#
owned froferties" wholesale froferty funds and froferty mandates$ Fees are in aYYordanYe with generally aYYefted YommerYial 
terms and Yonditions$

Fee revenue is reYognised on an aYYruals basis as earned and when it Yan be reliably measured$

Interest revenue
?nterest revenue is reYognised using the effeYtive interest method$

Investments in joint operations
?nYluded in investment froferties are shoffing Yentres that are aYYounted for as `oint oferations ¹ in the form of direYt ownershif 
of a fartial freehold or leasehold interest in a shoffing Yentre with a strategiY fartner" based on standard maraet `oint oferation 
agreements$ The Grouf aYYounts for `oint oferations by reYognising its share of the shoffing Yentre" Ylassified as investment 
froferty" and its share of other assets" liabilities" inYome and exfenses from the use and outfut of the `oint oferation$
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Other Disclosures continued

21. Other Group accounting matters continued
Impact of new and amended standards
There are no new and amended standards that beYame effeYtive for the Grouf on 1 @uly (&16 that have a material imfaYt on the 
finanYial statements$

Future impact of Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective for the Group from 1 July 2018)
This standard reflaYes AASB 1)/ Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. ?t introduYes a new affroaYh for YlassifiYation 
and measurement" imfairment and hedge aYYounting of finanYial instruments and introduYes a forward looaing ½exfeYted loss¾ 
imfairment model for reYording exfeYted Yredit losses$ The adoftion of this standard is not exfeYted to have a material imfaYt for  
the Grouf$

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for the Group from 1 July 2018)
This standard reflaYes AASB 11. Revenue and other revenue related standards and interfretations$ The Yore frinYifle of AASB 1+ 
is that an entity reYognises revenue related to the transfer of fromised goods or serviYes when Yontrol of those goods or serviYes 
fasses to Yustomers$ The amount of revenue reYognised should reÇeYt the Yonsideration to whiYh the entity exfeYts to be entitled 
in exYhange for those goods or serviYes$ The standard has introduYed a five#stef model as the framewora for afflying that Yore 
frinYifle$ ?n addition" the standard reguires disYlosure of the nature" amount" timing" and unYertainty of revenue and Yash Çows 
arising from YontraYts with Yustomers$

This standard is not exfeYted to have a signifiYant imfaYt on the Grouf¾s finanYial statements as the ma`ority of the Grouf¾s 
revenue and inYome is base rental inYome derived from lease agreements with tenants$ The reYognition of other revenue items 
derived by the Grouf" inYluding variable fayments linaed to lease agreements" Yost reYoveries from tenants and fee inYome from 
strategiY fartners is not exfeYted to be materially imfaYted by the adoftion of this standard$
 
AASB 16 Leases (effective for the Group from 1 July 2019)
This standard reflaYes AASB 117 Leases$ ?t frovides a new lessee aYYounting model whiYh reguires a lessee to reYognise assets and 
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 1( months" unless the underlying asset is of low value$ AASB 16 substantially Yarries 
forward the lessor aYYounting reguirements in AASB 117$ AYYordingly" a lessor Yontinues to Ylassify its leases as oferating leases  
or finanYe leases" and to aYYount for those two tyfes of leases differently$ The Grouf is Yurrently assessing the fotential imfaYt  
of this standard and the transition method to be adofted however does not exfeYt a material imfaYt on the finanYial statements$
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(b) Finance lease liabilities
As disYlosed in the footnotes to Note *(d)" a number of the Grouf¾s investment froferties are held under long#term leasehold 
arrangements$ As fer maraet fraYtiYe" external and internal valuations ferformed to determine the fair values of these froferties  
at reforting date (as disYlosed in Note *) have deduYted the estimated lease fayments from the valuation Yash Çows$ 

As reguired by AASB 1*& Investment Properties, where the fair value model is used to value investment property, the present value 
of these minimum fayments under the leasehold arrangements must then be fresented sefarately as a0

• finanYe lease asset that is added to the overall investment froferty balanYe (refer Note *(a))1 and

• Yorresfonding finanYe lease liability (refer Note 1&)$

The minimum lease fayments under finanYe leases fall due as follows0

30-Jun-17
$m

30-Jun-16
$m

Minimum 
lease 

payments

Future 
finance 
charges

Present 
value of 

payments

Minimum 
lease 

payments

Future 
finance 
charges

Present 
value of 

payments
Not later than one year 14.8 - 14.8 1)$. # 1)$.
Bater than one but not more than 
five years

64.5 (13.5) 51.0 6($* (1)$1) */$)

Core than five years 580.7 (429.0) 151.7 +/7$7 (**6$6) 1+1$1
Total1 660.0 (442.5) 217.5 67)$/ (*+/$7) (1*$(

1$ For details of froferties sub`eYt to leasehold arrangements" refer to the footnotes in Note *(d)$

22. Events occurring after the reporting date
On-market securities buy-back
En (+ @uly (&17" the Grouf announYed an on#maraet buy#baYa frogram of uf to +� of ordinary seYurities on issue$ The Grouf will 
only furYhase seYurities where doing so is aYYretive to earnings fer seYurity and NTA" while also freserving amfle YafaYity to fund 
other Yafital reguirements$

Appointment of nem 9^ief ;xecktive Efficer (9;E) anZ Cana]in] :irector
En 11 August (&17" the Grouf announYed Cr Grant Aelly would suYYeed Cr Angus CYNaughton as 9;E and Canaging :ireYtor"  
with a flanned YommenYement date of 1 @anuary (&1.$

Vicinity Board changes
En )1 @uly (&17 the Grouf announYed the affointment of Cs @anette Aendall as an ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtor to the 
Boards of LiYinity Bimited and LiYinity 9entres H; Btd" effeYtive from 1 :eYember (&17$ Cr 9harles CaYea and Cs :ebra Stirling  
will retire as ?ndefendent Non#exeYutive :ireYtors at the Annual General Ceeting to be held on 16 November (&17$

No matters other than those identified above have arisen sinYe the end of the year whiYh have signifiYantly affeYted" or may signifiYantly 
affeYt" the oferations of the Grouf" the results of those oferations" or the state of affairs of the Grouf in future finanYial feriods$
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Directors’ Declaration

?n aYYordanYe with a resolution of the :ireYtors of LiYinity Bimited" we deYlare that0

(a)  in the ofinion of the :ireYtors" the finanYial statements and notes set out on fages 67 to 1&+ are in aYYordanYe with the 
Corporations Act 2001 (9th)" inYluding0 

 i$  giving a true and fair view of the Grouf and its Yontrolled entities¾ finanYial fosition as at )& @une (&17 and of the 
ferformanYe for the finanYial year ended on that date" and

 ii$  Yomflying with Australian AYYounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 (9th)" and

 iii$  Yomflying with ?nternational FinanYial Heforting Standards as issued by the ?nternational AYYounting Standards Board as 
disYlosed in the notes to the finanYial statements on fage 7( of the (&17 Annual Hefort" and

(b)  in the ofinion of the :ireYtors" there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Grouf and its Yontrolled entities will be able to 
fay their debts as and when they beYome due and fayable" and

(Y)  the :ireYtors have been given the :eYlarations reguired to be made to the :ireYtors in aYYordanYe with seYtion (/+A of the 
Corporations Act 2001 (9th) for the finanYial year ended )& @une (&17$

Signed in aYYordanYe with a resolution of the :ireYtors of LiYinity Bimited$

Peter Hay
Chairman

Celbourne
16 August (&17
 

Signed in aYYordanYe with a resolution of the :ireYtors of LiYinity Bimi

Peter Hay
Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Report

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

 

 

Ernst & Young
8 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne  VIC  3000  Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne  VIC  3001

Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
ey.com/au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Members of Vicinity Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Vicinity Centres, comprising the stapled entities Vicinity 
Limited (the “Company”), Vicinity Centres Trust (the “Trust”) and the entities they controlled 
(collectively the “Group”), which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2017, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information and the Directors’ Declaration. 

In our opinion: 

the accompanying financial report of Vicinity Centres is in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June  
2017 and of its financial performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report.  We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the “Code”) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia.  We have 
also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  

  

Vicinity Centres Annual Report 2017 107



Independent Auditor’s Report continued

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial report of the current year.  These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of our report, including in relation to these matters.  Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial report. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying financial report.   

1. Shopping Centre Investment Property Portfolio – Carrying Values and Revaluations 

Why significant  How the matter was addressed in the audit  
Vicinity Centres owns a portfolio of retail property assets 
valued at $15,633.5 million at 30 June 2017, excluding 
assets held for sale, which represents 93.8% of total 
assets of the Group.  
The valuation of the property portfolio, which includes 
properties in a development phase and jointly held 
investments, is based on a number of assumptions, such 
as capitalisation rates, discount rates and terminal yield, 
which require significant estimation and judgement. This 
also includes the estimations for costs to complete and an 
allowance for developer’s risk and profit for properties in 
the development phase. Minor adjustments to certain 
assumptions can lead to significant changes in the 
valuation of the retail property assets. 
As outlined in Note 4, the Group’s basis for determining 
the portfolio valuation is underpinned by valuations 
sourced from suitably qualified valuation experts and 
internal valuations.  
Refer to Note 4 for a description of the accounting policy, 
overview of the valuation methodology, process for 
valuation (including the use of independent expert valuers 
and internal valuations), significant assumptions and the 
relative sensitivity of the valuation to changes in these 
assumptions. 

In performing our audit procedures, with assistance from 
our real estate valuation specialists, on a sample basis, 
we: 
► Assessed the competence of valuers, as well as the 

independence of external valuers, and 
appropriateness of the scope and methodology of the 
valuation commissioned for the purposes of the 
financial report. 

► Assessed the key inputs and assumptions adopted in 
the valuation methodologies including comparing 
capitalisation rates to those derived from relevant 
transactions and other external market sources. 

► Compared the data used in the valuation to the 
actual and budgeted financial performance of the 
underlying properties, tested as part of the audit 
process. 

► For properties under development, we compared the 
costs incurred to date plus estimated costs to 
complete to the expected value of the completed 
project, as advised by external valuers. 

► Discussed key developments in progress with 
Development Management. 

► Assessed the design and operating effectiveness of 
key controls surrounding the development process 
and tested a sample of significant development 
spend on major projects to progress billing reports.  

► Performed an analytical review of the portfolio 
assets with reference to external market data and 
portfolio performance in order to identify and 
investigate items that were outside of our audit 
expectations. 

► Assessed the disclosures included in Note 4 to the 
financial report. 
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

 

 

2. Carrying Value of Intangible Assets  

Why significant How the matter was addressed in the audit 
As at 30 June 2017 the Group held $599.4 million in 
goodwill and identifiable intangible assets (relating to 
indefinite life and finite life external management 
contracts). 
As outlined in the disclosures in note 15, under the 
Group’s accounting policy, goodwill and indefinite life 
external management contracts are tested for impairment 
annually, or when there is an impairment trigger. 
The recoverable amount of the indefinite life external 
management contracts has been determined based on a 
fair value less cost of disposal (“Fair Value”) method using 
discounted cash flows (“DCFs”) of the external asset and 
funds management business. 
The recoverable amount of the Property Investment Cash 
Generating Unit (“CGU”), to which Goodwill is allocated, 
has been determined using the Fair Value method based 
on DCFs of the CGU’s underlying earnings, adjusted for 
interest expense and capital expenditure requirements. 
The impairment calculation includes judgements and 
estimates made by management such as the growth rate 
of forecasted cash flows, discount rate and terminal value 
within the model. 
As a result of the assessment performed at 30 June 
2017, no impairment of goodwill or identifiable intangible 
assets was recorded during the year. 

In obtaining sufficient audit evidence regarding the 
recoverable value of goodwill and identifiable intangible 
assets, with assistance from our valuations specialists, 
we: 
► Considered the appropriateness and application of 

valuation methodologies applied. 
► Considered the key inputs and assumptions such as 

forecast cash flows, discount rates and overhead 
allocations adopted in the valuation. 

► Compared the data used in the DCFs to the actual and 
budgeted financial performance of the Group. 

► Compared earnings multiples derived from the Group’s 
intangible model to that observable from external 
market data obtained from comparable listed Real 
Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) entities in addition to 
comparing the market capitalisation of the business to 
the net assets on the balance sheet. 

► Benchmarked key assumptions used by the Group to 
the independent views of EY and external data 
obtained. 

► Assessed the disclosures included in Note 15 to the 
financial report. 

3.  Interest Bearing Liabilities and Derivatives 

Why significant  How the matter was addressed in the audit  
The Group had interest bearing liabilities of $3,893.7 
million at 30 June 2017. During the year the Group repaid 
US private placement notes which matured in February 
2017 and issued Australian Medium Term Notes. 
The Group maintains a portfolio of facilities with varying 
counterparties, currencies and terms. This portfolio 
influences the Group’s gearing, liquidity, solvency, 
covenant obligations and financing cost profile. 
In relation to this portfolio, the Group incurred $162.9 
million in borrowing costs during the year, of which, 
$154.9 million were expensed and $8.0 million were 
capitalised to assets under development. 
Refer to Note 6 of the financial report for a description of 
the accounting policy treatment for these liabilities and 
information of the Group’s interest bearing liabilities. 
Interest rate and currency risks are managed by floating-
to-fixed interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps 
(“derivatives”) which have been set out in Note 7 of the 
financial report.  
These derivatives involve judgement to assess the fair 
value (carrying amounts), which are estimated using 
valuation techniques and are sensitive to movements in 
financial markets, as outlined in Note 7.  

► We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of 
relevant controls over the recording and reporting of 
drawdowns and repayments, the valuation of interest 
bearing liabilities, the recording and reporting of 
derivatives, and the monitoring of compliance.  

► We assessed the Group’s compliance with material 
facility agreements, including covenants, and the 
Group’s maturity profile, to test the appropriate 
classification of the interest bearing liabilities as 
current or non-current. 

► We confirmed all interest bearing liabilities and 
derivatives directly with counterparties at 30 June 
2017. 

► We tested the calculation of interest recognised in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and 
capitalised to development properties. 

► On a sample basis, with involvement of our treasury 
specialists, we tested the calculation of the fair value 
of derivatives at the reporting date and disclosures 
outlined in Note 6.   

► We assessed the disclosures included in Note 6 and 
Note 7 to the financial report. 
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4. Property Portfolio Transactions  

Why significant  How the matter was addressed in the audit 
Vicinity Centres undertook a significant number of 
acquisitions and disposals during the year, which had a 
material effect on the financial report.   
Refer to Note 4 for the impact of the transactions on 
Investment Properties. 
 

For material transactions, we: 
► Reviewed the sale and purchase agreements and other 

related documents.  
► Assessed these transactions against the recognition, 

derecognition, measurement and classification criteria 
of the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4 of 
the financial report and applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards. 

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in the 
financial report.  

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Vicinity Centres’ Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but 
does not include the financial report and the auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.   

If, based upon the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Report 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such 
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial 
report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: 
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf. This description forms part of our 
auditor’s report. 

Report on the Remuneration Report 

Opinion on the Remuneration Report 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the Directors' Report for the year ended 30 
June 2017. 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Vicinity Limited for the year ended 30 June 2017, 
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Responsibilities 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in 
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. 

 
Ernst & Young 
 

 
David Shewring 
Partner 
Melbourne 
16 August 2017 
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Summary of Securityholders
as at 14 August 2017

Spread of securityholders

Range
Number of 

securityholders
Number of  
securities

% of issued  
securities

1&&"&&1 and over ()( )"761"*+("(*7 /+$&(
1&"&&1 to 1&&"&&& 6"&+. 1))"/*6"+6* )$).
+"&&1 to 1&"&&& +"11* )7"+6)"117 &$/+
1"&&1 to +"&&& .")66 ()"++&"*++ &$+/
1 to 1"&&& +"&7( ("1)."(+) &$&+
Total 24,842 3,958,650,636 100.00

The number of seYurityholders holding less than a maraetable farYel of 1.7 seYurities (�($6. on 1* August (&17) is 1"1/7 and 
they hold 61"*&* seYurities$

On–market purchase of securities
:uring FY17" (")&&"&&& LiYinity seYurities were furYhased on#maraet at an average friYe fer seYurity of �)$(.6.+ by the trustee 
for the ;;SP" ST? and BT? to satisfy entitlements under these flans$

Substantial securityholders 

Company name Effective date
Number of 
securities

% of issued 
securities

The Gandel Grouf Pty Btd and its assoYiates 11 @une (&1+ 6.(".61"(/6 17$(+
BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Bimited as 9ustodian for KniSufer Btd / Seftember (&16 )**"*+&"./+ .$7&
Languard ?nvestments Australia Btd (/ :eYember (&16 (/*"*/+")(6 7$**
BlaYaHoYa Grouf (BlaYaHoYa ?nY$ and its assoYiates) + @une (&1+ ((."+*+"+./ +$77
Begg Cason Asset Canagement Bimited )1 @anuary (&17 1//"16+"*+( +$&)

20 largest securityholders

Rank Name
Number of 

securities held
% of issued 

securities
1 >SB9 9ustody Nominees (Australia) Bimited 1"1.*")+7"17) (/$/(
( @ P Corgan Nominees Australia Bimited 616"767"&&* 1+$+.
) 9itiYorf Nominees Pty Bimited *(&"1&*"/7( 1&$61
* BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Btd )/."117")61 1&$&6
+ National Nominees Bimited 1.+"6)&"))1 *$6/
6 Hosslynbridge Pty Btd .)"&6("77. ($1&
7 Besgan No$ 1 Pty Btd 7/".+6"()* ($&(
7 Besgan No$ ( Pty Btd 7/".+6"()* ($&(
7 Besgan No$ ) Pty Btd 7/".+6"()* ($&(
7 Besgan No$ * Pty Btd 7/".+6"()* ($&(
. Allowater Pty Btd ++"7++"(.6 1$*1
/ 9enarth Pty Btd *1"(()"*61 1$&*
1& BNP Paribas Noms Pty Btd *&"(*/"&(/ 1$&(
11 Braybridge Pty Btd )/").+"61& &$//
1( >SB9 9ustody Nominees (Australia) Bimited )+"7.*"61* &$/&
1) Bedburn Profrietary Bimited ))"++6"77* &$.+
1* Broadgan Profrietary Bimited )("/&6"6(* &$.)
1+ 9itiYorf Nominees Pty Bimited )1"1+7"*/7 &$7/
16 ACP Bife Bimited 17"./*"/+( &$*+
17 Australian Foundation ?nvestment 9omfany Bimited 1+"6(7"+&& &$)/
1. Afflebrooa Pty Btd 11"/(6"(+& &$)&
1. @adeYliff Pty Btd 11"/(6"(+& &$)&
1. Coondale Pty Btd 11"/(6"(+& &$)&
1. HoseYreea Pty Btd 11"/(6"(+& &$)&
1/ >SB9 9ustody Nominees (Australia) Bimited ¹ GS9E ;9A /")&/".1. &$(*
(& Bedburn Profrietary Bimited /"(&7"6)) &$()
Total 20 largest securityholders 3,617,228,353 91.38
BalanYe of register )*1"*(("(.) .$6(
Total issued capital 3,958,650,636 100.00
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Corporate Directory

Vicinity Centres
Yomfrising0

Vicinity Limited 
ABN /& 11* 7+7 7.)

and

Vicinity Centres RE Ltd 
ABN .. 1*/ 7.1 )((

as Hesfonsible ;ntity for

Vicinity Centres Trust 
AHSN 1&* /)1 /(.

ASX listing
LiYinity 9entres is listed on the ASN 
under the listing Yode L9N

Board of Directors 
Peter >ay (9hairman)
Angus CYNaughton 
9harles CaYea
:avid Thurin (:r)
:ebra Stirling
Aaren Penrose
Peter Aahan
Tim Hammon
Trevor Gerber
Mai Tang

Company Secretaries 
Carolyn Reynolds 
CiYhelle Brady

He]istereZ office
9hadstone Tower Ene
Bevel *" 1)*1 :andenong Hoad
9hadstone LiYtoria )1*. Australia

Telephone: !61 ) 7&&1 *&&&
Facsimile: !61 ) 7&&1 *&&1
Website: viYinity$Yom$au

Auditors
;rnst � Young
. ;xhibition Street
Celbourne LiYtoria )&&& Australia

Security registrar
?f you have gueries relating to your 
seYurityholding or wish to ufdate your 
personal or payment details, please 
YontaYt the SeYurity Hegistrar$

Link Market Services Limited
Bevel 1" ))) 9ollins Street" Celbourne 
LiYtoria )&&& Australia

General seYurityholder enguiries0

Toll Free: !61 1)&& ..7 ./&
Facsimile: !61 ( /(.7 &)&)
Facsimile:  !61 ( /(.7 &)&/  

(for froxy voting)
Email:  viYinity6linamaraetserviYes$

Yom$au
Post:  BoYaed Bag A1*  

Sydney South NSM 1()+ 
Australia

Access your securityholding online
You can update your personal details 
and aYYess information about your 
seYurityholding online by YliYaing 
½SeYurityholder login¾ on our home fage 
at viYinity$Yom$au" or via the ½?nvestor 
ServiYes¾ seYtion of the seYurity registrar¾s 
website at linamaraetserviYes$Yom$au"  
or sYan the GH 9ode (below) to taae  
you to the investor Yentre$ 

SeYurityholders Yan use the online 
system to:

• view your holding balanYes" distribution 
payments and transaction history

• choose your preferred annual report 
and communications options

• Yonfirm whether you have lodged  
your Tax File Number (TFN) or 
Australian Business Number (ABN)

• update your contact details

• ufdate your bana aYYount details

• YheYa LiYinity 9entres¾ seYurity  
price, and

• download various securityholder 
instruYtion forms$

Contact Vicinity Centres
Me are Yommitted to delivering a high 
level of serviYe to all seYurityholders$ 
Should there be some way you feel that 
we can improve our service, we would 
liae to anow$ Mhether you are maaing  
a suggestion or a Yomflaint" your 
feedbaYa is always affreYiated$

Investor Relations
Email: investor$relations6viYinity$Yom$au

The Hesfonsible ;ntity is a member 
(member no$ (./1() of the FinanYial 
Embudsmen ServiYe (FES)" an external 
Yomflaints resolution sYheme$ FES 
offers Yonsumers a single national 
sourYe of aYYessible information and 
exfertise for banaing" insuranYe and 
investment disfutes$ ?f you are not 
satisfied with the resolution of your 
Yomflaint by the Hesfonsible ;ntity"  
you may refer your Yomflaint to FES$

Key dates1

)& August (&17 @une (&17 
distribution 
payment 

16 November (&17 (&17 Annual 
General Ceeting 

(. :eYember (&17 ;x#distribution 
date for 
:eYember (&17 
distribution 

(/ :eYember (&17 Record date for 
:eYember (&17 
distribution 

1* February (&1. FY1. interim 
results 

( CarYh (&1. :eYember (&17 
distribution 
payment 

(. @une (&1. ;x#distribution 
date for @une 
(&1. distribution 

(/ @une (&1. Record date 
for @une (&1. 
distribution 

1+ August (&1. FY1. annual 
results 

)& August (&1. @une (&1. 
distribution 
payment

1$ These dates may be sub`eYt to Yhange$
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